
 

 

 

If you would like help to understand this document please call William Reed, Democratic Services 
Manager or  in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

City Executive Board 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 22 April 2013 

Time: 2.30 pm 

Place: Plowman Room - Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

William Reed, Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone: 01865 252230 

Email: wreed@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

City Executive Board 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair   
 
 Councillor Bob Price Corporate Governance and Strategic 

Partnerships 

 Councillor Ed Turner Finance and Efficiency 

 Councillor Colin Cook City Development 

 Councillor Van Coulter Leisure Services 

 Councillor Steven Curran Young People, Education and 
Community Development 

 Councillor Mark Lygo Parks and Sports 

 Councillor Scott Seamons Housing 

 Councillor Dee Sinclair Crime and Community Safety 

 Councillor Val Smith Customer Services and 
Regeneration 

 Councillor John Tanner Cleaner, Greener Oxford 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE 
PUBLIC BUSINESS 

 
 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 Board Members are asked to declare disclosable pecuniary interests they 
may have in any of the following agenda items.  Guidance is contained at the 
end of these agenda pages. 

 

 

3 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 

 

 When the chair agrees, questions from the public for up to 15 minutes – 
these must be about the items for decision at the meeting (excluding the 
minutes) and must have been given to the Head of Law and Governance by 
9.30am on a day so that there are at least two clear working days before the 
meeting (email executiveboard@oxford.gov.uk or telephone the person 
named as staff contact).  No supplementary questions or questioning will be 
permitted.  Questions by the public will be taken as read and, when the Chair 
agrees, be responded to at the meeting. 

 

 

4 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

 

 Scrutiny committee reports may be submitted to this meeting. 

 

 

 

5 FUSION LIFESTYLE ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN 2013/14 

 

1 - 106 

 Lead Member: Councillor Van Coulter, Executive Board Member for Leisure 
Services 

 

 Report of the Head of Leisure and Parks 
 

 

 The report presents Fusion Lifestyle’s 2013/2014 annual service plan for the 
management of the Council’s leisure facilities. 
 
Following recommendation from the Leisure Partnership Board, City 
Executive Board is recommended to endorse Fusion Lifestyle’s Annual 
Service Plan for the management of the Council’s leisure facilities for 
2013/14 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6 YOUTH AMBITION STRATEGY 

 

107 - 144 

 Lead Member: Councillor Steven Curran,  Executive Board Member for 
Young People, Education and Community Development 

 

 Report of the Head of Leisure and Parks 
 

 

 The attached report presents the draft Youth Ambition strategy for public 
consultation. 
 
City Executive Board is recommended to approve the draft Youth Ambition 
strategy for public consultation. 

 

 

 

7 FUTURE ITEMS 

 

 

 This item is included on the agenda to give members the opportunity to raise 
issues on the Forward Plan or update the Board about future agenda items. 
 

 

 

8 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 

 

 

 If the Board wishes to exclude the press and the public from the meeting 
during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from publication part 
of the agenda, it will be necessary for the Board to pass a resolution in 
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2000 on the grounds that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule I2A of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
The Board may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

 

 PART TWO 
MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
mater of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself but also those of 
the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or as if they were civil partners. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
To: City Executive Board  
 
Date: 10 April 2013             
 
Report of:  Head of Leisure and Parks 
 
Title of Report:  FUSION LIFESTYLE’S 2013/ 2014 ANNUAL SERVICE 

PLAN FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL’S 
LEISURE FACILITIES 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 
 
Purpose of report:   
 
The report asks, following recommendation from the Leisure Partnership 
Board, that the City Executive Board endorse Fusion Lifestyle’s Annual 
Service Plan for the management of the Council’s leisure facilities for 
2013/14. 
          
Key decision? Yes 
 
Executive lead member: Councillor Van Coulter 
 
Policy Framework:  
 
- Leisure Facilities review 2009 to 2013 
- Sport & Physical Activity Strategy 2009 to 2014 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
That the City Executive Board endorses Fusion Lifestyle’s Annual Service 
Plan for 2013/14. 
 

 
Appendix One – Fusion Lifestyle’s 2013/ 2014 Annual Service Plan 
Appendix Two – Fusion Lifestyle’s Annual Service Plan summary. 
Appendix Three – Risk register. 
Appendix Four – Initial Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Introduction 
 
 
1.1 This leisure facilities review 2009 was developed following the 

commencement of a ten-year contract in March 2009 with Fusion 
Lifestyles (Fusion) social enterprise with charitable status to manage 
the Council’s Leisure Facilities. 

 

Agenda Item 5

1



1.2 The Fusion contract will save Oxford City Council and local taxpayers 
over £7m throughout the ten years of the contract and has to date 
delivered a circa  £3.5m investment in leisure facilities. 

 
1.3 Alongside the benefits of a successful contract such as increased 

participation, an upward cycle of continued improvement, and an 
improved public realm, there is also a surplus share arrangement that 
encourages the Council to support Fusion to exceed their contractual 
financial targets and provide further investment. As such the Council 
needs to actively support Fusion in the delivery of the Leisure Centres 
contract.  

 
1.4 As a registered charity, Fusion continually reinvests to improve the 

sport and leisure offer in our community.  
 
1.5 Fusions 2013/14 Annual Service Plan (Plan) builds on the Councils 

approach to delivering world class leisure provision to Oxford residents. 
 
1.6 Leisure provision in the city is continuously improving since the 

collaboration with Fusion in 2009 and supports the Council’s strategic 
aims.  In 2012/131: 

 

• The Bonus concessionary membership continues to offer those 
eligible for benefits, and their dependants, reduced rates on 
activities at all of our leisure centres. Circa 4,000 of membership 
uptake is by those in receipt of eligible benefits 

• Partnership working through a Council and Fusion Energy and 
Carbon working group has lead to the implementation of carbon 
reduction measures estimated to save 85 tonnes of carbon per 
year. Further work is ongoing to develop a range of Salix funded 
projects for 2013/14 and beyond (including LED lighting and boiler 
upgrades) 

• Visits to Leisure facilities continue to increase. In 2009 850,000 
visits took place and these have now increased to 1.1 million. The 
subsidy per visitor has reduced from £2.14 in 2008/09 (pre-
contract), to 57 pence year to date 2 

• Sports, community development and outreach work further 
increased, key target group visits growing by 17 per cent. 

• Further development and investment in facilities created a wider 
and improved quality leisure offer. New cafeterias are now 
operating at Ferry Leisure Centre and Oxford Ice Rink, funded from 
the savings created from transferring the management of leisure 
facilities in partnership with Fusion 

• Value obtained from our partnership working is illustrated through 
Fusions financial contribution to the new lighting and sound system 
at Oxford Ice Rink, the holding of Bonus concessionary fees and 

                                            
1
 April 2012 to January 2013. 

2
 Based on the value (£) of the management fee paid 2012/13 (excluding the free swimming 
subsidy). 

2



charges for a fourth consecutive year3, increased capacity to focus 
on sports development and a significantly reduced maintenance 
backlog 

• Overall customer satisfaction with leisure facilities was 96 per cent 

• Quality continued to improve. We have achieved Quest, the UK 
Quality Award for facility management, at five facilities. 

 
1.6  A comprehensive 2012/13 contract performance review will be reported 

to the Value and Performance Scrutiny Committee in June 2013. 
 
1.7 The 2013/14 Plan is focused on delivering the Council’s priorities in the 

most effective and efficient way and places significant focus for city 
residents upon: 

 

• Accessible and affordable leisure opportunities through pricing 
structures and levels that are appropriate and inclusive. 

• Improving health and well-being by positively promoting and 
delivering the benefits of healthy living and active lifestyles. 

• Development of a 'Youth Ambition Programme'  

• Tackling climate change and promote sustainable environmental 
resource management providing quality through continuous 
improvement. 

• Driving value for money by ensuring that the leisure offering is of a 
high standard and innovative. 

 
Development of the Annual Service Plan 
 
2.1 The plan was developed between Fusion and council officers and 

agreed by the Leisure Partnership Board. The Board consists of 
representatives from the following groups:  

 

• Executive and opposition member for leisure 

• Facility user 

• National Health  

• Older people  

• Senior Council and Fusion Officers  
 
The function of the Board is to oversee the delivery of the city’s corporate 
objectives through the leisure contract.  
 
2.2 Preparation of the 2013/14 Plan has incorporated:  
 

• Review of performance from contract commencement 

• Review of achievements in respect of national and industry 
relevant benchmarks 

• Commitments and intentions set out in Fusion Lifestyles tender 
submission 

                                            
3
 The concessionary membership offer has 15 categories offering those eligible for benefits, 
and their dependants, reduced rates on activities at all of the Council’s leisure centres 

3



• Liaison with stakeholders 

• Linkage to the Council’s corporate plan  
 
2.4 A summary document will clearly set out the headlines of the Plan and 

be available to customers, staff and other key stakeholders. The 
document will be printed in a format consistent to previous contract 
years. (Appendix Two, Fusion’s 2012/13 Summary Plan).  

 
2013/14 Targets  
 
3.1  Key targets committed to in the 2013 /14 Plan include:  
 

Key 2013/ 2014 objectives 2012/13 
target 

2013/14 
target 4 

To reduce the subsidy per user in leisure facilities 71 pence 65 pence 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by users resident in the most 
deprived wards in the city 

120,750 
visits 

126,788 
visits 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by users aged over 50 years of age 

69,300 visits 72,765 visits 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by Women and girls. 

325,500 
visits 

341,775 
visits 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by users aged under 16 years. 

127,500 
visits 

133,875 
visits 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by users from Black, Minority and 
Ethnic groups. 

54,400 visits 57,120 visits 

To deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in 
participation by disabled users. 

11,600 visits 12,180 visits 

To maintain customer satisfaction levels above 
95%. 

96 per cent 96 per cent 

To maintain Quest accreditation at five facilities at 
least “good” level  

 

5 facilities 

 
5 facilities 
 

A reduction in utility consumption across the 
Councils leisure facilities; against the 2012/13 
baseline. 

 
2 per cent 

 
2 per cent 

Work with the Council to implement measures to 
reduce carbon emissions in leisure centres 
(equivalent to 5% of previous year’s emissions) 

 
5 per cent 

 
5 per cent 

Work with the Council to implement measures to 
reduce water consumption in leisure centres 
(equivalent to 3% of previous year’s consumption) 

 
3 per cent 
 

 
3 per cent 
 

 
Performance management  
 
4.1  There will be an ongoing review and monitoring process for delivery of 

the plan. This will incorporate continuous management scrutiny, 

                                            
4
 
4
 April 2012 to January 2013. 

4



monthly client performance reports, monthly meetings between key 
representatives of the Council and Fusion, quarterly Leisure 
Partnership Board meetings and a formal review in advance of the 
2014/15 planning protocol.  

 
Level of risk  
 
5.1  There is a medium level of risk to service provision. Descriptions and 

mitigation for this level of risk are demonstrated in the Risk Register, 
(Appendix Three).  

 
Climate change / environmental impact  
 
6.1  The Plan has specific targets and actions that will have a positive 

environmental impact. These will significantly contribute to the 
Council’s commitment for tackling climate change and promoting 
sustainable environmental resources, and it will contribute to the 
Council’s delivery of reduction of carbon and water reduction targets. 
Actions within the Plan will engage fully with the Council’s Carbon 
Management Plan, reduce water consumption and reduce waste sent 
to landfill and increase recycling waste. 

 
Equalities impact  
 
7.1  Targets and actions within the Plan will ensure equitable access to 

improved facilities and encourage increased usage for under 
represented and concessionary groups, in accordance with the 
Councils equalities impact assessments and action plan, (Appendix 
Four).  

 
Financial implications  
 
8.1  The Plan targets a year on year 10% reduction in net subsidy per user 

which they are on target to achieve for 2012/13. These savings are 
already reflected in the council’s budget and the risks for the financial 
targets are solely Fusions. The management agreement also contains 
provisions to share profits that are made above those agreed when the 
contract was agreed, with the majority share going to the council.  

 
Legal Implications  
 
9.1  The Council has a contractual relationship under which the council’s 

leisure facilities are managed by Fusion. The Leisure Management 
Agreement sets out the range of contractual requirements with which 
Fusion must comply. Fusions delivery of the matters set out in the Plan 
is one of these contractual commitments. 

 
 
 
 

5



 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name: Ian Brooke 
Job title: Head of Service 
Service Area / Department: Leisure and Parks 
Tel:  01865 252727 e-mail:  ibrooke@oxford.gov.uk 
 

 
List of background papers: None 
Version number: 4.0 
 

6



ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN

CLIENT:

PERIOD: From

To

SUBMITTED BY:

Divisional Business Manager

Head of Operations

March 2014

OXFORD CITY COUNCIL

April 2013

Steve Holt

7



S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

:

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
:

T
h

is
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
le

is
u

re
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

fr
o

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
.

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 t

o
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
 t

h
e

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
e

t 

o
u

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
o

s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
.

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
th

e
 i
n
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

e
e
k
ly

 t
ra

d
in

g
 

(f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
) 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
;

T
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 a

n
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

, 
a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 

a
 

d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

te
x
t,

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
o

s
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 r

is
k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

. 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
, 

o
n

c
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

, 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

W
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
.

* 
 F

2
  
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e

T
w

o
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
"f

in
a
n
c
ia

l"
 i
s
s
u
e
s
:

T
h

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
, 

m
o

n
th

ly
 

u
p

d
a

te
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
, 

m
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 k

e
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 a
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

* 
 F

1
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 1

0
%

 y
e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s
e
r

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 p

ri
c
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
R

P
I 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 c

o
re

 

p
ri
c
e
s
  
a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 p

ri
c
in

g
.

8



P
A

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

:

* 
 P

8
  
T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
.

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

a
rd

s
, 
d
ir
e
c
t 
m

a
il 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
;

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
lit

e
ra

tu
re

 a
n
d
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
, 
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 O

C
C

 s
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P

C
T

 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
;

* 
 P

2
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

5
0

N
in

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
" 

is
s
u

e
s
:

* 
 P

1
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y

* 
 P

3
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 p
a
rt

y
, 
a
q
u
a
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
lid

a
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ts

, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

;

* 
 P

5
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 u

s
e
rs

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
t,
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
a
d
d
-o

n
s
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 h

o
u
rs

;

* 
 P

4
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 u

s
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
m

a
il 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
m

b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
;

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

v
is

e
d
 a

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
a
d
d

-

o
n
s
;

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 I
F

I 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
;

* 
 P

6
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 j
u
n
io

r 
s
w

im
m

in
g

* 
 P

7
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 3

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 6

0
+

 s
w

im
m

in
g
 

* 
 P

9
  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 5

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 f
e
m

a
le

 u
s
e
rs

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 'A

c
ti
v
e
 W

o
m

e
n
 P

ro
je

c
t' 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 S

p
o
rt

 

E
n
g
la

n
d
.

9



C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

:

H
E

A
L
T

H
 A

N
D

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

:

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

, 
re

g
u

la
r 

a
u

d
it
s
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
.

* 
H

S
1

  
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
 H

&
S

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
u

ll 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

k
in

g
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
c
a

n
c
e

lla
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
.

* 
C

R
 3

  
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
5

%
 i
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a

tt
ri
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 f

o
r 

S
lic

e
 C

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

s

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
;

* 
C

R
 2

  
T

o
 f

u
lly

 e
m

b
e

d
 F

u
s
io

n
's

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s

T
h

re
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

to
 "

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
" 

is
s
u

e
s
:

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

F
u

s
io

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

U
s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
, 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fo

ru
m

s
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

B
S

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
;

O
n

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
" 

is
s
u

e
s
:

* 
C

R
 1

  
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

t 
le

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 9
5

%

10



F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

:

* 
F

M
6
  
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 Q
u
e
s
t 
a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
a
 m

in
im

u
m

 'G
o
o
d
' a

t 
F

e
rr

y
 L

. 
C

, 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 L

.C
, 
H

in
k
s
e
y
 O

u
td

o
o
r 

P
o
o
l,
 O

x
fo

rd
 I
c
e
 R

in
k
 a

n
d
 B

a
rt

o
n
 L

. 
C

.

* 
F

M
1
  
T

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 B

a
s
e
 C

a
m

p
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

c
o
re

s
 o

f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
9
5
%

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
F

M
 s

u
b
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
lif

e
c
y
c
le

 w
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
in

v
e
n
to

ry
;

* 
F

M
2
  
T

o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 f
u
lly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 "
 T

o
 t
a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t"

 a
n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
 5

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 3

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

a
te

r 
u
s
a
g
e

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 1

0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
re

g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
fa

ilu
re

 t
re

n
d
s
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
m

e
d
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

a
s
e
 C

a
m

p
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
;

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
ig

u
re

s
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
IS

O
1
4
0
0
1
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
la

n
s
;

* 
F

M
4
  
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
h
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
re

g
u
la

r,
 d

e
e
p
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
re

g
u
la

r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

le
a
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
;

* 
F

M
5
  
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
h
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
 I
M

S
 a

u
d
it
, 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
m

y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t

p
la

n
s
.

S
e
v
e
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
"f

a
c
ili

ty
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t"

 i
s
s
u
e
s
:

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
IS

O
1
4
0
0
1
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 l
if
e
c
y
c
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
;

* 
F

M
7
  
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 q
u
a
lit

y
 ' 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
s
' (

IM
S

) 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s
 

* 
F

M
3
  
T

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
re

fu
s
e
 b

y
 2

5
%

 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 w

a
s
te

 b
y
 2

5
%

K
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 a

n
y
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

11



S
T

A
F

F
IN

G
:

* 
S

2
  

T
o

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 a
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

ta
ff

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 e

a
c
h

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 s

tr
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 

o
v
e

ra
ll

T
h

re
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

to
 "

s
ta

ff
in

g
" 

is
s
u

e
s
:

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
, 

fu
ll 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

w
it
h

 H
R

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
io

n
 p

la
n

;

* 
S

1
  

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

la
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 R
ig

h
t 

T
im

e

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 H
R

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
jo

b
 d

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
s
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

s
 a

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

o
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

c
o

a
c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
;

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
.

* 
S

3
  

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
s
io

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 i
s
 a

s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

12



M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

:

* 
M

4
  

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

F
iv

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
" 

is
s
u

e
s
:

* 
M

3
  

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
;

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

jo
u

rn
e

y

* 
M

1
  

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 P
R

, 
s
u

c
h

 t
h

a
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
d

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
le

a
r 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
, 

id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
a

s
u

ra
b

le
 K

P
Is

 r
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 k

e
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
o

m
m

s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t;

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

, 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
, 

5
0

+
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

/s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

re
 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
;

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 p
ro

d
u

c
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

b
ir
th

d
a

y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
, 

a
q

u
a

ti
c
s
 a

n
d

 

P
ri
m

e
ti
m

e
, 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

t 
ic

e
 r

in
k
, 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 u

p
d

a
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
;

* 
M

5
  

T
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ty
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n

13



K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
la

n
s
.

* 
F

D
1

  
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s

* 
S

C
D

1
  

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

S
C

D
 n

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

O
A

 a
n

d
 F

A
N

S
/F

A
C

S
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

O
x
fo

rd
-s

p
e

c
if
ic

 2
0

1
3

 p
la

n
;

* 
S

C
D

5
  

T
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 t

o
 G

M
s
;

S
ix

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t"

 i
s
s
u

e
s
:

* 
S

C
D

3
  

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
c
it
in

g
, 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

rs

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o

o
l,
 s

p
o

rt
s
 h

a
ll,

 s
tu

d
io

, 
h

o
lid

a
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
c
e

 r
in

k
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

;

S
P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

:

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 u

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 l
is

t 
o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
, 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 s

p
o

rt
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
jo

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
;

* 
S

C
D

2
  

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s

O
n

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"f
a

c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t"

 i
s
s
u

e
s
:

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

lu
b

 r
e

g
is

te
r,

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
lia

is
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 c
lu

b
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

lo
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
n

e
w

 c
lu

b
s
;

* 
S

C
D

4
  

T
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

s
p

o
rt

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 a

n
d

 P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ic
s
 

* 
S

C
D

6
  

T
o

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 l
if
e

s
ty

le
s

14



* 
P

D
5

  
T

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 F
u

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

id
e

r 
lia

is
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 

F
u

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
;

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
;

* 
P

D
1

  
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

a
g

re
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

* 
P

D
4

  
T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
rd

 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

t 
A

le
x
a

n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 a
n

d
 H

o
rs

p
a

th
 T

ra
c
k
;

* 
P

D
2

  
T

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 F

u
s
io

n
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd

K
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
, 

fu
ll 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

c
lie

n
t 

lia
is

o
n

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

fu
ll 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o

a
rd

;

F
iv

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

"p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t"

 i
s
s
u

e
s
:

* 
P

D
3

  
T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 p

o
o

l

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
:

15



IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 T
O

 T
H

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
:

* 
 a

s
s
im

ila
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

;

T
h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
o
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
.

T
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

:

* 
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
e

rt
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
h

e
a

d
;

* 
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 d

a
te

;

* 
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
s
;

T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 m

a
in

 s
e
v
e
n
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
a
s
 

fo
llo

w
s
: 
 B

a
rt

o
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o
l,
 F

e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 

H
in

k
s
e
y
 O

u
td

o
o
r 

P
o
o
l,
 O

x
fo

rd
 I
c
e
 R

in
k
 a

n
d
 T

e
m

p
le

 C
o
w

le
y
 P

o
o
ls

.

T
h
is

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 a
im

s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
le

is
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
.

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 i
s
 t
o
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

o
s
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
.

In
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h
is

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 k

e
y
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
W

o
rl
d
 C

la
s
s
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 W

o
rl
d
 C

la
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
. 
 T

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 F

u
s
io

n
 h

a
v
e
 e

n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 a
 t
e
n
-y

e
a
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

, 
d
u
ri
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 b

o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
 i
n
te

n
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
v
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 a

n
d

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
's

 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
w

a
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r-

fa
c
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

e
v
e
n
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 3

0
th

 2
0
0
9
.

16



C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
:

* 
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 c
a

le
n

d
a

rs
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
;

* 
 d

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
;

* 
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

- 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l,
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
, 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

F
M

, 
s
ta

ff
in

g
, 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
,

T
h

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

* 
 a

n
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

;

s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t;

* 
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
m

a
rk

e
t,

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
k
e

y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
;

* 
 c

o
n

fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 P
la

n
.

* 
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

tw
e

lv
e

 m
o

n
th

s
;

* 
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
, 

w
it
h

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
, 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
;

* 
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
;

* 
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 m

e
a

s
u

ra
b

le
 (

"S
M

A
R

T
")

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 P
la

n
;

* 
 a

s
s
im

ila
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

;

* 
 a

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 r

is
k
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

.

* 
 a

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
;

* 
 a

 d
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

, 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
d

, 
w

h
e

re
 

re
le

v
a

n
t,

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r;

17



C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 A
N

N
U

A
L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
:

R
E

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
:

* 
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
2

: 
 P

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

ra
ft

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 t

o
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
;

T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

* 
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
: 

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

* 
 A

p
ri
l 
1

3
: 

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 b

y
 O

C
C

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

.

T
h

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:

* 
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
1

2
: 

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
;

T
h

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
:

* 
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

t 
s
it
e

, 
d

iv
is

io
n

a
l,
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

W
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
.

* 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
: 

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 C

it
y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

;

* 
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3
: 

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 F

u
s
io

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

;

* 
 m

o
n

th
ly

 u
p

d
a

te
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 F

u
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il;

* 
 m

o
n

th
ly

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 k

e
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il;

* 
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
;

18



O
x

fo
rd

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
s

ta
ff

in
g

 s
tr

u
c

tu
re

:

S
te

v
e
 H

o
lt

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

S
te

v
e
 L

e
e

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

J
u
lia

 B
u
rs

o
n

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
S

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

G
e
n
e
ra

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

K
e
it
h
 A

u
s
ti
n

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

D
a
v
id

 H
u
n
t

G
e
n
e
ra

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

(B
a
rt

o
n
 P

o
o
l 

a
n
d
 H

in
k
s
e
y
)

V
a
c
a
n
t

G
e
n
e
ra

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

(B
la

c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
, 

T
e
m

p
le

 C
o
w

le
y
 

&
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 

P
o
o
l)

D
a
v
id

 E
v
a
n
s

G
e
n
e
ra

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

(F
e
rr

y
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
)

J
o
h
n
 H

a
rr

is

G
e
n
e
ra

l

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

(O
x
fo

rd
 I
c
e
 

R
in

k
)

(V
a
c
a
n
t)

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

19



SERVICE PLANNING CONTEXT

INTRODUCTION:

PARTNERSHIP BOARD OBJECTIVES:

*  continued engagement with and participation by the Council's target groups, as follows: 

5% increase in participation by users resident in the most deprived wards in Oxford, 5% 

increase in participation by new users, 5% increase in participation by users who are 

members of BME groups, 5% increase in participation by users with disabilities, 5% 

increase in participation in the junior free swim scheme. (PB 2)

The over-riding objective of the Partnership Board is to ensure that the leisure facilities 

deliver a service that is "World Class for Everyone".

The specific themes identified for service performance in 2013/14 are as follows:

*  the analysis of contract performance to date;

* to provide diversionary activities  to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour (PB 7)

* to improve the health and well-being of local communities by engaging people in 

physical activity (PB 6)

*  continued engagement with reducing CO2 Emissions   -  delivery of 5%year-on-year 

reduction in carbon emissions and a 3% reduction in water (PB 1);

*  maintain a proactive and positive approach to Public Relations, such that facility and 

service successes are communicated and celebrated (PB 3);

*  improving access to the facilities (e.g. car parking) (PB 4)

*  to explore opportunities for the Council and Fusion to extend their relationship in 

respect of other facilities in Oxford (PB 5).

The purpose of this section of the Annual Service Plan is to establish the context in which 

the planning activity will take place.  This context incorporates a range of national, local 

and organisational factors, as follows:

In the notes that follow, we have set out the key principles within each of these factors.

These principles are then summarised in the form of a Strengths, Weaknesses, 

Opportunities & Threats (SWOT) analysis for the current service.

*  the analysis of the markets affecting the leisure facilities, including industry 

developments, national trends, regional and local market factors.

*  the findings of the Sport England National Benchmarking Surveys undertaken in 

respect of 5 of the facilities;

*  the commitments and intentions set out in Fusion's Best And Final Offer (BAFO)  tender

submission;

*  Fusion's corporate objectives as reflected in the company's 1 and 3-year Business 

Plans

*  the objectives as set out by the Partnership Board;

20



OXFORD CITY COUNCIL CORPORATE OBJECTIVES:

The Annual Service Plan is also influenced by the City Council's broader corporate 

objectives.  The relevant objectives are incorporated into the Corporate Plan 2012-2016 

and those objectives with specific relevance to the leisure facilities are as summarised 

below:

*  Vibrant, sustainable economy:  "...Over the next 4 years, the city council will invest 

around £68m into the local economy - building new houses, by employment-led 

development and by improving the city's leisure offer.... we will increase  the proportion of 

apprenticeships created through Council investment for those who live in Oxford City to 

100% by 2015/16; Increase the number of jobs created through Council investment 

projects and other activities to over 850 by 2015/16; Increase City Council spend with 

local businesses to 48% by 2015/16... (OCC 1).

*  Meeting Housing Needs:  Deliver a programme of new homes and community 

facilities across the city. (OCC 2);

Invest £1.4m to support a range of voluntary and community organisations and 

volunteering; Further increase levels of adult participation in sport, through building a 

competition-standard pool in Blackbird Leys and programmes such as 'Healthy Walks' 

and 'Active Women'; Continue to work with partners to provide positive activities for 

young people in deprived areas...." (OCC 3);

*  Cleaner, Greener Oxford: The City Council's objective is to maintain and develop a 

cleaner City. To tackle climate change and promote sustainable environment, greener 

Oxford - in the city centre, in outer neighbourhoods and in all public spaces " We will .... 

Reduce the city's carbon footprint by 5% each year; increase satisfaction with our street 

cleaning from 75% in 2014/15; increase the percentage of waste collected sent for reuse, 

recycling or composting to 52%; Reduce the Oxford City Council's water consumption by 

3% per annum..." (OCC 4);

*  Strong, Active Communities:  Communities that are socially cohesive and safe, and 

citizens who are actively engaged in pursuing their own well-being and that of their 

communities. We will "...Improve satisfaction with our neighbourhoods by 1% every year; 

Increase the percentage of adults participating in sport (as measured by the Annual Sport 

England Active People Survey); Increase the number of young people attending our 

Holiday Activity programme to more than 1,600 in 2015/16; Work with partners to break 

the cycle of deprivation by supporting vulnerable families, improving employability and 

reducing inequalities; Invest £33,000 per annum for three years commencing 2012 to 

enable more effective use of Oxford City leisure facilities by schools, £28,000 per annum 

for young people to access free swimming and £240,000 per annum to provide support 

where there have been changes to youth provision; Invest £9.2m the construction of a 

new competition-standard swimming pool at Blackbird Leys; Invest £50,000 over two 

years so that councillors can bid to fund projects with social inclusion aims; 

21



The Sports Strategy incorporates a Sports and Physical Activity Action Plan with 

the following key elements:

* to identify and evidence the key Focus Sports for the Council (confirmed as swimming, 

football, skating & StreetSports, with other prioritised sports being badminton, dance, 

tennis, rugby, cricket & athletics);

*  Efficient, Effective Council: Oxford City Council aspires to be an efficient and 

effective council by being a flexible and digitally enabled organisation, delivering high-

quality, value-for-money services ."… we will increase the percentage of customers 

satisfied at their first point of contact across all access channels (web, telephone, face to 

face) to 75%; reduce the cost of delivering Council services per resident from £172 in 

2011/12 to £162 in 2014/15; Deliver efficiency Savings of £7 million by 2012/13 and over 

£17m by 2015/16; Achieve IIP Gold by 2013/14; further improve attendance rates; 

continue to strengthen working relationships between management and trade unions..." 

(OCC 5).

* to identify key challenging sporting projects within the City leisure service area and 

prioritise them accordingly;

* to deliver key projects (e.g. competition-standard-pool, Barton pavilion, five-a-side 

* to improve governance (e.g. chair CSN, attendance at relevant stakeholder meetings);

* to review focus sports;

* to improve performance management;

* to crystallise the Council’s role in providing a Sport & Physical Activity offer;

* to show how the Council links in to the Sport & Physical Activity national & local priorities

and agendas;

Further, the Council has drawn up a specific Sports Strategy which seeks to 

achieve the following objectives:

* to ensure effective access to leisure facilities.

* to increase participation;

* to ensure City Leisure is resourced effectively;

22



FUSION CORPORATE OBJECTIVES:

*  to provide leisure facilities which provide excellent value for money measured by 

subsidy per user that reduces year on year;

*  to maintain overall satisfaction above 95%

*  to increase participation in adult sport by 2% 

*  to contribute to the delivery of the Council’s targets of reducing carbon emissions from 

Council buildings by 5% year-on year and 3% reduction in water consumption.

*  to increase total usage of the Council’s leisure facilities by 5% 

*  to maintain Quest accreditation score of at least 'Good'.

Fusion's corporate vision is "to be the first choice leisure organisation, delivering a new 

standard in healthy active leisure", and this vision is reflected in the company's three core 

values of "We put the Customer First", "We make it happen" and "We only want the best".

*  to ensure 97% "good"/"excellent" for overall customer satisfaction and 100% "good"/ 

"excellent" for staff (Fus 4);

*  to increase Bonus card membership by 5% 

Key commitments agreed within the business planning process are:

*  to ensure 100% compliance with Basecamp inspection regimes and to deliver an 

average score of at least 95% on Basecamp inspection scores (Fus 8);

*  to deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in like-for-like general participation (Fus 6);

*  to reduce attrition of subscription memberships to less than 50% per annum (Fus 5);

*  to deliver a 5% year-on-year increase in like-for-like participation by target groups (Fus 

The specific targets specifically established for 2013 are as follows:

*  to deliver all facility redevelopments on time and on budget and to deliver the projected 

uplifts (Fus 2);

*  to deliver a surplus margin of 5% (Fus 3);

Fusion's five-year and annual corporate business plans reflect this vision and these core 

values and incorporate five strategic strands as follows:  "Sustainable Growth and 

profitability", "Customer First", "Efficiency, Effectiveness and the Highest Quality Service", 

"Fusion People" and "New Business Development", as well as financial targets.

*  to deliver a 5% year-on-year increase on like-for-like income (Fus 1);

*  to deliver a 2% year-on-year reduction on like-for-like energy consumption (Fus 10);

*  to deliver Quest accreditation rating of "Good"; Mystery Visit scores to be 100% and 

EFQM Committed to Excellence   (Fus 9);

* Achieve turnover of 72 million pounds (Fus 12)
*  to win 2 new partnerships with combined turnover of 6-10 million per annum (Fus 11).

AGREED COMMITMENTS WITHIN THE BUSINESS PLANNING PROCESS:

*  to increase the total number of members by 10% 

23



SPORT ENGLAND NATIONAL BENCHMARKING SURVEYS:

MARKET ANALYSIS:

Disabled Users:

*  Disadvantage usage is above NBS benchmark average, though there is less use from 

those unemployed

Disadvantage users

*  approximately 10.6million disabled people in the country;

*  Sport England market segmentation research shows that disabled users are spread 

*  consumers view keeping fit as more important than many other leisure activities and are

less willing to cut back spending on this area than many others;

*  the gap between participation by men and women is greater amongst certain BME 

groups (e.g. "Black Other");

*  the key 25-34 age band is set to increase most significantly, along with the 45-54 age 

group, which could also prove to be a lucrative market if targeted correctly;

Users from BME groups:

*  participation levels (40%) are generally lower than that of the wider population (46%)

*  typical sport preferences amongst BME groups include weight training, martial arts, 

badminton, cricket and basketball.  Swimming is typically not preferred;

*  "Above industry average" customer satisfaction performance at Barton Pool, Blackbird 

Leys Leisure Centre, Hinksey Pool and Ferry Leisure Centre. OIR was perceived to be

below industry standards due mainly to poor food and drink, poor equipment and activity 

charge/fee.

Sport England Benchmarking Surveys are undertaken on a bi-annual basis. During the 

first part of 2011, Sport England National Benchmarking Surveys were undertaken at 

Barton Pool, Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre, Ferry Leisure Centre, Hinksey Outdoor Pool.

The Survey processes involved an analysis of financial and usage statistics for the 

facilities (in year 2010/11) and sample surveys of customer satisfaction undertaken in the 

summer 2011.  Oxford Ice Rink was surveyed in September 2012 and utilised financial 

information from 2011/12 The findings are summarised as follows:

*  less money in their pockets may put consumers off joining a health and fitness club or 

steer them towards less expensive options;

General Consumer trends:

National Context:

*  Areas of good satisfaction across all sites for; helpfulness of staff, standards of 

coaching, general cleanliness and activity range. Areas of poor satisfaction include quality 

and value for money of food and drink.

*   "Mixed" access performance at Ferry Leisure Centre and Hinksey Pool Oxford Ice Rink 

and Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre. With the exception of the Ice Rink there is a relative 

higher attendance of 11 - 19 year olds.

*  "Strong" financial performance at; Ferry, Ice Rink, Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre. 

"Weak" performance at Barton. (NB financial figures for Barton were 2010/11 which were 

prior to new fitness facility development). Subsidy per user in the top quartile at Ferry and 

Oxford Ice Rink. 

24



*  current penetration/participation rates are relatively low particularly the 11 - 19 year olds

(based on NBS reports and U16 free swimmers);

*  circa 18,000 (i.e. 13.2%) increase in population in Oxford City projected between 2001 

and 2016;

*  tuition KPI decreased by 2.6% to 18.3% (ranked 4th in Oxon);

*  Oxford is reporting an aging population for the first time in recent history

*  wards with particularly high projected increases include Barton & Sandhills (46%), 

Cowley Marsh (26%) and Carfax (24%);

Users under 16:

Active People Surveys:

Oxford-specific Context:

General Population Projections:

*  slight decrease (0.7%) projected in Blackbird Leys;

*  participation (3 x 30 minutes per week) KPI @ 25.5% (ranked 2nd in Oxon);

*  volunteering KPI increased 3.5% to 5.8% (ranked 3th in Oxon);

*  current penetration/participation rates have improved (based on NBS reports) 

*  club membership KPI decreased by 4.8% to 27.2% (ranked 5th in Oxon);

*  a review has been undertaken of the key deprived wards within Oxford and how those 

wards might be better served by Oxford's leisure facilities.  The key wards for focus are 

as follows:  Barton and Sandhills, Headington Hill and Northway, and Quarry and 

Risinghurst (all directly served by Barton Pool), Rose Hill and Iffley, Littlemore, Northfield 

Brook, Blackbird Leys and Cowley (all directly served by Temple Cowley Pools, Blackbird 

Leys Leisure Centre and Blackbird Leys Pool) and Carfax (served to some extent by 

Ferry Leisure Centre).

Users over 50:

*  relatively large BME population (16.6%) in facility catchment areas, particularly amongst

under 16s (19.8%);

*  people of Black and Bangladeshi ethnic origin are at particular risk of unemployment
*  increased diversity in recent years, through influx of people from new EU countries;

(NB.  Oxfordshire is the highest overall scoring county in the country in respect of Active 

People Participation).

*  recognised that this remains a significant potential market, with up to 120,000 potential 

users aged over 50 in the wider catchment for the leisure facilities;

Users from BME groups:

*  competition KPI decreased by 9.6% to 6.9% (ranked 5st in Oxon);
*  satisfaction KPI reduced to 60.2% (ranked 5th in Oxon);

Deprived Wards:

to 39.1%  (ranked  3rd in Oxon);

*  participation (1 X 30minutes per week) kpi increased 

25



 * The key factors to be addressed according to non-users are lack of time, which has the 

highest importance factor at 49% stating very important. Direct costs (17%); lack of 

personal motivation (11%); indirect costs (9%).

Findings from non-user survey:

* 42% thought that they were regularly undertaking at least 5 x 30 minutes of moderate 

exercise (national benchmark 39%).12% said they had done no sessions, (national 

benchmark 15%). 

* The majority of the sample thought that regular exercise/activity was important with 68% 

stating very important (national benchmark 61%).

Non-user surveys are undertaken on a bi-annual basis. A street survey was undertaken 

in October 2011.  A total sample of 300 people were surveyed in the Summertown, 

Headington and Templars Square areas.  The research was designed to investigate 

attitudes and behaviour around exercise and to find out what the residents of the area 

think about the leisure facilities.  The key findings were as follows:

* 52% strongly agree that physical activity is good for your health even if moderate, 32% 

strongly agree it’s good for your health even if only for 10 minutes at a time. 43% strongly 

agree physical activity is better for you if you keep it up for at least 30 minutes and 16% 

strongly agree it’s better if you get out of breath.  38% either agree or strongly agree you 

can get enough in your daily life without doing sport or exercise.

* 62% of respondents are wanting to do more activity, slightly lower than the national 

benchmark of 67%), the main reason for this being “wanting to improve their health” at 

62%.  Slightly under half (47%) thought that not enough time due to work was the major 

factor in preventing them doing more, (national average 50%), followed by not enough 

time due to home at 11%.

* Of those who do not want to do more the main reason is “no need” at 56% (higher than 

the national average at 44%), followed by not enough time due to work at 13%.

* 52% of the sample would consider using Oxford Fusion Lifestyle facilities slightly higher 

than our national average of 60%. 

* The main reasons they don’t currently use were ‘No time’ (31%), ‘Cost’ (17%), and ‘No 

need’ (12%). 

* Of those that did exercise regularly, 18% used a leisure centre/health club Esporta and 

College/University facilities seem to be the main competitor at 25% each, followed by LA 

Fitness at 11%. The most popular form of independent activity was walking/jogging in the 

street/parks at 74%.

* The main thing, according to our respondents, that the facility could do to encourage 

usage amongst these non-users, would be to ‘Lower costs’ at 28% (lower than the 

national benchmark at 44%), followed by ‘more information’ (8%).

26



SWOT ANALYSIS:

Strengths:

Opportunities:

Weaknesses:

Threats:

Supporting Documentation:

Leisure Net Solutions "street Focus" non-user research 2011

Target Market Report - Deprived Wards (Hatrick Marketing, November 2009)

Target Market Report - Users over 50 (Hatrick Marketing, November 2009)

Target Market Report - Users under 16 (Hatrick Marketing, November 2009)

Target Market Report - Users from BME Groups (Hatrick Marketing, November 2009)

Oxford Regeneration Profile 2009 (Oxford City Council)

Target Market Report - Disabled Users (Hatrick Marketing, November 2009)

NBS surveys 2011

*  delivery of consistent increases in direct debit memberships;

*  improved facilities through developments and substantial maintenance programme

*  potential over-supply of pool water;

*  high and variable staff costs (as a percentage of income);
*  poor customer perception of the quality and value for money for food and drink

*  maintained improvements in cleaning standards;

*  consistent meeting, reporting and monitoring regimes with the Council;

*  positive impact of ISO14001 & ISO9002 accreditation process;

*  delivery of major wet/dry facility at Blackbird Leys;

*  challenge of delivering significant increases in income and participation;

*  increased car park charges at Ferry Leisure Centre and Oxford Ice Rink
*  the emergence of the budget gym market in Oxford

*  continued delivery of cultural change within management and staffing teams;

*  positive impact of delivery of lifecycle/substantive works;

*  continued partnership working between Fusion and the Council;

*  age and condition of some facilities (TCP, BBLSP);

*  positive impact of phase 2 facility developments at Oxford Ice Rink, Ferry, Barton and 

Blackbird Leys Leisure Centres;

* staffing establishment ensuring right people right place right time

*  response of competition to major facility developments; particularly the investment 

works at DW Fitness Facility near Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre.

* strong financial performance, particularly subsidy per user

*  variety and geographical spread of facilities within portfolio;

*  higher than industry average performance in respect of customer satisfaction (cf. NBS 

* Maintained high customer satisfaction and Mystery Visit results

Index of Multiple Deprivation Map (Department of Communities and Local Government, 

2007)

27



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L

F
1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

F
u

s
io

n
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
A

u
d

it
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

F
u

s
io

n
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 w
e

e
k
ly

 t
ra

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

it
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

.

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 w

e
e

k
's

 i
n

c
o

m
e

, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 s
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
c
e

lla
ti
o

n
s
.

4
T

o
 p

re
p

a
re

 d
ra

ft
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

te
a

m
)

5
T

o
 f

in
a

lis
e

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

te
a

m
)

6
T

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 t
o

 a
ll 

k
e

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

.
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

te
a

m
)

T
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 1

0
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s

e
r

3
 o

n
g

o
in

g

W
e

e
k
ly

 t
ra

d
in

g
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

t 

e
a

c
h

 s
it
e

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

28



F
2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 a
p

p
ly

 R
P

I 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o

re
 p

ri
c
e

s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
.

J
a

n
/A

p
r 

2
0

1
3

In
c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 f
o

rm
a

lly
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
p

ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ri
c
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

.

T
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
, 

th
e

 b
re

a
d

th
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
/c

lu
b

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 r

a
te

s

3
T

o
 a

g
re

e
 p

ri
c
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

P
ri
c
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

a
g

re
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

4
T

o
 a

g
re

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 p
ri
c
in

g

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 -
 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

g
re

e
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 p
ri
c
in

g

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

P
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

ri
c

in
g

 s
tr

u
c

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 l

e
is

u
re

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e

2
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

P
ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 

le
v
e

ls
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/5

D
B

M
g

r

29



P
A

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

P
1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a

rd
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
a

rg
e

t 

s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

te
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
o

s
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
/o

m
is

s
io

n

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

T
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 

s
tr

e
e

ts
/e

s
ta

te
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 m

a
p

p
e

d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

2
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
D

B
M

g
r

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

re
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

A
u

g
 2

0
1

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

re
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

D
e

c
 2

0
1

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

re
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
, 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

n
u

s
 c

a
rd

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
D

ir
e

c
t 

m
a

il 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
D

M
M

g
r

5
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

w
it
h

in
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
rd

s
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3

L
is

t 
o

f 
u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

c
re

a
te

d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

it
h

in
 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
rd

s
O

n
g

o
in

g

A
t 

le
a

s
t 

tw
o

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d

e
 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

d
is

c
o

u
n

te
d

 h
o

lid
a

y
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 c

ra
s
h

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
th

o
s
e

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

C
o

u
rs

e
s
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 a

n
d

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

T
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
in

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y

 u
s

e
rs

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 m

o
s

t 
d

e
p

ri
v

e
d

 w
a

rd
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

3

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 3

 t
im

e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 

e
a

c
h

 c
a

s
e

30



P
2

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
B

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r)

2
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
re

 l
it
e
ra

tu
re

 i
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

6
0
+

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

O
n
-g

o
in

g
F

u
ll 

s
e
t 
o
f 
lit

e
ra

tu
re

 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

D
M

M
g
r

3
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

5
0
+

 t
a
rg

e
t 
g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

re
a
d
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e

v
e
r 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 o
n
lin

e
D

M
M

g
r

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

5
0
.

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

, 
A

g
e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

a
re

, 
C

iv
ic

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
s
u
rg

e
ri
e
s
, 
V

e
te

ra
n
s
 S

p
o
rt

s
 

C
lu

b
s

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

A
u
g
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

6
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 G

P
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 r

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 

G
P

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

J
u
ly

 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
g

e
d

 o
v
e
r 

5
0

54
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

U
p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
B

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 P

ri
m

e
ti
m

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
h
re

e
 t
im

e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

in
 e

a
c
h
 c

a
s
e

31



P
3

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
B

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r)

R
e
v
is

e
 J

u
n
io

r 
A

q
u
a
ti
c
s
  
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

P
la

n
  
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
S

w
im

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
th

e
r 

a
q
u
a
ti
c
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
, 
m

in
i 
p
o
lo

, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 s

w
im

m
in

g
, 
fr

e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g

3
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 A

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
P

la
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

4

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 p

e
o
p
le

 

a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
6
.

A
p
r-

1
3

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 r

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
r 

1
6
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r.

T
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
 Y

o
u
th

 G
a
m

e
s
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
rs

o
n
 A

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

A
ls

o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 S
C

D
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 1

 t
a
s
k
s
 1

1
&

1
2

6
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
ju

n
io

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
6

2
D

S
C

D
 M

g
r

D
S

C
D

M
g
r

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

R
e
v
is

e
d
  
P

la
n
 P

ro
d
u
c
e
d

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s

A
t 
le

a
s
t 
1
 n

e
w

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
/a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

5

32



P
3

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

A
u
g
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

7
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 p

e
n
e
tr

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
e
n
e
tr

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

ra
w

 u
p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 s

o
 a

s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
; 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
it
 c

lu
b
 

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 t
a
s
te

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
; 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 O

x
fo

rd
 I
c
e
 

R
in

k
/H

in
k
s
e
y
 p

o
o
l 
w

it
h
 f
re

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
; 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
'S

p
o
rt

s
 

In
s
p
ir
e
d
' a

n
d
 'N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l's

 S
p
o
rt

s
 W

e
e
k
'; 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
'w

o
rk

 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
; 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 

o
f 
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

ro
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 d

e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
.

9
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 -

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

6

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 u

s
e
rs

 a
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e
r 

1
6

8
J
u
ly

 -
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

re
a
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

s
 c

o
a
c
h
in

g
 

o
ff
e
rs

, 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid

a
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
ju

n
io

r 
g
y
m

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t
o
 m

u
s
ic

 e
tc

.

33



P
4

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
B

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r)

2

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 p

e
o
p
le

 

fr
o
m

 B
M

E
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 r

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

B
M

E
 u

s
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r.

J
u
ly

- 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

J
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

4

T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 "

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

" 
w

it
h
 

w
h
o
m

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

B
M

E
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
A

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

.

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 -

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
a
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
e
ts

, 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

O
c
to

b
e
r 

- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 u

s
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p

s

34



P
5

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
B

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r)

2

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 u

s
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r.

T
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

is
a
b
le

d
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 D

a
y
 

a
n
d
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
S

p
o
rt

s

4
R

e
v
ie

w
 I
F

I 
a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

B
a
rt

o
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 

F
e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 I
F

I 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

t 
B

a
rt

o
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 F

e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 

C
e
n
tr

e
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2

IF
I 
a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

J
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

te
d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 d

is
a
b

le
d

 u
s
e
rs

3
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

35



P
6

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 j
u
n
io

r 

fr
e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 c

re
a
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ju

n
io

r 

fr
e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

G
M

s
)

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

A
u
g
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

D
e
c
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

4

In
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 O

C
C

 d
e
liv

e
r 

fu
n
d
e
d
 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 h

ig
h
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
in

g
 l
o
w

 r
a
te

s
 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

A
p
r-

1
3

S
w

im
m

in
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
M

M
g
r 

&
 G

M
s
)

5

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
d
-o

n
 /
 s

e
ll-

o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

P
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

3

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 j
u

n
io

r 
s
w

im
m

in
g

 

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
  
h
o
u
rs

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g

36



P
6

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

6

T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 a
q
u
a
ti
c
 

p
ro

d
u
c
t 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fr

e
e
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
).

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
  
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
, 
P

R
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
e
s
ti
m

o
n
ia

ls
, 

c
o
a
c
h
in

g
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

a
q
u
a
ti
c
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s
, 
S

w
im

a
th

o
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
, 

s
w

im
-f

it
 e

tc
. 
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
  
w

it
h
 A

m
a
te

u
r 

S
w

im
m

in
g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 

O
x
fo

rd
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 C

lu
b
, 
e
.g

. 
ta

le
n
t 
s
p
o
tt
in

g

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

P
7

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
w

im
m

e
rs

 a
g
e
d
 

6
0
+

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 c

re
a
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 6

0
+

 

s
w

im
m

in
g

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3
- 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 p

la
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 a
q
u
a
ti
c
 

p
ro

d
u
c
t

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
M

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
d
-o

n
 /
 s

e
ll-

o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 O

'6
0
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

.

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 l
o
y
a
lt
y
 c

a
rd

, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
, 
P

R
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
e
s
ti
m

o
n
ia

ls
, 

c
o
a
c
h
in

g
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

a
q
u
a
ti
c
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s
, 
S

w
im

a
th

o
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
, 

s
w

im
-f

it
, 
la

d
ie

s
 o

n
ly

 e
tc

. 
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

m
a
tu

e
r 

S
w

im
m

in
g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
.

4
D

M
M

g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 3

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 6
0
+

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 j
u

n
io

r 
s
w

im
m

in
g

 

37



P
8

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
/c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

T
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ig

n
a
g
e
, 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

ig
n
a
g
e
, 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

d
u
lt
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 s
p
a
c
e
s
, 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 s

ig
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
, 
b
ic

y
c
le

 r
a
c
k
s
 e

tc

2
R

e
v
is

e
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ig

n
a
g
e

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

R
e
v
is

e
d
 P

la
n
 c

re
a
te

d
D

M
M

g
r

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

v
is

e
d
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
ro

a
d
 s

ig
n
a
g
e

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
 -

D
e
c
 

2
0
1
4

R
e
v
is

e
d
 P

la
n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
D

M
M

g
r

1
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

P
la

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te

d

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 s

it
e
s

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

&
 

D
M

M
g
r(

w
it
h

G
M

s
)

38



P
9

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
B

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
S

C
D

M
g
r)

2

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
fo

u
r 

n
e
w

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 g

ir
ls

 t
h
a
t 
s
ig

n
 p

o
s
ts

 f
u
tu

re
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
e
is

u
re

 

c
e
n
tr

e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

4
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

D
e
v
 o

fr
)

3

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

a
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

o
m

e
n
 

a
n
d
 g

ir
ls

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

A
p
ri
l 
- 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g
r 

(w
it
h
 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 r

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
e
m

a
le

 u
s
a
g
e
 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r.

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
3

J
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 r

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
e
m

a
le

 u
s
e
.

J
u
ly

 -
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

J
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g
r

A
b
b
re

v
ia

ti
o
n
s

D
B

M
g
r

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

G
M

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

M
E

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g
r

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
S

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 5

%
 y

e
a
r-

o
n

-y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 W
o

m
e
n

 a
n

d
 G

ir
ls

 A
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 

39



C
U

S
T

O
M

E
R

 R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

C
R

 1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

.

P
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
G

M

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

 u
p

-t
o

-d
a

te
 

"C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
C

a
re

" 
n

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

.

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

c
a

re
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

P
le

a
s
e

 T
e

ll 
U

s
 W

h
a

t 
Y

o
u

 T
h

in
k
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 "

y
o

u
 s

a
id

, 
w

e
 d

id
" 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
, 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
, 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
ru

le
s
 a

n
d

 

e
ti
q

u
e

tt
e

.

3

T
o

 r
e

a
ff

ir
m

 c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
o

le
s
 o

f 
U

s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 

o
f 

th
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

in
 e

a
c
h

 c
a

s
e

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

U
s
e

r 
G

ro
u

p
 c

o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 r

o
le

s
 r

e
a

ff
ir
m

e
d

 

a
n

d
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

G
M

4
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
 p

o
o

l 
w

a
te

r 
te

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

s
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

M
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
G

M

5
T

o
 h

o
ld

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

2
 o

p
e

n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
fo

ru
m

s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 l
e

is
u

re
 

fa
c
ili

ty
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fo

ru
m

s
 h

e
ld

.
G

M

6
T

o
 h

o
ld

 m
o

n
th

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 l
e

is
u

re
 

fa
c
ili

ty
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 t

o
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 

h
e

ld
.

G
M

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 w
it
h

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

d
is

p
la

y
e

d
.

G
M

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r 

s
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
ls

 a
t 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 9
5

%

2
O

n
g

o
in

g

40



C
R

 2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 f

u
ll 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 o

f 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
im

e
ly

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 P

L
E

A
S

E
 T

E
L

L
 U

S
 W

H
A

T
 

Y
O

U
 T

H
IN

K
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 c

a
n

c
e

lla
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

m
y
s
te

ry
 v

is
it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
e

tc

2
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
a

re
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

ir
 i
n

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.
O

n
g

o
in

g
In

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
G

M

3

T
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 B

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
t 

F
e

rr
y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

B
la

c
k
b

ir
d

 L
e

y
s
 l
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 

B
a

rt
o

n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e

A
u

g
u

s
t 

- 
O

c
to

b
e

r 

2
0

1
3

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
D

B
M

g
r

4
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 b

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l 
N

o
n

 u
s
e

r 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

t 
3

 

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
O

c
t-

1
2

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
D

B
M

g
r

C
R

 3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ri
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

M
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 a

re
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

P
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r,

D
M

M
G

R
 (

w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

re
te

n
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

.
A

p
ri
l 
- 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

.

D
B

M
g

r,

D
M

M
G

R
 (

w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

re
te

n
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 -
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

C
a

le
n

d
a

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s

t 
5

%
 i

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

tt
ri

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
ls

 f
o

r 
S

li
c

e
 C

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

s

1
O

n
g

o
in

g
P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

G
M

T
o

 f
u

ll
y

 e
m

b
e

d
 F

u
s

io
n

's
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

41



A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

42



H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y

H
S

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 s
it
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
.

A
u

d
it
 t

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
, 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 

s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
, 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

to
ra

g
e

 a
re

a
s
.

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 H
&

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

.
o

n
g

o
in

g
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r,
  

(w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

S
a

fe
ty

 W
o

rk
in

g
 P

a
rt

y
.

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

W
o

rk
in

g
 P

a
rt

ie
s
 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 n

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 a
t 

a
ll 

le
is

u
re

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
 a

c
c
id

e
n

t 
s
ta

ts
, 

s
a

fe
ty

 t
ip

s
 e

tc
.

5
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
a

c
c
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
tr

e
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 

to
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 a
n

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
m

o
n

th
ly

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
id

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
tr

e
n

d
s
.

A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 b

y
 F

u
s
io

n
 H

&
S

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o

r 

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r.
N

o
v
 2

0
1

3
A

u
d

it
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
D

B
M

g
r,

 D
F

M
g

r 

(w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 F

u
s

io
n

 H
&

S
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

D
B

M
g

r,
  

D
B

M
 

(w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 u

p
 t

o
 

d
a

te
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

41
M

o
n

th
ly

A
u

d
it
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

43



H
S

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

8
T

o
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 

to
 f

o
rm

a
l 
H

&
S

 a
u

d
it
.

N
o

v
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

9
T

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 f
o

rm
a

l 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
(O

H
S

A
S

) 
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

s
a

fe
ty

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

O
H

S
A

S
 a

u
d

it
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
0

T
o

 d
ra

w
 u

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 

to
 O

H
S

A
S

 a
u

d
it
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
1

T
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 i
n

 

H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
T

ra
in

in
g

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
D

B
M

g
r 

(w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 F

u
s

io
n

 H
&

S
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

44



F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

F
M

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 

re
g

im
e

.
O

n
g

o
in

g
.

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 

B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

G
M

s

2
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 f
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 Q
4

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
te

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 

fa
ilu

re
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 i
n

s
ti
g

a
te

 w
e

e
k
ly

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

s

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 s
c
o

re
s
 

a
n

d
 f

a
ilu

re
s
, 

re
c
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s
.

5

T
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 c

lie
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 

a
n

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
a

b
le

s
 o

f 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 

fa
c
ili

ty
 (

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
).

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
a

b
le

s
 o

f 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

g
re

e
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 f
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 Q
1

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
te

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 

fa
ilu

re
s
.

J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

9
C

re
a

te
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
(B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 2
)

T
B

C
P

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
D

B
M

g
r 

(w
it
h

 

D
F

M
g

r)

4
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

in
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 s
it
e

.

T
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

 a
v

e
ra

g
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 s

c
o

re
s

 o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

9
5

%
 a

c
ro

s
s

 a
ll

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

45



F
M

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
0

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 u
s
e

 o
f 

B
a

s
e

 

C
a

m
p

. 
(B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 2
)

T
B

C
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r,
 D

F
M

g
r 

(w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

1
1

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 f
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 Q
2

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
te

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
2

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 

fa
ilu

re
s
.

O
c
to

b
e

r 
- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
3

T
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 c

lie
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 

a
n

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
a

b
le

s
 o

f 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

O
X

F
O

R
D

 I
c
e

 R
in

k
 (

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

).

U
p

o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

R
e

v
is

e
d

 T
a

b
le

s
 o

f 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

g
re

e
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
4

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 f
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 Q
3

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
n

d
 

c
re

a
te

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
5

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 

fa
ilu

re
s
.

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

 a
v

e
ra

g
e

 B
a

s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 s

c
o

re
s

 o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

9
5

%
 a

c
ro

s
s

 a
ll

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s

46



F
M

2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
ll 

IS
O

1
4

0
0

1
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
.

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
y
s
te

m
s

a
n

d

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
e

n
e

rg
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

T
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 "

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 H

e
a

rt
 o

f 
E

v
e

ry
th

in
g

 w
e

 

d
o

" 
c
a

rb
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

re
n

e
w

a
l 
o

f 
D

is
p

la
y
 E

n
e

rg
y
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

's
, 

u
ti
lit

ie
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
, 

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 O
C

C
 e

n
e

rg
y
 t

e
a

m
s
 

'E
n

e
rg

y
 e

x
c
e

s
s
' c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
, 

s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 m

o
n

th
ly

 

re
a

d
s
) 

g
re

e
n

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
, 

s
u

p
p

lie
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 c

a
rb

o
n

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 e

tc
. 

 A
ls

o
, 

to
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

th
e

 a
im

 t
o

 q
u

a
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
s
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 I
S

O
1

4
0

0
1

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

A
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

M
S

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 u

s
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
P

la
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
.

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
D

F
M

g
r 

(w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 f
u

ll
y

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 "
T

o
 t

a
c

k
le

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 5

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 y

e
a

r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 3

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 w
a

te
r 

u
s

a
g

e
.

47



F
M

2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 a
g

re
e

 a
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s

o
f 

O
C

C
 e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
te

a
m

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 u

ti
lit

y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 S

A
L

IX
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
.

K
e

y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 C
a

rb
o

n
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r.

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

w
it
h

 O
C

C
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
te

a
m

.

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

8
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

C
R

C
 E

n
e

rg
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n

to
  

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

 w
o

rk
s
.

W
o

rk
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

ir
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
in

g
 

u
n

it
s
, 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
o

ile
rs

, 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

H
P

 m
o

d
u

la
r 

u
n

it
s
.

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
n

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 

a
re

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 d

is
p

la
y
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

s
, 

tr
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 u
ti
lit

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ils

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 /

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

O
c
to

b
e

r 
- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

w
o

rk
s
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

9

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 d

a
te

s
 a

g
re

e
d

.

1
0

O
n

g
o

in
g

6

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

T
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 f
u

ll
y

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 "
T

o
 t

a
c

k
le

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 5

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 y

e
a

r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 3

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 w
a

te
r 

u
s

a
g

e
.

D
F

M
g

r

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

48



F
M

2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 g

re
e

n
 t

ra
v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 

e
a

c
h

 s
it
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

G
re

e
n

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 

re
v
is

e
d

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

.

D
B

M
, 

D
F

M
g

r 

(w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

T
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
G

re
e

n
 T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
.

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
G

re
e

n
 T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

B
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
.

F
M

3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
ll 

IS
O

1
4

0
0

1
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 i
n

it
ia

ti
n

g
 

a
n

y
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
  

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

O
n

-g
o

in
g

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
n

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

s
, 

tr
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 u
ti
lit

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ils

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 /

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

3
T

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
re

fu
s
e

 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
s
te

.
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
re

fu
s
e

 a
n

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
s
te

.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

2
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

G
re

e
n

 T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 

e
v
a

lu
a

te
d

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

re
fu

s
e

 b
y

 2
5

%
 a

n
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 r

e
c

y
c

li
n

g
 w

a
s

te
 b

y
 2

5
%

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

O
n

-g
o

in
g

N
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
.

21
2

T
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 f
u

ll
y

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

's
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 "
T

o
 t

a
c

k
le

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 5

%
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 y

e
a

r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 3

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 w
a

te
r 

u
s

a
g

e
.

49



F
M

4

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 d
e

e
p

 c
le

a
n

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
o

f 
th

e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 d
e

e
p

 c
le

a
n

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
- 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
 

a
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 (

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 a

n
d

 B
a

s
e

 

C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
o

re
s
).

M
o

n
th

ly
C

le
a

n
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
v
is

e
d

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
.

A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
C

le
a

n
in

g
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

S
y
s
te

m
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

F
M

5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

F
M

 s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 Q
4

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
ra

w
n

 

u
p

.

D
F

M
g

r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
F

a
c
ili

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

F
M

g
r

3

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
n

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
fa

ilu
re

s
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 (

c
f.

 "
O

u
t 

o
f 

O
rd

e
r"

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

).

o
n

-g
o

in
g

S
y
s
te

m
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 a
n

d
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
c

le
a

n
in

g
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s

50



F
M

5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

4
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

u
ll 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
le

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 

lig
h

t 
o

f 
a

n
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

.
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

D
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
F

M
g

r

5
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
lif

e
c
y
c
le

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
L

if
e

c
y
c
le

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
F

M
g

r

6
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

. 
(C

A
P

E
X

)
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 t

im
e

 

a
n

d
 o

n
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
- 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

L
if
e

c
y
c
le

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r

F
M

5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

8
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

u
ll 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

in
v
e

n
to

ry
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
.

O
c
t 

- 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

3
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
in

v
e

n
to

ry
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

9
T

o
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
 c

a
p

e
x
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t/

re
n

e
w

a
l 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
.

D
e

c
-1

3
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

re
a

te
d

.

D
F

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

1
0

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

F
M

 s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 Q
1

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
ra

w
n

 

u
p

.

D
F

M
g

r

1
1

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
F

M
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

F
M

g
r

1
2

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

F
M

 s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 Q
2

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
ra

w
n

 

u
p

.

D
F

M
g

r

1
3

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
F

M
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

O
c
to

b
e

r 
- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

F
M

g
r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s

51



F
M

5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
4

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

F
M

 s
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n

 Q
3

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 d

ra
w

 u
p

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
ra

w
n

 

u
p

.

D
F

M
g

r

1
5

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
F

M
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

.

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

F
M

g
r

F
M

6

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
.

o
n

g
o

in
g

P
la

n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 a

n
d

 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
.

G
M

s
 (

w
it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

2
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

G
M

s
 (

w
it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

3
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
m

y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o

p
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

M
y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o

p
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

.

G
M

s
 (

w
it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

G
M

s
 (

w
it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

5
T

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 Q
u

e
s
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

u
p

d
a

te
 v

is
it
s
 a

t 
 a

ll 
a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
.

A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d

H
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

n
d

 Q
u

e
s
t 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 Q

u
e

s
t 

a
c

c
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

 a
t 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 '
G

o
o

d
' 
a

t 
F

e
rr

y
 L

. 
C

, 
B

la
c

k
b

ir
d

 L
e

y
s

 L
.C

, 
H

in
k

s
e

y
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
P

o
o

l,
 

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
im

e
s

52



F
M

7

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
n

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 c

re
a

te
 a

n
y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
s

J
u

n
e

 -
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

d
h

e
re

n
c

e
 t

o
 F

u
s

io
n

's
 q

u
a

li
ty

 '
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
y

s
te

m
s

' 
(I

M
S

) 
p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s
 a

c
ro

s
s

 a
ll

 s
it

e
s

53



S
T

A
F

F
IN

G

S
1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
's

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

it
e

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 'R
ig

h
t 

P
e

o
p

le
, 

R
ig

h
t 

P
la

c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 R
ig

h
t 

T
im

e
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

S
ta

ff
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2

T
o

 f
o

rm
a

lly
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 H
u

m
a

n
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 r
e

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 

H
R

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
- 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fo

rm
a

l 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 f
o

r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 O

x
fo

rd
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

A
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.
D

B
M

g
r 

(w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5

T
o

 d
ra

w
 u

p
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
 s

ta
ff

 (
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
H

R
 t

e
a

m
).

 

P
la

n
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
ta

ff
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
io

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 

d
ra

w
n

 u
p

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 f

u
ll 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

u
ls

o
ry

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

tr
a

in
in

g

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 -

 M
a

c
h

 

2
0

1
4

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

1
0

0
%

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

8
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 H
R

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

S
y
s
te

m
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

9
C

o
m

m
it
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
v
e

s
to

rs
 I

n
 P

e
o

p
le

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 

'M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 m

ir
ro

r 
In

v
e

s
to

rs
 

In
 P

e
o

p
le

 p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

la
c

e
 a

t 
th

e
 R

ig
h

t 
T

im
e

54



S
2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

F
u

s
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

it
ia

l 

in
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

.

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 F
u

s
io

n
 C

o
lle

a
g

u
e

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u

rv
e

y
 

2
0

1
3

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

y
 

2
0

1
3

M
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
6

0
%

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

u
s
io

n
 C

o
lle

a
g

u
e

 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u

rv
e

y
.

M
a

y
 2

0
1

2
 -

 

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
2

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

4
T

o
 r

e
a

ff
ir
m

 a
n

d
 c

la
ri
fy

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
H

R
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 O
x
fo

rd
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

C
a

le
n

d
a

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

S
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 b
y
 e

a
c
h

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 

s
tr

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 c
a

s
e

.

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
A

n
a

ly
s
is

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 c

re
a

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 r

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 s

tr
a

n
d

s
.

M
a

y
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 F

u
s
io

n
 a

s
 

a
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

o
ic

e
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
re

a
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

s
 a

n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

o
ic

e
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
M

M
g

r)

T
o

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

 7
2

%
 s

ta
ff

 s
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s

 e
a

c
h

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 s
tr

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 o
v

e
ra

ll

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
s

io
n

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
n

 O
x

fo
rd

 i
s

 a
s

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 a

s
 p

o
s

s
ib

le
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

55



S
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

5

T
o

 c
o

lle
c
t 

a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

.

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
n

d
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

T
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

7
C

o
m

m
it
 t

o
 h

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

2
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

/w
o

rk
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
3

P
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

/A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

s

h
o

s
te

d

D
B

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
s

io
n

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
n

 O
x

fo
rd

 i
s

 a
s

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 a

s
 p

o
s

s
ib

le
 o

f 
th

e
 l

o
c

a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

56



M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

M
1

A
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o
n

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

T
a
rg

e
t 
/ 
K

P
I

L
e
a
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

1

T
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

P
R

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 n

e
w

 p
o
o
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 
T

e
m

p
le

 C
o
w

le
y
 P

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 

L
e
y
s
 P

o
o
l.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
R

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 P

R
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p

o
o
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
- 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
R

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

3

T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 P

R
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
O

x
fo

rd
 I
c
e
 

R
in

k
, 
B

a
rt

o
n
 a

n
d
 F

e
rr

y
.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
- 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
R

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

4

T
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 K

P
Is

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

x
fo

rd
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
 f
u
ll 

d
a
ta

 b
a
s
e
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

M
a
y
 2

0
1
3

M
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 K
P

Is
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

5

T
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

R
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 O

x
fo

rd
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
im

 

o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

6
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

R
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

7

T
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 2
0
1
3
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

o
f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

s
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
O

C
C

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 B

ra
n
d
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 .

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

e
ld

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

8
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 O

C
C

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 B

ra
n
d
in

g
 t
e
a
m

.

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
- 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h
 D

B
M

g
r)

T
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

a
 p

ro
a
c
ti

v
e
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 P
R

, 
s
u

c
h

 t
h

a
t 

fa
c
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

c
e
le

b
ra

te
d

57



M
2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

B
o

n
u

s
 S

lic
e

 

c
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
- 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

3

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o

n
u

s
 C

a
rd

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 

in
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
.

M
a

y
-1

3
D

ir
e

c
t 

m
a

il 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
M

E
 (

w
it
h

 

D
S

C
D

M
)

5
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
re

 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

ll 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 c

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
1

3
L

it
e

ra
tu

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
M

E

6
T

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 

s
tu

d
e

n
t 

o
ff

e
r 

to
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

lle
g

e
s
.

A
u

g
u

s
t 

1
2

 t
o

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

P
la

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

M
E

7
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

re
 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
 i
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

6
0

+
 c

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

F
u

ll 
s
e

t 
o

f 
lit

e
ra

tu
re

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
M

E

8
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

re
 l
it
e

ra
tu

re
 i
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
1

7
's

 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
.

J
u

n
-1

3
F

u
ll 

s
e

t 
o

f 
lit

e
ra

tu
re

 

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl
y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
M

E

1
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

T
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

B
o

n
u

s
 

c
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
.

T
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 5

%
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 c
o

n
c

e
s

s
io

n
a

ry
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
s

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

58



M
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 G
M

's
 ,

 

C
R

M
's

)

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 S
lic

e
 C

a
rd

  
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

S
c
o

p
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 A
c
ti
v
e

, 
A

q
u

a
 a

n
d

 B
o

n
u

s
 C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 c
a

rd
s
.

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
- 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

M
E

6
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 P
la

n
 t

o
 I

n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 I
m

o
ti
v
a

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

a
c
tu

a
l 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

.
A

p
r-

1
3

P
la

n
 c

re
a

te
d

.
H

o
M

7
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
Im

o
ti
v
a

.
M

a
y
 1

3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
P

la
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

H
o

M

1
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 c
e

n
tr

e
.

P
la

n
 c

re
a

te
d

.

T
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

a
 5

%
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 G
M

s
, 

C
R

M
's

)
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3

3
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
4

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
M

E

T
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

w
id

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 b

a
s
e

.
4

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)
P

la
n

 c
re

a
te

d
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

59



M
4

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

'C
h

ild
re

n
's

 b
ir
th

d
a

y
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 m

a
k
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 w

it
h

 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 

m
a

d
e

.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 G
M

s
)

2
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 a
q

u
a

ti
c
 

p
ro

d
u

c
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
.

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 G
M

s
)

3
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
 

Ic
e

 R
in

k
 t

o
 c

a
p

it
a

lis
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

.
M

E
 (

w
it
h

 G
M

)

4
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 O
IR

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
M

E
 (

w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

5

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

 p
la

n
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
la

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
M

E
 (

w
it
h

 G
M

s
)

7

T
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
a

te
ri
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
la

n
s
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 f

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

ff
e

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
3

P
la

n
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
.

H
o

F
, 

H
o

F
M

 

a
n

d
 D

B
m

g
r

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 o
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s

 a
re

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
, 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 

a
tt

ra
c

ti
v

e

60



M
5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

A
u

d
it
 t

h
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
J
o

u
rn

e
y
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 

F
u

s
io

n
 I

n
te

rg
ra

te
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
A

u
d

it
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

p
la

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

2
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
J
o

u
rn

e
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

.
M

a
y
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

M
E

 (
w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r 
&

 G
M

s
)

M
6

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 O

x
fo

rd
 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 u

p
-t

o
 d

a
te

.
A

p
ri
l 
- 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

W
e

b
s
it
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t

M
E

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r 
,G

M
s
 &

 

C
R

M
's

)

2

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

u
ti
lis

in
g

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 

p
u

b
lic

. 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 F

a
c
e

 b
o

o
k
, 

T
w

it
te

r 
a

n
d

 Y
o

u
T

u
b

e
.

M
a

y
 -

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

M
E

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r 
,G

M
s
 &

 

C
R

M
's

)

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

H
o

M
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g

H
o

F
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t

H
o

F
M

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
  

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

T
o

 e
s

ta
b

li
s

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
w

e
b

 a
n

d
 s

o
c

ia
l 

m
e

d
ia

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n

T
o

 e
s

ta
b

li
s

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
fa

c
il

it
y

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n

61



S
P

O
R

T
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

S
C

D
 1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e

 l
is

t 
o

f 
k
e

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 O

x
fo

rd
.

L
is

t 
to

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 B
ro

k
e

rs
, 

P
C

T
. 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 

S
p

o
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

O
C

C

2
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

3

T
o

 a
g

re
e

 a
 c

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 d

a
te

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
O

C
C

 S
p

o
rt

s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 t

o
 

in
it
ia

te
 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 .

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
D

a
te

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

4

T
o

 a
g

re
e

 j
o

in
t 

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
it
h

 O
C

C
 S

p
o

rt
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
  

fo
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

.

A
p

ri
l 
- 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
/a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

a
g

re
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

jo
in

t 
S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 -
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

7
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 'A

c
ti
v
e

 W
o

m
e

n
' p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
. 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

la
n

 a
g

re
e

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

8

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 'A
c
ti
v
e

 W
o

m
e

n
' p

ro
je

c
t;

 F
e

e
d

 b
a

c
k
 

o
n

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

c
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

9
E

v
a

lu
a

te
 'A

c
ti
v
e

 W
o

m
e

n
' s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 j
o

in
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

s
e

s
s
io

n
s

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

1
0

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

a
ll 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

x
fo

rd
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

p
o

rt
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

A
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

1

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
a

c
ti

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l

o
c

a
l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

L
is

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3

62



S
C

D
 1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 w

it
h

 O
C

C
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 'Y

o
u

th
 A

m
b

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 A
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
'

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
/s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

; 
P

o
lic

e
, 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 

F
u

tu
re

s
, 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

P
C

T
, 

Im
o

ti
v
a

, 

u
n

iv
e

rs
it
ie

s

1
2

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 A
m

b
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

P
la

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

1
3

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 j
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

tw
o

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
J
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

1
4

T
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 j
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

tw
o

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 -

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

J
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

S
C

D
 2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
  

a
n

 u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
a

ll 
s
p

o
rt

s
 

c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

R
e

g
is

te
r 

to
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 n
a

m
e

s
, 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

, 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
 a

n
d

 j
u

n
io

r 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
, 

a
n

y
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
, 

C
lu

b
m

a
rk

 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
, 

b
ro

a
d

e
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
.

2
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
o

f 
re

g
u

la
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 

a
ll 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 c
lu

b
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
1

3
C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

11
1

R
e

g
is

te
r 

u
p

-t
o

-d
a

te

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 c
lo

s
e

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s

 w
it

h
 l

o
c

a
l 

s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
a

c
ti

v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l

o
c

a
l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

O
n

g
o

in
g

63



S
C

D
 2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 c
lu

b
s
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 o

f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 n
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
n

 w
e

b
s
it
e

, 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
c
o

a
c
h

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

C
lu

b
m

a
rk

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
, 

c
o

n
c
e

rt
e

d
 "

O
p

e
n

 D
a

y
" 

 e
tc

.

4
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

O
n

g
o

in
g

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 s

p
o

rt
s
 c

lu
b

s
 w

it
h

in
 O

x
fo

rd
 

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 l
is

t 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
L

in
k
s

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
/c

re
a

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

6
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 s

p
o

rt
s
 c

lu
b

s
.

J
u

ly
 -

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
 

7
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
/l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
 

s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s
.

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 -

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

S
C

D
 3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
 t

h
e

 A
q

u
a

ti
c
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n

R
e

v
ie

w
  

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

b
u

d
g

e
ti
n

g
 &

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 r
e

g
is

te
rs

 i
f 

a
p

p
lic

a
b

le

2
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 A
q

u
a

ti
c
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
A

p
ri
l 
1

3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
P

la
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3 1

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
.

A
p

ri
l 
1

3
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

d

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 f

a
c

il
it

y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
c

it
in

g
, 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

v
e

 t
o

 u
s

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

u
s

e
rs

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

O
n

g
o

in
g

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 c
lo

s
e

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
s

 w
it

h
 l

o
c

a
l 

s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s

64



S
C

D
 3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

e
n

tr
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 3

 t
im

e
 a

 y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 

c
a

s
e

A
p

ri
l 
1

3

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
 &

 M
E

)

A
u

g
u

s
t 

1
3

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
 &

 M
E

)

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

1
3

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
 &

 M
E

)

4
T

o
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 a

t 
a

ll 
le

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 

p
re

p
a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

.
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 

a
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 p

re
p

a
re

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

5
T

o
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e

v
ie

w
 b

a
n

k
 h

o
lid

a
y
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 a

t 
a

ll 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
re

p
a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

O
C

C
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
O

p
e

n
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 a

g
re

e
d

D
B

M
 (

w
it
h

 

G
M

s
)

6
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 

h
o

u
rs

.
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
A

g
re

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 f

a
c

il
it

y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
c

it
in

g
, 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti

v
e

 t
o

 u
s

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

u
s

e
rs

65



S
C

D
 4

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
  

B
O

A
, 

 F
A

N
S

 a
n

d
 F

re
e

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 

fo
r 

C
o

u
n

ty
 S

p
o

rt
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 b
o

th
 

in
s
id

e
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
le

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

2
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 B
O

A
, 

F
A

N
S

 &
 F

A
C

S
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 i
ts

 i
m

p
a

c
t

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

3
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

F
A

C
S

, 
F

A
N

S
 &

 B
O

A
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

4
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 l
e

g
a

c
y
 p

la
n

, 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
o

 

O
x
fo

rd
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

D
B

M
g

r)

5
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

2
0

1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s
 P

la
n

 

le
g

a
c
y
 p

la
n

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

S
C

D
 5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 u

p
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 

fu
n

d
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
, 

a
t 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

ls
.

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

D
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 u
p

d
a

te
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

3
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
3

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

2
M

a
y
 -

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
T

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
.

T
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
s

p
o

rt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
2

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s

 a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s
 

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

T
o

 p
ro

a
c

ti
v

e
ly

 e
x

p
lo

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
x

te
rn

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

.

66



S
C

D
 5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

4
T

o
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 t
o

 G
M

s
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
y
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
.

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

d
e

liv
e

re
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

S
C

D
 6

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 "
S

p
o

rt
s
 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t"

 n
o

ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

.
O

n
g

o
in

g
N

o
ti
c
e

 b
o

a
rd

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

.
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

T
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

h
o

 c
a

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

.

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 P
C

T
, 

H
e

a
lt
h

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

A
g

e
 C

o
n

c
e

rn

3

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 n

e
w

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

'H
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

' j
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 w
it
h

 o
n

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r.

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
N

e
w

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

4
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 D

a
y

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

P
la

n
 c

re
a

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

5
C

re
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
O

b
e

s
it
y
 w

e
e

k
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3

P
la

n
 c

re
a

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

ti
lis

in
g

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

S
u

c
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 O
v
e

r 
5

0
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 'F

it
 a

s
 a

 

F
id

d
le

', 
A

c
ti
v
e

 w
o

m
e

n

7

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 r

e
v
ie

w
/d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

la
n

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

 l
e

is
u

re
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
P

la
n

 C
re

a
te

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

8
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
la

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

6
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
re

a
te

d
D

S
C

D
M

g
r

2
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

T
o

 p
ro

a
c

ti
v

e
ly

 e
x

p
lo

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
x

te
rn

a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
(w

it
h

 

G
M

s
)

T
o

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

iv
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c

ti
v

e
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
s

67



S
C

D
 6

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

9

 M
o

n
it
o

r 
&

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 G
P

 E
x
e

rc
is

e
 R

e
fe

rr
a

l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 w

it
h

 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r

1
0

T
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

a
rd

ia
c
 r

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s

A
p

ri
l 
- 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

E
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 &

 

c
a

rd
ia

c
 R

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

D
S

C
D

M
g

r 
&

 

G
M

's

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

ly
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

iv
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c

ti
v

e
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
s

68



F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
S

F
D

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

2

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ty
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 2

0
1

4
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 /
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
.

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

3

T
o

 f
u

lly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 p
o

o
l 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
- 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
iv

e
n

D
B

M
g

r

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

fa
c

il
it

y
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l

e
is

u
re

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
g

re
e

d
 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

s
u

c
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

69



P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T

P
D

1

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

2
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
g

re
e

d
 c

lie
n

t-
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

.
D

B
M

g
r

3

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

c
lie

n
t 

lia
is

o
n

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

lie
n

t 

fo
ru

m
s
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

.
D

B
M

g
r

4
T

o
 f

u
lly

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
t,

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

im
in

g
 o

f 
a

ll 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
A

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
 a

g
re

e
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

5
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
g

re
e

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

1
0

0
%

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

.
D

B
M

g
r

7
T

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 a
n

d
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
d

 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
b

le

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
.

D
B

M
g

r

9
T

o
 s

u
b

m
it
 a

n
d

 p
re

s
e

n
t 

d
ra

ft
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 t

o
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

.
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

D
ra

ft
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

P
la

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

1
0

T
o

 a
g

re
e

 f
in

a
l 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 

p
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
.

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
4

F
in

a
l 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
.

D
B

M
g

r

1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

c
e

 w
it

h
 a

ll
 a

g
re

e
d

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

, 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
A

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
 a

g
re

e
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

T
o

 f
u

lly
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
e

 d
a

te
s
, 

a
g

e
n

d
a

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
t-

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 

F
u

s
io

n
 c

lie
n

t 
fo

ru
m

s
.

70



P
D

2

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 l
is

t 
o

f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 (

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 t
e

n
n

is
 c

o
u

rt
s
 a

n
d

 H
o

rs
p

a
th

 A
th

le
ti
c
s
 T

ra
c
k
) 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

L
is

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 a

g
re

e
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
.

A
p

ri
l 
-2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

C
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

3

T
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

le
x
a

n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 t
e

n
n

is
 

c
o

u
rt

s

2
0

1
3

/1
4

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

/a
m

e
n

d
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

P
D

3

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1
T

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

C
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

a
g

re
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

p
o

o
l.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

C
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

T
o

 e
x

p
lo

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
n

d
 F

u
s

io
n

 t
o

 e
x

te
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s

h
ip

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c

t 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
fa

c
il

it
ie

s
 i

n
 

O
x

fo
rd

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 c
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o

l

71



P
D

4

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

1

T
o

 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
rd

 a
n

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 

o
n

w
a

rd
s

C
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

a
g

re
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
rd

.

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 -

 

O
n

w
a

rd
s

C
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

.
D

B
M

g
r

P
D

5

A
c
ti
o

n
 R

e
f.

A
c
ti
o

n
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
K

P
I

L
e

a
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 f

o
rm

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
/c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
/l
ia

is
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 m

u
tu

a
l 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
/c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
, 

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

H
R

 e
tc

.

2
T

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
4

P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
D

B
M

g
r

A
b

b
re

v
ia

ti
o

n
s
:

D
B

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

G
M

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

M
E

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

D
S

C
D

M
g

r
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i

n
 e

x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

o
s

s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
rd

 i
n

 O
x

fo
rd

1
A

p
ri
l 
- 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
.

D
B

M
g

r

T
o

 o
p

ti
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 F

u
s

io
n

 a
n

d
 O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

c
il

72



L
IN

K
S

 W
IT

H
 O

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
S

P
B

1
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 s
e

t 

o
u

t 
in

 F
u

s
io

n
's

 t
e

n
d

e
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n

F
1

, 
F

2
, 

P
1

, 
P

2
, 

P
3

, 
P

4
, 

P
5

, 
P

6
, 

P
7

,P
9

, 
C

R
 1

, 
C

R
 2

, 
F

M
 

2
, 

F
M

 3
, 

F
M

 4
, 

F
M

 5
, 

F
M

 6
, 

S
1

, 
S

2
, 

S
3

, 
M

2
, 

M
3

, 
M

4
, 

S
C

D
 1

, 
S

C
D

 2
, 

S
C

D
 3

, 
S

C
D

 4
, 

S
C

D
 5

, 
S

C
D

 6
, 

F
D

 1
, 

P
D

 1
, 

P
D

 2
, 

P
D

 3
, 

P
D

 4
, 

P
D

 5

P
B

2

T
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 f
u

lly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 "
T

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 

5
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r.

F
M

2
, 

F
M

3

P
B

3

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 

O
x
fo

rd
, 

5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 n

e
w

 u
s
e

rs
, 

5
%

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

B
M

E
 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 u

s
e

rs
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 j
u

n
io

r 
fr

e
e

 s
w

im
 s

c
h

e
m

e
, 

3
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 6

0
+

 f
re

e
 s

w
im

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

F
2

, 
P

1
, 

P
2

, 
P

3
, 

P
4

, 
P

5
, 

P
6

, 
P

7
,P

9
, 

M
1

, 
M

2
, 

M
4

, 
S

C
D

 1
, 

S
C

D
 2

, 
S

C
D

 3
, 

S
C

D
 6

P
B

4
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 m
a

jo
r 

fa
c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

F
D

 1

P
B

5
A

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 P
R

, 
s
u

c
h

 t
h

a
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
e

le
b

ra
te

d
M

1

R
E

L
E

V
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

 A
IM

S
S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IC
 O

B
J

E
C

T
IV

E
S

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

73



P
B

6
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 (

e
.g

. 
c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

)
P

8

P
B

7
T

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 F

u
s
io

n
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d

 

th
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
F

D
 4

, 
P

D
 2

, 
P

D
 3

, 
P

D
 4

, 
P

D
 5

O
C

C
1

V
ib

ra
n

t 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 E
c
o

n
o

m
y

F
1

, 
F

2
, 

F
3

, 
P

1
, 

P
2

, 
P

3
, 

P
4

, 
P

5
, 

P
6

, 
P

7
, 

P
8

, 
P

9
, 

C
R

 1
, 

C
R

 3
, 

F
M

 6
, 

M
2

, 
M

3
, 

M
5

, 
S

C
D

 1
, 

S
C

D
 3

, 
S

C
D

4
, 

S
C

D
 

6
, 

F
D

 1
, 

O
C

C
2

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 N

e
e

d
F

M
 3

, 
F

M
 5

O
C

C
3

S
tr

o
n

g
 A

c
ti
v
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
P

1
, 

P
2

, 
P

3
,P

4
, 

P
5

, 
P

6
, 

P
7

, 
P

8
, 

P
9

.

O
C

C
4

C
le

a
n

e
r 

G
re

e
n

e
r 

O
x
fo

rd
F

M
 2

, 
F

M
3

O
C

C
5

E
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

F
1

, 
F

2
, 

F
3

 C
R

 1
, 

C
R

 2
, 

C
R

 3
, 

F
M

6
, 

S
1

, 
S

2
, 

M
5

, 
S

C
D

1
, 

S
C

D
2

, 
S

C
D

5
, 

P
D

1
, 

P
D

3
, 

P
D

5

F
u

s
 1

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 l
ik

e
-f

o
r-

lik
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

F
1

, 
F

2
, 

S
1

, 
M

2
, 

M
3

F
u

s
 2

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ty
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 o
n

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 u

p
lif

ts
F

1
,

F
u

s
 3

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 m

a
rg

in
 o

f 
5

%
F

1

F
u

s
 4

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 "

g
o

o
d

"/
"e

x
c
e

lle
n

t"
 

ra
ti
n

g
s
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 9
5

%
; 

1
0

0
%

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
C

R
 1

, 
C

R
 2

, 
C

R
 3

, 
S

1
, 

M
2

, 
M

3
 

F
u

s
 5

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
m

e
a

s
u

ra
b

le
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 l
ik

e
-f

o
r-

lik
e

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

B
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s

P
1

, 
P

2
, 

P
3

, 
P

4
, 

P
5

, 
P

6
, 

P
7

, 
P

8
, 

P
9

, 
C

R
 1

, 
C

R
 2

, 
C

R
 3

O
x

fo
rd

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s

F
u

s
io

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S
R

E
L

E
V

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
 A

IM
S

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

74



F
u

s
 6

T
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 a
tt

ri
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

b
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
s
 t

o
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 

5
0

%
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
C

R
 3

F
u

s
 7

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 l
ik

e
-f

o
r-

lik
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
P

1
, 

P
2

, 
P

3
, 

P
4

, 
P

5
, 

P
6

, 
P

7
, 

P
8

,P
9

F
u

s
 8

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 l
ik

e
-f

o
r-

lik
e

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
P

1
, 

P
2

, 
P

3
, 

P
4

, 
P

5
, 

P
6

, 
P

7
, 

P
8

,P
9

F
u

s
 9

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 B
a

s
e

c
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 

re
g

im
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 s

c
o

re
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
5

%
 o

n
 

B
a

s
e

c
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
o

re
s

F
M

 1

F
u

s
 1

0
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 Q

u
e

s
t 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
 o

f 
'G

o
o

d
'

F
M

 6

F
u

s
 1

1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

u
d

it
 

re
g

im
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 s

c
o

re
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
0

%
 o

n
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
u

d
it
 s

c
o

re
s

H
S

 1

F
u

s
 1

2
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 2

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
 t

u
rn

o
v
e

r
S

1
, 

S
2

, 
S

3

F
u

s
 1

3
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 c

ro
s
s
-c

o
m

p
a

n
y
 r

a
ti
o

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

/i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

F
1

, 
S

1

F
u

s
 1

4
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 2

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 l
ik

e
-f

o
r-

lik
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
F

M
 2

F
u

s
 1

5
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 2

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 w
a

s
te

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
 2

0
%

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
F

M
 3

F
u

s
 1

6
T

o
 w

in
 2

 n
e

w
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

t 
5

-1
0

 m
ill

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
T

u
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 W
e

lls
 a

n
d

 M
ilt

o
n

 K
e

y
n

e
s
.

P
D

 2
, 

P
D

 3
, 

P
D

 5

F
U

S
 1

7
T

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
o

f 
5

8
 m

ill
io

n
 p

o
u

n
d

s
P

D
 2

, 
P

D
 3

, 
P

D
 5

F
u

s
io

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s

75



R
E

L
E

V
A

N
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

F
1

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 1
0

%
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s
e

r
P

B
 1

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

O
C

C
 5

, 
F

u
s
 1

, 
F

u
s
 2

, 
F

u
s
 3

, 
F

u
s
 1

3

F
2

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
F

u
s
 1

P
1

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

u
s
e

rs
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 3
, 

O
C

C
 1

, 
O

C
C

 3
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
2

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

u
s
e

rs
 a

g
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
5

0
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
3

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

u
s
e

rs
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
6

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 3
, 

O
C

C
 1

, 
O

C
C

 3
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
4

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

u
s
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 B
M

E
 g

ro
u

p
s

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 3
, 

O
C

C
 1

, 
F

u
s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
5

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 b

y
 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 u
s
e

rs
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
6

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

ju
n

io
r 

fr
e

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

O
C

C
 3

, 
F

u
s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
7

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 3
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

6
0

+
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
8

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
P

B
 6

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

P
9

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 y
e

a
r-

o
n

-y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 

L
a

d
ie

s
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

O
C

C
 3

, 
F

u
s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 8

C
R

 1
T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 b

y
 

P
B

 1
, 

O
C

C
 1

, 
O

C
C

 5
, 

F
u

s
 4

, 
F

u
s
 5

C
R

 2
T

o
 f

u
lly

 e
m

b
e

d
 F

u
s
io

n
s
 "

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
" 

fo
r 

c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

P
B

 1
, 

O
C

C
 1

, 
O

C
C

 5
, 

F
u

s
 4

, 
F

u
s
 5

C
R

 3
T

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
%

 i
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
a

tt
ri
ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

fo
r 

S
lic

e
 C

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

s
O

C
C

 1
, 

O
C

C
 5

, 
F

u
s
 4

, 
F

u
s
 5

, 
F

u
s
 6

H
S

 1
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 F
u

s
io

n
 H

&
S

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

F
u

s
 1

1

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

 A
IM

S

76



R
E

L
E

V
A

N
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

F
M

 1
T

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 B

a
s
e

 C
a

m
p

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
o

re
s
 o

f 
a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
5

%
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
F

u
s
 9

F
M

 2

T
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 f
u

lly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 "
T

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

 a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 

5
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r.

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 2
, 

O
C

C
 4

, 
F

u
s
 1

4

F
M

 3
T

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
re

fu
s
e

 b
y
 2

5
%

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

w
a

s
te

 b
y
 2

5
%

P
B

 1
, 

O
C

C
 2

, 
F

u
s
 1

5

F
M

 4
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 a
re

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

t 
a

ll 

ti
m

e
s

P
B

 1

F
M

 5
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
h

ig
h

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 a
re

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 2
, 

O
C

C
 2

F
M

 6

T
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 Q

u
e

s
t 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
a

 m
in

im
u

m
 'G

o
o

d
' a

t 

F
e

rr
y
 L

. 
C

, 
B

la
c
k
b

ir
d

 L
e

y
s
 L

.C
, 

H
in

k
s
e

y
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
P

o
o

l,
 I

c
e

 

R
in

k
 a

n
d

 B
a

rt
o

n
 L

. 
C

.
P

B
 1

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 1

0

S
1

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 R

ig
h

t 
P

la
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 

R
ig

h
t 

T
im

e
P

B
 1

, 
F

u
s
 1

, 
F

u
s
 4

, 
F

u
s
 1

2
, 

F
u

s
 1

3

S
2

T
o

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 a
 y

e
a

r-
o

n
-y

e
a

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

ta
ff

 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 e

a
c
h

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 s

tr
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll

P
B

 1
, 

F
u

s
 1

2

S
3

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 F

u
s
io

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 i
s
 a

s
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

P
B

 1
, 

F
u

s
 1

2

M
1

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 P
R

, 
s
u

c
h

 t
h

a
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

c
e

le
b

ra
te

d

P
B

 3
, 

P
B

 5

M
2

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 5
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 B
o

n
u

s
 S

lic
e

 c
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 1

, 
F

u
s
 4

M
3

T
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 1
0

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
S

lic
e

 c
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
P

B
 1

, 
O

C
C

 1
, 

F
u

s
 1

, 
F

u
s
 4

M
4

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ts

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 3

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

 A
IM

S

77



R
E

L
E

V
A

N
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

M
5

T
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ty
 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
O

C
C

 1

S
C

D
 1

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 l
o

c
a

l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1

S
C

D
 2

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 

s
p

o
rt

s
 c

lu
b

s
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

S
C

D
 3

T
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ty
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 e

x
c
it
in

g
, 

in
n

o
v
a

ti
v
e

 

a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

rs
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 3

, 
O

C
C

 1

S
C

D
 4

T
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 s

ta
rt

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
x
im

u
m

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

is
 d

e
ri
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

2
 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s

P
B

 1

S
C

D
 5

T
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

P
B

 1

S
C

D
 6

T
o

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 

lif
e

s
ty

le
s

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 3
, 

O
C

C
 1

F
D

 1
T

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ty
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 7

, 
O

C
C

 1

P
D

 1
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 1

0
0

%
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

a
g

re
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

P
B

 1

P
D

 2
T

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 F

u
s
io

n
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d

 

th
e

ir
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 7

, 
F

u
s
 1

6

P
D

 3
T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 

p
o

o
l 
a

t 
B

la
c
k
b

ir
d

 L
e

y
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 7

, 
F

u
s
 1

6

P
D

 4
T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
rd

 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
P

B
 1

, 
P

B
 7

P
D

 5
T

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

F
u

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

P
B

 1
, 

P
B

 7
, 

F
u

s
 1

6

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
L

A
N

 A
IM

S

78



R
IS

K
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

:

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

t 
a

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 d

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
le

v
e

l,
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 t

o
 F

u
s
io

n
's

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
ir
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 i
s
 a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l,
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

 A
t 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 l
e

v
e

l,
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

s
is

 b
y
 B

o
a

rd
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 f

o
rm

e
rl
y
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 B

o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 h
ig

h
-r

is
k
 a

re
a

s
 (

e
.g

. 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

.

A
t 

a
 d

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
le

v
e

l,
 t

h
e

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

 

d
iv

is
io

n
-s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
is

k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
m

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

.

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

b
e

lo
w

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
n

 a
m

a
lg

a
m

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 F

u
s
io

n
's

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 r
is

k
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 r
is

k
s
 a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 O

x
fo

rd
.

79



R
IS

K
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

:

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
H

&
S

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

H
&

S
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

in
 p

o
s
t

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 H

&
S

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

H
&

S
 K

P
Is

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 H

&
S

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
u

d
it
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s

F
u

ll-
y
e

a
r 

c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

s
 w

it
h

 

p
ru

d
e

n
t 

a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

M
a

jo
r 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 

m
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s

F
o

rm
a

l 
m

o
n

th
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

W
e

e
k
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
a

ll 
in

c
o

m
e

 

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

2
8

1
2

S
ta

ff
 o

r 
c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

in
ju

ry
, 

p
ro

d
u

c
t 

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
, 

re
d

u
c
e

d
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

o
p

e
ra

te

4
4

3
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty

4
C

a
s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

it
y

In
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
, 

la
c
k
 

o
f 

liq
u

id
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

, 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

D
a

ily
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
a

s
h

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 k

e
y
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 s
tr

e
a

m
s

8
2

4
1

4

80



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

R
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 p

o
lic

y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 

re
s
e

rv
e

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 s

o
m

e
 

d
o

w
n

tu
rn

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
 

p
e

n
d

in
g

 c
o

rr
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
c
ti
o

n

C
o

n
ti
n

u
a

l 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

tr
e

n
d

s

R
o

b
u

s
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 

g
a

th
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

o
p

in
io

n
s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

s
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s

R
o

b
u

s
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 

g
a

th
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

o
p

in
io

n
s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

k
e

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

R
e

g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

 l
o

c
a

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
b

a
s
is

3
3

9

4
1

4
8

3
In

c
re

a
s
e

d

c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n

C
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
,

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l

d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

fu
tu

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

3

P
o

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

4

C
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

it
y

In
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
, 

la
c
k
 

o
f 

liq
u

id
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

, 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

4
8

2

9

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l

4
1

4
2

81



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

E
x
p

e
rt

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 k

e
y
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

g
a

l,
 H

R
, 

H
&

S
 e

tc
.

R
o

b
u

s
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d

O
n

g
o

in
g

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

u
d

it
 

a
n

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

im
e

s

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

IC
T

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
in

 p
o

s
t,

 

w
it
h

 e
x
p

e
rt

 o
ff

-s
it
e

 t
h

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 p

la
n

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

A
ll 

d
a

ta
 b

a
c
k
e

d
 u

p
 d

a
ily

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 h

o
u

s
e

d
 i
n

 

a
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

 

in
 p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d

D
iv

is
io

n
-s

p
e

c
if
ic

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

A
ll 

d
a

ta
 b

a
c
k
e

d
 u

p
 d

a
ily

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
C

T
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 h

o
u

s
e

d
 i
n

 

a
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t

F
ir
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

in
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 a
 s

it
e

-b
y
-s

it
e

 b
a

s
is

 a
n

d
 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

o
n

 a
 s

it
e

-b
y
-s

it
e

 b
a

s
is

 a
n

d
 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d

4
2

8

3
2

6

4
1

4

8

D
a

m
a

g
e

 t
o

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 

o
r 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 f

ir
e

, 
fl
o

o
d

 o
r 

s
im

ila
r

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
in

te
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
d

e
fa

u
lt
, 

c
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

4

444

2

F
a

ilu
re

 o
f 

IC
T

 

s
y
s
te

m
s

N
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

F
in

e
s
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
, 

d
e

fa
u

lt
, 

c
e

n
s
u

re

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
in

te
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
d

e
fa

u
lt
, 

c
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

1

8

2

82



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y

S
c
h

e
m

e
 o

f 
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

w
it
h

 s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
, 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 l
im

it
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
o

a
rd

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g

In
s
u

ra
b

le
 r

is
k
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 w
h

e
re

 

p
o

s
s
ib

le

5
-y

e
a

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 

5
-y

e
a

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
e

t 
o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 

b
a

s
is

A
n

n
u

a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

k
e

y
 a

im
s
, 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 

a
n

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 w

it
h

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

A
n

n
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

o
n

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
b

a
s
is

, 
s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

C
le

a
r 

c
lie

n
t 

lia
is

o
n

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
h

a
p

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

c
lie

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

3
2

6

3
2

6

F
ra

u
d

 o
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

e
rr

o
r

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
, 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l

d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
re

g
u

la
to

ry
 

a
c
ti
o

n
, 

c
lie

n
t 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

3

66

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
lo

s
s
, 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l

d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
c
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n

3
22

83



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

, 
S

e
n

io
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

 

a
n

d
 D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
te

a
m

s
.

C
le

a
r 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
, 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
s

P
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 i
n

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

o
in

t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
.

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

a
n

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
.

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

n
o

ti
c
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
ti
m

e
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

3
6

2
8

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
k
e

y
 s

ta
ff

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

d
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
d

a
m

a
g

e
 

to
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 

c
lie

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

2
4

84



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

H
R

 t
e

a
m

, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
d

v
is

o
rs

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

s
ta

ff
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

lin
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
, 

w
it
h

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n

S
ta

ff
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
v
e

 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s

F
o

rm
a

l 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
k
e

y
 u

n
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 w

it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s

C
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 c

lie
n

t 

lia
is

o
n

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

B
o

a
rd

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
, 

w
it
h

 s
h

a
re

d
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

a
g

re
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s

R
e

g
u

la
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
la

n
.

M
u

lt
i-
fa

c
e

te
d

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

F
u

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

3
2

9

3
2

6
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t

d
is

p
u

te
s

S
ta

ff
 d

is
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

, 

d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

c
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
,

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g

e

3
2

3
3

P
o

o
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 

w
it
h

 O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

C
lie

n
t

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
,

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
d

is
p

u
te

, 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e

96

85



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

 R
IS

K

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L

IM
P

A
C

T
S

E
V

E
R

IT
Y

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G
M

IT
IG

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

S
E

V
E

R
IT

Y

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

L
IK

E
L

IH
O

O
D

R
E

S
ID

U
A

L

W
E

IG
H

T
IN

G

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 t

o
 

o
v
e

rs
e

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

w
o

rk
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 l
o

g
s
 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

e
a

c
h

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
re

-e
m

p
t 

a
n

d
 m

it
ig

a
te

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri
s
k
s

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
d

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

F
M

 t
e

a
m

, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
d

v
is

o
rs

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 d
iv

is
io

n
a

l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

F
M

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
P

P
M

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d

 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

 (
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

) 
w

o
rk

s

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

fa
c
ili

ty
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s

9

3
2

6

3
3

D
e

te
ri
o

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s

C
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
,

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l

d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

fu
tu

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
, 

u
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
a

c
ili

ty
 

c
lo

s
u

re

3

D
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 

m
a

jo
r 

fa
c
ili

ty
 

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

C
lie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
e

n
a

lt
ie

s
,

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l

d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

fu
tu

re
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

3
3 2

69

86



K
e

y
:

S
e

v
e

ri
ty

 o
f 

im
p

a
c
t:

is
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

f 
m

a
g

n
it
u

d
e

 o
f 

h
a

rm
 o

r 
lo

s
s
 t

h
a

t 
F

u
s
io

n
 a

n
d

/o
r 

F
u

s
io

n
's

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

m
a

y
 s

u
ff

e
r,

 r
a

n
g

in
g

 f
ro

m
 1

 t
o

 5
, 

w
h

e
re

:

3
 i
s
 "

m
e

d
iu

m
" 

im
p

a
c
t:

  
i.
e

. 
w

ill
 c

a
u

s
e

 i
n

te
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
b

u
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
a

b
le

 l
o

s
s
;

1
 i
s
 "

lo
w

" 
im

p
a

c
t:

  
i.
e

. 
w

ill
 c

a
u

s
e

 i
n

te
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
le

a
d

s
 t

o
 n

o
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
lo

s
s
.

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
o

c
c
u

rr
e

n
c
e

:

is
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
e

v
e

n
t 

w
ill

 o
c
c
u

r,
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 1
 t

o
 5

, 
w

h
e

re
:

5
 i
s
 "

h
ig

h
" 

lik
e

lih
o

o
d

: 
 i
.e

. 
it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
w

ill
 o

c
c
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r;

3
 i
s
 "

m
e

d
iu

m
" 

lik
e

lih
o

o
d

: 
 i
.e

. 
it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 t

h
re

a
t 

w
ill

 o
c
c
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r;

1
 i
s
 "

lo
w

" 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
: 

 i
.e

. 
it
 i
s
 h

ig
h

ly
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
w

ill
 o

c
c
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r;

5
 i
s
 "

h
ig

h
" 

im
p

a
c
t:

  
i.
e

. 
w

ill
 c

a
u

s
e

 s
h

u
td

o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
m

o
n

e
y
 a

n
d

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
b

a
n

k
ru

p
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
;

87



88

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Service Plan 2012/13

Towards world class leisure

facilities for everyone...

!"#$%&'($)*#+,-*'$#'.'/*0$#+*/*1'&%+')%/'2/%3+'%/0.&$#.+$%&'4%/5$&0'$&'2./+&*/#6$2'

4$+6'78)%/1'9$+,'9%"&:$-'+%';.&.0*',%"/'-%:.-'-*$#"/*').:$-$+$*#

89



7
8
)%
/1
'9
$+
,
'9
%
"
&
:
$-'
.
&
1
'!
"
#
$%
&
'(
$)
*
#
+,
-*
'6
.
<
*
'.
':
-*
.
/'
<
$#
$%
&
')
%
/'
.
'=

%
/-
1
'9
-.
#
#
'-
*
$#
"
/*
'

#
*
/<
$:
*
')
%
/'
*
<
*
/,
%
&
*
'$
&
'+
6
*
'9
$+
,>
'=

*
'.
#
2
$/
*
'+
%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
+6
*
'9
$+
,
?#
'-
*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'

.
/*
'.
<
.
$-.
@
-*
'+
%
'*
<
*
/,
%
&
*
'.
&
1
'%
))
*
/'
+6
*
'6
$0
6
*
#
+'
2
%
#
#
$@
-*
'#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
>'

'
'

'
'

'

A&
'B

.
/:
6
'C
D
D
E
F'
!
"
#
$%
&
'(
$)
*
#
+,
-*
':
%
;
;
*
&
:
*
1
'+
6
*
';

.
&
.
0
*
;
*
&
+'
%
)'
+6
*
'9
$+
,
'9
%
"
&
:
$-?
#
'

#
*
<
*
&
'-
*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'G
' B

a
rt

o
n

 L
e

is
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
B

la
c

k
b

ir
d

 L
e

y
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

B
la

c
k

b
ir

d
 L

e
y
s
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

l,
 F

e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 

H
in

k
s
e

y
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
P

o
o

l,
 

O
x
fo

rd
 I

c
e

 R
in

k
 a

n
d

 T
e

m
p

le
 C

o
w

le
y
 P

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 F
it

n
e

s
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

.

!
"
#
$%
&
'6
.
#
'1
*
<
*
-%
2
*
1
'.
&
'H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&
'+
6
.
+'
1
*
#
:
/$
@
*
#
'+
6
*
'%
/0
.
&
$#
.
+$
%
&
?#
'

2
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'.
0
.
$&
#
+'
C
D
K
K
LK
C
'%
@
M*
:
+$
<
*
#
'.
&
1
'#
*
+#
'%
"
+'
!
"
#
$%
&
?#
'+
.
/0
*
+#
')
%
/'
+6
*
'1
*
-$<
*
/,
'

%
)'
-*
$#
"
/*
'#
*
/<
$:
*
#
'$
&
'+
6
*
',
*
.
/'
)/
%
;
'H
2
/$
-'
C
D
K
C
G'
B
.
/:
6
'C
D
K
N
>

O
6
$#
'-
*
.
P
*
+'
#
"
;
;
.
/$
#
*
#
'!
"
#
$%
&
?#
'H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&
'.
&
1
'0
$<
*
#
'%
"
/'
:
"
#
+%
;
*
/#
F'

#
+.
))
'.
&
1
'#
+.
5
*
6
%
-1
*
/#
'.
':
-*
.
/'
$1
*
.
'%
)'
%
"
/'
%
@
M*
:
+$
<
*
#
')
%
/'
+6
*
',
*
.
/'
.
6
*
.
1
>'
O
6
*
'

$;
2
-*
;
*
&
+.
+$
%
&
'%
)'
+6
*
'H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&
'.
&
1
'2
/%
0
/*
#
#
'+
%
4
.
/1
#
'+
6
*
'+
.
/0
*
+#
'4

$--
'@
*
'

;
%
&
$+
%
/*
1
'+
6
/%
"
0
6
'+
6
*
',
*
.
/>

H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&

C
'

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

u
s
:

T
e

l:
'D
Q
R
R
'Q
E
N
N
'C
C
C
S

E
m

a
il
:'
$&
)%
T
)"
#
$%
&
G-
$)
*
#
+,
-*
>:
%
;

4
4
4
>%
8
)%
/1
>0
%
<>
"
5
L-
*
$#
"
/*

S9
.
--#
')
/%
;
'U
O
':
6
.
/0
*
1
'.
+'
.
';

.
8
$;

"
;
'%
)'
N
'2
*
&
:
*
'2
*
/'
;
$&
"
+*
F'
%
+6
*
/'
2
/%
<
$1
*
/#
';

.
,
'<
.
/,
>

O
6
*
'J
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'V
*
<
$*
4
'*
-*
;
*
&
+'
%
)'
+6
*
'H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&
'$
#
'.
'/
*
<
$*
4
'%
)

2
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'.
0
.
$&
#
+'
+6
*
'C
D
K
K
LK
C
'H
&
&
"
.
-'
I
*
/<
$:
*
'J
-.
&
>'
O
6
*
'6
$0
6
-$0

6
+#
'%
)'
+6
*
',
*
.
/?
#
'

2
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'6
.
<
*
'@
*
*
&
'.
'C
W
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
'.
&
1
'K
R
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'

;
*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
#
>

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l:

Y
'
I
"
@
#
$1
,
'2
*
/'
"
#
*
/'
6
.
#
'/
*
1
"
:
*
1
'@
,
'G
C
R
X
'%
&
'C
D
K
D
LK
K
>

Y
'
C
D
K
K
'2
/$
:
*
#
'/
*
<
$*
4
*
1
'$
&
'-
$&
*
'4

$+
6
'$
&
P
.
+$
%
&
'.
&
1
'Z
H
O
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
#
>

Y
'
U
%
&
"
#
':
%
&
:
*
#
#
$%
&
.
/,
';

*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
'%
))
*
/'
4
.
#
'6
*
-1
')
%
/'
.
'+
6
$/
1
':
%
&
#
*
:
"
+$
<
*
',
*
.
/>

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
:

Y
'
7
<
*
/.
--'
2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
'6
.
#
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
1
',
*
.
/'
%
&
',
*
.
/'
@
,
'C
W
X
'/
*
#
"
-+
$&
0
'$
&
'.
'+
%
+.
-'
.
1
1
$+
$%
&
.
-'

:
$/
:
.
'K
E
C
FD
D
D
'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
&
+#
>

Y
'
R
E
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'"
#
*
/#
'.
0
*
1
'%
<
*
/'
[
D
>

Y
'
\
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'"
#
*
/#
'"
&
1
*
/'
+6
*
'.
0
*
'%
)'
K
W
>

Y
'
\
C
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'@
-.
:
5
F'
;
$&
%
/$
+,
'.
&
1
'*
+6
&
$:
'"
#
*
/#
>

Y
'
W
Q
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'"
#
.
0
*
'@
,
'1
$#
.
@
-*
1
'"
#
*
/#
>

Y
'
[
R
X
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
'+
6
*
']
"
&
$%
/'
)/
*
*
'#
4
$;

'#
:
6
*
;
*
'1
"
*
'+
%
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
')
/*
*
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0
'

)"
&
1
$&
0
>

Y
'
C
C
X
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
'W
D
^
'#
4
$;

'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
'1
"
*
'+
%
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
')
/*
*
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0
')
"
&
1
$&
0
>

Y
'
R
Q
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'=

%
;
*
&
'.
&
1
'_

$/
-#
'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
>

Y
'
K
N
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
':
%
&
:
*
#
#
$%
&
.
/,
'U
%
&
"
#
':
.
/1
'"
#
.
0
*
>

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

:

Y
'
7
<
*
/.
--'
:
"
#
+%
;
*
/'
#
.
+$
#
).
:
+$
%
&
'%
)'
-*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
1
'@
,
'C
X
'+
%
'E
\
X
>

Y
'
`
#
*
/'
0
/%
"
2
#
F'
:
"
#
+%
;
*
/'
)%
/"
;
#
'.
&
1
';

.
&
.
0
*
;
*
&
+'
)%
/"
;
#
'*
;
@
*
1
*
1
'.
+'
*
.
:
6
'#
$+
*
>

Y
'
B
*
;
@
*
/#
'-
*
.
<
$&
0
'.
#
'2
*
/:
*
&
+.
0
*
'%
)'
+%
+.
-'
;
*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
'6
.
#
'/
*
1
"
:
*
1
'@
,
'C
X
>

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

:

Y
'
A&
#
+$
+"
+$
%
&
'%
)'
7
:
:
"
2
.
+$
%
&
.
-'
I
.
)*
+,
'.
&
1
'a
*
.
-+
6
'+
/.
$&
$&
0
'"
&
1
*
/+
.
5
*
&
'@
,
'.
--'
_
*
&
*
/.
-'

B
.
&
.
0
*
/#

Y
'
9
%
;
2
-$.
&
:
*
'#
:
%
/*
#
b'
U
.
/+
%
&
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'E
Q
X
F'
U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'

E
R
X
F'
U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'J
%
%
-'
E
C
X
F'
!
*
//
,
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'E
R
X
F'
a
$&
5
#
*
,
'7

"
+1
%
%
/'
J
%
%
-'

E
[
X
F'
7
8
)%
/1
'A
:
*
'V
$&
5
'E
R
X
F'
O*
;
2
-*
'9
%
4
-*
,
'J
%
%
-#
'E
C
X
>

Y
'
H
--'
7
8
)%
/1
'#
$+
*
#
')
"
--,
':
%
;
2
-$.
&
+'
4
$+
6
'7

:
:
"
2
.
+$
%
&
.
-'
a
*
.
-+
6
'.
&
1
'I
.
)*
+,
'H
1
<
$#
%
/,
'

I
*
/<
$:
*
#
'.
"
1
$+
'%
)'
6
*
.
-+
6
'.
&
1
'#
.
)*
+,
';

.
&
.
0
*
;
*
&
+>

F
a

c
il
it

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:

N

J
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'V
*
<
$*
4
'C
D
K
K
LK
C

90



R
'

[

J
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'V
*
<
$*
4
'C
D
K
K
LK
C

J
*
/)
%
/;

.
&
:
*
'V
*
<
$*
4
'C
D
K
K
LK
C

Y
'
B
.
$&
+.
$&
*
1
'A
&
+*
/&
.
+$
%
&
.
-'
I
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'A
I
7
'K
R
D
D
K
FK
R
D
D
C
'.
&
1
'E
D
D
K
')
%
--%

4
$&
0
'

*
8
+*
/&
.
-'
.
"
1
$+
'.
#
#
*
#
#
;
*
&
+>

Y
'
A&
#
+.
--*
1
'*
&
*
/0
,
'*
)3
:
$*
&
+'
-$0

6
+$
&
0
'+
%
':
%
//
$1
%
/#
'.
+'
!
*
//
,
'.
&
1
'U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'

9
*
&
+/
*
#
>

Y
'
E
W
X
'%
)'
J
-.
&
&
*
1
'J
/*
<
*
&
+.
+$
<
*
'B

.
$&
+*
&
.
&
:
*
'"
&
1
*
/+
.
5
*
&
>

Y
'
(
*
$#
"
/*
'A
&
1
"
#
+/
,
'c
"
.
-$+
,
'#
+.
&
1
.
/1
'd

"
*
#
+'
.
:
:
/*
1
$+
.
+$
%
&
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
1
'.
+'
U
.
/+
%
&
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'

9
*
&
+/
*
F'
U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
F'
7
8
)%
/1
'A
:
*
'V
$&
5
'.
&
1
'!
*
//
,
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'

.
+'
.
'/
.
+$
&
0
'%
)'
e_

%
%
1
?F
'.
&
1
'.
+'
a
$&
5
#
*
,
'7

"
+1
%
%
/'
J
%
%
-F
'.
'/
.
+$
&
0
'%
)'
eI
.
+$
#
).
:
+%
/,
?>

S
ta

ffi
n

g
:

Y
'
H
1
1
*
1
'.
'&
*
4
'!
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'B

.
$&
+*
&
.
&
:
*
'I
"
2
*
/<
$#
%
/'
2
%
#
+>

Y
'
H
2
2
/.
$#
.
-#
'"
&
1
*
/+
.
5
*
&
')
%
/'
#
+.
))
'4

$+
6
$&
'7

8
)%
/1
'-
*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
>

Y
'
O
/.
$&
$&
0
'2
-.
&
#
':
/*
.
+*
1
')
%
/'
.
--'
#
+.
))
>'

Y
'
\
K
X
'%
)'
/*
#
2
%
&
1
*
&
+#
'#
+.
+*
1
'+
6
*
,
'4

*
/*
'#
.
+$
#
3
*
1
'4

$+
6
'!
"
#
$%
&
'.
#
'+
6
*
$/
'*
;
2
-%
,
*
/'

.
&
1
'4

%
"
-1
'@
*
':
%
&
+$
&
"
$&
0
'+
%
'4

%
/5
'4

$+
6
'!
"
#
$%
&
')
%
/'
+6
*
')
%
/*
#
*
*
.
@
-*
')
"
+"
/*
>'

Y
'
7
<
*
/'
N
FD
D
D
'6
%
"
/#
'+
/.
$&
$&
0
'1
*
-$<
*
/*
1
'$
&
'.
--'
:
*
&
+/
*
#
>

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
:

Y
'
f
#
+.
@
-$#
6
*
1
':
-*
.
/'
2
"
@
-$:
'/
*
-.
+$
%
&
#
F'
@
/.
&
1
$&
0
'g
':
%
;
;
"
&
$:
.
+$
%
&
#
'4

%
/5
$&
0
'

0
"
$1
*
-$&
*
#
'4

$+
6
'7

8
)%
/1
'9
$+
,
'9
%
"
&
:
$->

Y
'
=
*
@
#
$+
*
'6
$+
#
'%
)'
:
$/
:
.
'C
D
E
FD
D
D
')
%
/'
+6
*
',
*
.
/>

Y
'
K
R
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
';

*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
#
>

Y
'
h
*
<
*
-%
2
*
1
'#
2
*
:
$3
:
';

.
/5
*
+$
&
0
'2
-.
&
#
')
%
/'
.
--'
:
*
&
+/
*
#
>

Y
'
7
<
*
/'
\
FC
D
D
'V
*
4
.
/1
#
'9
.
/1
'6
%
-1
*
/#
')
%
/'
e2
.
,
'.
#
',
%
"
'2
-.
,
?'
"
#
*
/#
>

Y
'
h
$/
*
:
+$
%
&
.
-'
#
$0
&
.
0
*
'$
&
#
+.
--*
1
')
%
/'
a
$&
5
#
*
,
'7

"
+1
%
%
/'
J
%
%
-#
>

S
p

o
rt

s
 A

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t:

Y
'
A&
$+
$.
+$
<
*
#
'"
&
1
*
/+
.
5
*
&
'4

$+
6
'U
.
1
;
$&
+%
&
'f
&
0
-.
&
1
F'
f
&
0
-.
&
1
'I
c
"
.
#
6
F'
H
;
.
+*
"
/'

I
4
$;

;
$&
0
'H
#
#
%
:
$.
+$
%
&
F'
U
.
/+
%
&
'7

@
*
#
$+
,
'J
/%
M*
:
+'
.
&
1
'7

8
)%
/1
'I
2
%
/+
#
'

J
.
/+
&
*
/#
6
$2
'e
_
%
GH

:
+$
<
*
?>

Y
'
A&
+/
%
1
"
:
*
1
'O
6
*
'H
;
.
+*
"
/'
I
4
$;

;
$&
0
'H
#
#
%
:
$.
+$
%
&
?#
'i
.
+$
%
&
.
-'
J
-.
&
')
%
/'
+*
.
:
6
$&
0
'

I
4
$;

;
$&
0
>

Y
'
K
D
'+
.
-*
&
+*
1
'#
2
%
/+
#
'2
*
%
2
-*
'#
"
2
2
%
/+
*
1
'+
6
/%
"
0
6
'!
H
i
I
'j
!
/*
*
'H
:
:
*
#
#
'+
%
'i
.
+$
%
&
.
-'

I
2
%
/+
#
'2
*
%
2
-*
k'
!
H
9
I
'j
!
/*
*
'H
:
:
*
#
#
'+
%
'9
%
"
&
+,
'I
2
%
/+
#
'2
*
%
2
-*
k'
.
&
1
'U
7
H
'

jU
/$
+$
#
6
'7

-,
;
2
$:
'H
#
#
%
:
$.
+$
%
&
k>

Y
'
l
N
\
5
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
1
'4

$+
6
'+
6
*
'_

%
GH

:
+$
<
*
'#
:
6
*
;
*
')
%
/'
.
'2
/%
M*
:
+'
.
$;

*
1
'.
+'

$&
:
/*
.
#
$&
0
'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
'@
,
'4

%
;
.
&
>

Y
'
l
R
D
5
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
1
'+
6
/%
"
0
6
'+
6
*
'!
"
+"
/*
']
%
@
#
'!
"
&
1
')
%
/'
(
*
$#
"
/*
'H
2
2
/*
&
+$
:
*
#
'

/*
#
"
-+
*
1
'$
&
')
%
"
/'
.
2
2
%
$&
+;

*
&
+#
>

Y
'
l
C
5
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
1
'+
6
/%
"
0
6
'O
6
*
'H
;
.
+*
"
/'
I
4
$;

;
$&
0
'H
#
#
%
:
$.
+$
%
&
')
%
/'
)/
*
*
'

#
4
$;

;
$&
0
'-
*
#
#
%
&
#
')
%
/'
@
-.
:
5
F'
;
$&
%
/$
+,
F'
*
+6
&
$:
'.
&
1
'[
D
'2
-"
#
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0
'-
*
#
#
%
&
#
>

Y
'
l
N
5
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
1
'+
6
/%
"
0
6
'I
2
%
/+
'f
&
0
-.
&
1
')
%
/'
I
2
%
/+
#
'`
&
-$;

$+
*
1
'2
/%
M*
:
+'
.
&
1
'

l
C
5
')
%
/'
)/
*
*
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0
'-
*
#
#
%
&
#
>

Y
'
l
N
5
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'/
*
:
*
$<
*
1
')
/%
;
'O
6
*
'i
.
+$
%
&
.
-'
(
%
++
*
/,
')
%
/'
%
<
*
/'
[
D
#
'.
:
+$
<
$+
,
'#
:
6
*
;
*
'

m!
$+
'.
#
'.
'!
$1
1
-*
n>

F
a

c
il
it

y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

:

Y
'
H
0
/*
*
1
'.
'#
*
:
%
&
1
'2
6
.
#
*
'%
)'
1
*
<
*
-%
2
;
*
&
+'
4
%
/5
#
'+
%
'$
&
:
-"
1
*
'&
*
4
'$
&
1
%
%
/'
:
,
:
-$&
0
F'

#
%
)+
'2
-.
,
'.
&
1
':
.
)*
'.
+'
!
*
//
,
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
F'
U
.
/+
%
&
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'.
&
1
'%
"
+1
%
%
/'

;
"
-+
$G
#
2
%
/+
'.
/*
.
'.
+'
U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
>

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t:

Y
'
!
"
--'
-$.
$#
%
&
'.
&
1
'#
"
2
2
%
/+
'4

$+
6
'7

8
)%
/1
'9
$+
,
'9
%
"
&
:
$-'
$&
'/
*
#
2
*
:
+'
%
)'
+6
*
'&
*
4
'

#
4
$;

;
$&
0
'2
%
%
-'
1
*
<
*
-%
2
;
*
&
+'
.
+'
U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
>

Y
'
H
0
/*
*
1
'2
.
/+
&
*
/#
6
$2
')
"
&
1
$&
0
'+
%
';

.
$&
+.
$&
'_

%
'H
:
+$
<
*
'2
/%
0
/.
;
;
*
'$
&
'7

8
)%
/1
>'

91



Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'6
$0
6
'#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'%
)'
/*
2
.
$/
'.
&
1
';

.
$&
+*
&
.
&
:
*
'.
+'
.
--'
+$
;
*
#

Y
'
+%
';

.
$&
+.
$&
'd

"
*
#
+'
.
:
:
/*
1
$+
.
+$
%
&
'.
+'
.
';

$&
$;

"
;
'e
_
%
%
1
?'
.
+'
!
*
//
,
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
F'

U
-.
:
5
@
$/
1
'(
*
,
#
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
F'
7
8
)%
/1
'A
:
*
'V
$&
5
FU
.
/+
%
&
'(
*
$#
"
/*
'9
*
&
+/
*
'.
&
1
'.
'

/.
+$
&
0
'%
)'
eI
.
+$
#
).
:
+%
/,
?'
.
+'
a
$&
5
#
*
,
'7

"
+1
%
%
/'
J
%
%
->

S
ta

ffi
n

g
:

Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
+6
*
'/
$0
6
+'
2
*
%
2
-*
'.
/*
'$
&
'+
6
*
'/
$0
6
+'
2
-.
:
*
'.
+'
+6
*
'/
$0
6
+'
+$
;
*

Y
'
+%
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
'.
'#
:
%
/*
'%
)'
\
C
X
'$
&
'%
<
*
/.
--'
'#
+.
))
'#
.
+$
#
).
:
+$
%
&

Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
+6
*
'!
"
#
$%
&
'4

%
/5
)%
/:
*
'$
&
'7

8
)%
/1
'$
#
'.
#
'/
*
2
/*
#
*
&
+.
+$
<
*
'.
#
'2
%
#
#
$@
-*
'%
)'

+6
*
'-
%
:
.
-'
:
%
;
;
"
&
$+
,>

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
:

Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
&
'$
;
.
0
$&
.
+$
<
*
'.
2
2
/%
.
:
6
'+
%
'2
"
@
-$:
'/
*
-.
+$
%
&
#
F'
#
"
:
6
'+
6
.
+'
).
:
$-$
+,
'.
&
1

'
#
*
/<
$:
*
'#
"
:
:
*
#
#
*
#
'.
/*
':
%
;
;
"
&
$:
.
+*
1
'.
&
1
':
*
-*
@
/.
+*
1

Y
''
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'K
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
':
%
&
:
*
#
#
$%
&
.
/,
'@
%
&
"
#
';

*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
#

Y
''
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'[
X
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'+
%
+.
-'
;
*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
#

Y
''
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
+6
*
'2
/%
1
"
:
+#
'.
&
1
'#
*
/<
$:
*
#
'%
))
*
/*
1
'@
,
'+
6
*
'-
*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'.
/*

'
$&
&
%
<
.
+$
<
*
'.
&
1
'.
++
/.
:
+$
<
*

Y
''
+%
'*
#
+.
@
-$#
6
'.
&
1
';

.
$&
+.
$&
'+
6
*
'6
$0
6
*
#
+'
#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'%
)'
4
*
@
'.
&
1
'#
%
:
$.
-'
;
*
1
$.

'
2
/%
;
%
+$
%
&

Y
''
+%
'*
#
+.
@
-$#
6
'.
&
1
';

.
$&
+.
$&
'+
6
*
'6
$0
6
*
#
+'
#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'%
)'
).
:
$-$
+,
'2
/*
#
*
&
+.
+$
%
&

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t:

Y
'
+%
'1
*
<
*
-%
2
'2
%
#
$+
$<
*
'.
&
1
'2
/%
1
"
:
+$
<
*
'2
.
/+
&
*
/#
6
$2
#
'4

$+
6
'5
*
,
'-
%
:
.
-'
#
+.
5
*
6
%
-1
*
/#
>

Y
''
+%
'1
*
<
*
-%
2
':
-%
#
*
/'
/*
-.
+$
%
&
#
6
$2
#
'4

$+
6
'-
%
:
.
-'
#
2
%
/+
#
':
-"
@
#
'.
&
1
':
%
;
;
"
&
$+
,
':
*
&
+/
*
#
'

.
&
1
'0
/%
"
2
#
>

Y
''
+%
'1
*
<
*
-%
2
':
-%
#
*
/'
4
%
/5
$&
0
'/
*
-.
+$
%
&
#
6
$2
#
'4

$+
6
'#
:
6
%
%
-#
'.
&
1
':
%
--*
0
*
#
>

Y
''
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
.
--'
).
:
$-$
+,
'2
/%
0
/.
;
;
*
#
'.
/*
'*
8
:
$+
$&
0
F'
$&
&
%
<
.
+$
<
*
'.
&
1
'.
++
/.
:
+$
<
*

'
+%
'"
#
*
/#
'.
&
1
'2
%
+*
&
+$
.
-'
"
#
*
/#
>

Y
''
+%
'$
;
2
-*
;
*
&
+'
.
&
'.
:
+$
%
&
'2
-.
&
'+
%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
;
.
8
$;

"
;
'@
*
&
*
3
+'
$#
'1
*
/$
<
*
1
')
/%
;

'
+6
*
'C
D
K
C
'7

-,
;
2
$:
#
'.
&
1
'J
.
/.
-,
;
2
$:
#
>

Y
''
+%
'*
8
2
-%
/*
'.
--'
%
2
2
%
/+
"
&
$+
$*
#
')
%
/'
*
8
+*
/&
.
-'
)"
&
1
$&
0
>

Y
''
+%
'2
%
#
$+
$<
*
-,
'2
/%
;
%
+*
'+
6
*
'@
*
&
*
3
+#
'%
)'
6
*
.
-+
6
,
'-
$)
*
#
+,
-*
#
>

Y
''
+%
'1
*
<
*
-%
2
'%
2
2
%
/+
"
&
$+
$*
#
'%
)'
4
%
/5
$&
0
'2
.
/+
&
*
/#
6
$2
#
'4

$+
6
'6
*
.
-+
6
'.
&
1
'4

*
--@

*
$&
0
'

%
/0
.
&
$#
.
+$
%
&
#
'+
%
'2
/%
;
%
+*
'2
/*
<
*
&
+.
+$
<
*
'$
&
+*
/<
*
&
+$
%
&
#
>

O
6
*
'#
*
:
+$
%
&
#
'@
*
-%
4
'#
*
+'
%
"
+'
%
"
/'
#
*
/<
$:
*
'%
@
M*
:
+$
<
*
#
'.
&
1
'+
.
/0
*
+#
')
%
/'
+6
*
'2
*
/$
%
1
'H
2
/$
-'

C
D
K
C
'+
%
'B

.
/:
6
'C
D
K
N
>

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l:
Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'K
D
X
',
*
.
/G
%
&
G,
*
.
/'
/*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
'#
"
@
#
$1
,
'2
*
/'
"
#
*
/

Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
2
/$
:
$&
0
'#
+/
"
:
+"
/*
#
'.
&
1
'-
*
<
*
-#
'.
:
/%
#
#
'+
6
*
'-
*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'.
/*
'

.
2
2
/%
2
/$
.
+*
'.
&
1
'$
&
:
-"
#
$<
*
'+
%
'#
"
2
2
%
/+
'+
.
/0
*
+'
0
/%
"
2
#
'

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
:

Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'[
X
',
*
.
/G
%
&
G,
*
.
/'
$&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'2
.
/+
$:
$2
.
+$
%
&
'@
,
'+
.
/0
*
+'
0
/%
"
2
#
b

''
G'
"
#
*
/#
')
/%
;
'@
-.
:
5
F'
;
$&
%
/$
+,
'.
&
1
'*
+6
&
$:
'0
/%
"
2
#

''
G'
"
#
*
/#
'/
*
#
$1
*
&
+'
$&
'+
6
*
';

%
/*
'1
*
2
/$
<
*
1
'4

.
/1
#
'$
&
'+
6
*
'9
$+
,

''
G'
"
#
*
/#
'.
0
*
1
'%
<
*
/'
[
D

''
G'
"
#
*
/#
'.
0
*
1
'"
&
1
*
/'
K
W
'4

$+
6
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
1
'*
;
2
6
.
#
$#
'%
&
'*
&
:
%
"
/.
0
$&
0
'*
1
"
:
.
+$
%
&
.
-'

.
++
.
$&
;
*
&
+>

''
G'
"
#
*
/#
'4

$+
6
'1
$#
.
@
$-$
+$
*
#

''
G'
4
%
;
*
&
'.
&
1
'0
$/
-#

Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'[
X
',
*
.
/'
%
&
',
*
.
/'
$&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'`
K
\
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0

Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'N
X
',
*
.
/'
%
&
',
*
.
/'
$&
:
/*
.
#
*
'$
&
'%
<
*
/'
W
D
'#
4
$;

;
$&
0
>

Y
'
+%
'$
;
2
/%
<
*
'0
*
&
*
/.
-'
.
:
:
*
#
#
'+
%
'.
--'
#
$+
*
#

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

:
Y
'
+%
';

.
$&
+.
$&
':
"
#
+%
;
*
/'
#
.
+$
#
).
:
+$
%
&
'-
*
<
*
-#
'.
+'
-*
$#
"
/*
')
.
:
$-$
+$
*
#
'.
@
%
<
*
'E
[
X
''

Y
'
+%
')
"
--,
'*
;
@
*
1
'!
"
#
$%
&
?#
':
"
#
+%
;
*
/'
:
.
/*
'2
/%
0
/.
;
;
*
#

Y
'
+%
'1
*
-$<
*
/'
.
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'%
)'
.
+'
-*
.
#
+'
[
X
'$
&
'.
&
&
"
.
-'
:
.
&
:
*
--.
+$
%
&
'%
)'
;
*
;
@
*
/#
6
$2
#

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

:
Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
')
"
--'
:
%
;
2
-$.
&
:
*
'4

$+
6
'6
*
.
-+
6
'.
&
1
'#
.
)*
+,

F
a

c
il
it

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:
Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'+
6
.
+'
6
$0
6
')
.
:
$-$
+,
'2
/*
#
*
&
+.
+$
%
&
'#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'.
/*
';

.
$&
+.
$&
*
1
'.
+'
.
--'
+$
;
*
#

Y
'
+%
'.
:
6
$*
<
*
'.
<
*
/.
0
*
')
.
:
$-$
+,
'$
&
#
2
*
:
+$
%
&
'#
:
%
/*
#
'%
)'
.
+'
-*
.
#
+'
E
[
X
'.
:
/%
#
#
'.
--'
).
:
$-$
+$
*
#

Y
'
+%
'*
&
0
.
0
*
')
"
--,
'4

$+
6
'+
6
*
'9
%
"
&
:
$-?
#
'2
/$
%
/$
+,
F'
m+
%
'+
.
:
5
-*
':
-$;

.
+*
':
6
.
&
0
*
'.
&
1
'2
/%
;
%
+*
'

#
"
#
+.
$&
.
@
-*
'*
&
<
$/
%
&
;
*
&
+.
-'
/*
#
%
"
/:
*
';

.
&
.
0
*
;
*
&
+F
n'
.
&
1
'+
%
':
%
&
+/
$@
"
+*
'+
%
'+
6
*
'

9
%
"
&
:
$-?
#
'1
*
-$<
*
/,
'%
)'
.
'[
X
'/
*
1
"
:
+$
%
&
'$
&
':
.
/@
%
&
'*
;
$#
#
$%
&
#
',
*
.
/G
%
&
G,
*
.
/>
''

Y
'
+%
'/
*
1
"
:
*
'0
*
&
*
/.
-'
/*
)"
#
*
'@
,
'C
[
X
'.
&
1
'+
%
'$
&
:
/*
.
#
*
'/
*
:
,
:
-$&
0
'4

.
#
+*
'@
,
'C
[
X

Y
'
+%
'*
&
#
"
/*
'6
$0
6
'#
+.
&
1
.
/1
#
'%
)'
:
-*
.
&
$&
0
'.
+'
.
--'
+$
;
*
#

C
D
K
C
LK
N
'7

@
M*
:
+$
<
*
#
'.
&
1
'O
.
/0
*
+#

C
D
K
C
LK
N
'7

@
M*
:
+$
<
*
#
'.
&
1
'O
.
/0
*
+#

W
\

92



A&'2/*#*&+$&0'+6$#'#";;./,'%)'+6*'H&&".-'I*/<$:*'J-.&')%/'CDKCLKNF'4*'

./*'5**&'+%'0.$&'.#';":6')**1@.:5'.#'2%##$@-*')/%;':"#+%;*/#F'#+.))'.&1'

%+6*/'5*,'#+.5*6%-1*/#>'

=*'4.&+'+%'5&%4'$)',%"'+6$&5'4*'./*'+/,$&0'+%'1%'+6*'/$06+'+6$&0#F'46*+6*/'

%/'&%+'4*'./*'.:6$*<$&0'%"/'%@M*:+$<*#'.&1'46.+'5*,'+./0*+#'4*'#6%"-1'

@*':%&#$1*/$&0'46*&'4*'#+./+'+%'2/*2./*'%"/'&*8+'H&&".-'I*/<$:*'J-.&')%/'

CDKNLKR>

O6.&5',%"')%/'+.5$&0'+6*'+$;*'+%'/*.1'+6$#'-*.P*+>'o%"/'%2$&$%&'$#'<.-"*1'

.&1'4*'-%%5')%/4./1'+%'6*./$&0')/%;',%">'

A)',%"'&**1'.'+/.&#-.+$%&F'.'LARGE PRINT'<*/#$%&'%/'.':%2,'%)'+6$#'
2"@-$:.+$%&'$&'.&%+6*/')%/;.+F'2-*.#*':%&+.:+'"#>

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '

All feedback is gratefully received and there is a range of ways in 

which you can tell us what you think:

Y'+.-5'+%'%"/'#+.))

Y':%;2-*+*'%&*'%)'%"/'mJ-*.#*'O*--'`#'=6.+'o%"'O6$&5n':%;;*&+'

''':./1#F'.<.$-.@-*'.+'*.:6'%)'+6*'-*$#"/*').:$-$+$*#

Y'.++*&1'%&*'%)'+6*'9"#+%;*/'!%/";#'+6.+'4$--'@*'%/0.&$#*1'.:/%##'

'''+6*').:$-$+$*#'+6/%"06'+6*':%"/#*'%)'+6*',*./

Y'2.##',%"/':%;;*&+#'+%'.'/*2/*#*&+.+$<*'%)'+6*'`#*/'_/%"2#'+6.+'

''';**+'.+'*.:6').:$-$+,

Y'.++*&1'%&*'%)'%"/'/*0"-./';.&.0*;*&+'#"/0*/$*#'+6.+'4$--'@*'6*-1'

'''+6/%"06'+6*':%"/#*'%)'+6*',*./

Y':%&+.:+'"#'@,'*G;.$-'.+'@-.:5@$/1T)"#$%&G-$)*#+,-*>:%;

Y'4/$+*'+%'!"#$%&?#'h$<$#$%&.-'U"#$&*##'B.&.0*/F'I+*<*'a%-+F':L%'

'''U-.:5@$/1'(*,#'(*$#"/*'9*&+/*F'J*0.#"#'V%.1F'U-.:5@$/1'(*,#F'

'''78)%/1F'7pR'W](

!"#$%&'($)*#+,-*'$#'.'/*0$#+*/*1'&%+')%/'2/%3+'%/0.&$#.+$%&'4%/5$&0'$&'2./+&*/#6$2'

4$+6'78)%/1'9$+,'9%"&:$-'+%';.&.0*',%"/'-%:.-'-*$#"/*').:$-$+$*#

93



94

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 T
h

re
e

R
is

k
 I
D

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e

O
w

n
e
r

D
a
te

 R
is

k
 

R
e
v
ie

w
e
d

P
ro

x
im

it
y
 o

f 

R
is

k

(P
ro

je
c
ts

/

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

O
n

ly
)

C
a
te

g
o

ry
-

0
0
0
-S

e
rv

ic
e

A
re

a
 C

o
d

e

R
is

k
 T

it
le

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/

T
h

re
a
t

R
is

k
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

R
is

k
 C

a
u

s
e

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e

D
a
te

ra
is

e
d

1
 t

o
 6

I
P

I
P

I
P

P
R

R
-0

0
1
-C

L
C

o
u
n
c
il 

R
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

T
h
re

a
t

D
is

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
.

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
in

tr
in

s
ic

 l
in

k
a
g
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

la
n
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
la

n
; 
P

o
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 v

is
io

n
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 m

o
d
e
rn

 

w
o
rl
d
-c

la
s
s
 l
e
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
, 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 d

a
m

a
g
e
, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 

fu
tu

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
.

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3
3

2
2

2
2

1
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3

P
R

R
-0

0
2
-C

L
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

T
h
re

a
t

F
u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
's

 2
0
1
3
/ 
2
0
1
4
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

a
im

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

fl
e
c
t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
s
s
im

ila
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

V
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
; 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 W

o
rl
d
-C

la
s
s
 

le
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
.

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3

P
R

R
-0

0
3
-C

L
S

a
v
in

g
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

T
h
re

a
t

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s

P
o
o
r 

o
r 

la
c
k
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

2
0
1
3
/ 
2
0
1
4
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
.

V
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3
5

3
3

3
3

3
1

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e

1
8
-F

e
b
-1

3

F
U

S
IO

N
 L

IF
E

S
T

Y
L

E
'S

 2
0
1
3
/ 
2
0
1
4
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

S
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

R
IS

K
 I
M

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
R

is
k

G
ro

s
s
 R

is
k

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
R

is
k

R
is

k

1

95



R
is

k
 m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
; 
w

it
h
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

L
e
is

u
re

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 B
o
a
rd

; 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 

th
e
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

; 
R

o
b
u
s
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
3
/ 

2
0
1
4
 F

u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
.

R
o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 d

e
te

c
t 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
t 
in

 m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
.

2

96



1F
u

s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
’s

 2
0
1
3
/ 

2
0
1
4
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s

. 
 

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 T
h

re
e
 –

 I
n

it
ia

l 
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
: 

L
e

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 
P

a
rk

s
S

e
c

ti
o

n
:

 L
e
is

u
re

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

K
e

y
 p

e
rs

o
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t:
L

. 
C

h
e

rr
y
 (

L
e

is
u

re
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r)

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t:
1
8
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
 

Is
 t

h
is

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
2
0
1
3
-2

0
1
5
?

 
Y

e
s

N
o

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 P
o

li
c

y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s

e
s

s
e

d
: 

!
 

L
e
is

u
re

 F
a

c
ili

ty
 R

e
v
ie

w
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
3
 

!
 

S
p
o
rt

 &
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
4
. 

F
u

s
io

n
 

L
if
e
s
ty

le
’s

 
2

0
1

3
/ 

2
0

1
4

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
la

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 l
e

is
u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
.

Is
 t

h
is

 a
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
x

is
ti

n
g

 p
o

li
c

y
 

E
x
is

ti
n
g

97



2

1
. 

B
ri

e
fl

y
 d

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 t
h

e
 a

im
s

, 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 a

n
d

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
li

c
y
 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e

is
u
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 
a

re
:

!
 

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 w

o
rl
d
-c

la
s
s
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 t

h
e
y
 o

ff
e
r;

 

!
 

T
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 f

o
r 

le
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 2

0
0
9
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s
e
r 

w
a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
; 

!
 

T
h
e
 l

e
is

u
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h
 F

u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 w

ill
 s

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 l

o
c
a
l 

ta
x
 p

a
y
e
rs

 o
v
e
r 

£
7
m

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 t

e
n
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

 £
4

m
 i

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

fo
u

r 
y
e
a
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t;
 

!
 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 
th

e
 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
o
f 

a
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
 
u
p
w

a
rd

 
c
y
c
le

 
o
f 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 s
u
rp

lu
s
 s

h
a
re

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
F

u
s
io

n
 
L

if
e

s
ty

le
 
to

 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
th

e
ir
 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
a
n
d

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

le
is

u
re

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 
q
u
a
lit

y
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 
a
re

 
h
ig

h
 
a
n
d
 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 
w

ill
 
b
e
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 
w

it
h
 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 
a
n
d
 
w

it
h
 
in

c
lu

s
iv

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

!
 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 a
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
ra

te
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 a

ff
o
rd

 a
n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 a

 h
ig

h
ly

 c
o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 i
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

!
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
7
 

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 t

o
: 

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 

!
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s
e

r 

!
 

H
a
v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

!
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 w
o
rl
d
-c

la
s
s
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
. 

98



3

2
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
li
c
y
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 e

x
p

la
in

 
T

h
e
 
L
e
is

u
re

 
F

a
c
ili

ty
 
R

e
v
ie

w
 
(M

a
y
 
2
0
0
9
) 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 
to

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 
a
 
c
it
y
 
w

id
e
 

le
is

u
re

 o
ff

e
r 

th
a

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

ll 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 i
rr

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
w

a
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

w
o
 a

re
 i
n
 p

o
o
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
. 

3
. 

W
h

o
 i

s
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 p
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

 w
h

a
t 

w
a
y
 

!
 

U
s
e
rs

 o
f 

 a
ll 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 O

x
fo

rd
; 

!
 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta

x
 p

a
y
e
rs

; 

!
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
: 

T
h
o
s
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
5
0
 y

e
a
rs

; 
B

la
c
k
, 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 E

th
n
ic

 
g
ro

u
p
s
; 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
; 

W
o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 g

ir
ls

; 
T

h
o
s
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
; 

th
o
s
e
 o

n
 a

 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 (

a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
p

e
n

d
a

n
ts

).
 

!
 

C
it
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

4
. 

W
h

a
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 a

re
 w

a
n

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 p
o

li
c
y
?

 

T
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
tr

in
s
ic

a
lly

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
, 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 c

le
a
rl
y
 s

e
t 

th
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
e
ts

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 m

o
d
e
rn

 w
o
rl
d
-c

la
s
s
 l
e
is

u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

le
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ty
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 t

o
: 

!
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

 

!
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 p

e
r 

u
s
e

r 

!
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

!
 

O
ff
e
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 w
o
rl
d
-c

la
s
s
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e
. 

!
 

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 u

s
e
 b

y
 u

n
d
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 

w
o
m

e
n
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
B

M
E

. 

5
. 

W
h

a
t 

fa
c
to

rs
/f

o
rc

e
s
 c

o
u

ld
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
/d

e
tr

a
c

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
?

!
 

T
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

. 

!
 

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

le
is

u
re

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
. 

6
. 

W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 
s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
th

e
 p

o
li

c
y
 

- 
O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il;

 
- 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

; 
- 

F
u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
; 

- 
F

a
c
ili

ty
 u

s
e

rs
; 

- 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

; 
- 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

7
. 

W
h

o
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

a
n

d
 w

h
o

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
o

li
c

y
?

 

L
e

is
u

re
 
a

n
d

 
P

a
rk

s
; 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

99



4

8
.

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
o

li
c

y
 c
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 r
a
c
ia

l 
g

ro
u

p
s
?

Y
N

o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

(e
it

h
e

r 
p

re
s
u

m
e

d
 o

r 
o

th
e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
is

?

A
 

w
id

e
 

o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
p
ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 
L
if
e
s
ty

le
 
s
h
a
re

s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 
a
n
d
 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 
th

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 
a

re
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 

to
 

lo
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 

c
o
re

 
c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

fo
c
u
s
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a
re

; 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
; 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ri
c
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

a
c
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
. 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 7

5
,0

0
0
 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

 

F
u
s
io

n
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 “

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

” 
w

it
h

 w
h

o
m

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 
th

e
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

B
M

E
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

100



5

9
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

c
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 
g

e
n

d
e
r?

Y
N

o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 (

e
it

h
e
r 

p
re

s
u

m
e
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fo
r 

th
is

?
 

A
 

w
id

e
 

o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
p
ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 
L
if
e
s
ty

le
 
s
h
a
re

s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 
a
n
d
 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 
th

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 l

o
c
a

l 
n
e
e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
 

o
n
 
th

e
 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 
in

te
re

s
ts

 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a
re

; 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
; 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ri
c
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 g

e
n
d
e
r.

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
is

 u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

w
it
h
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 3

6
0
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 W

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 G

ir
ls

. 

F
u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 h

a
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 a

n
 O

x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 A

c
ti
v
e
 W

o
m

e
n
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
to

r.
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 W

o
m

e
n
 i
s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

b
e
in

g
 d

ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 S

p
o
rt

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 t

o
 g

e
t 

m
o
re

 w
o
m

e
n
 

fr
o
m

 d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 w
o
m

e
n
 c

a
ri
n
g
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 

p
la

y
in

g
 s

p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 a

im
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 

a
s
 e

a
s
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

e
n
n
is

, 
jo

g
g
in

g
, 

fo
o

tb
a

ll,
 n

e
tb

a
ll,

 b
a
d
m

in
to

n
, 

tr
a
m

p
o
lin

in
g
, 

b
a
s
k
e
tb

a
ll 

a
n
d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
. 

101



6

1
0
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

c
t 

d
u

e
 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
?

 
Y

N
o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 (

e
it

h
e
r 

p
re

s
u

m
e
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fo
r 

th
is

?
 

A
 

w
id

e
 

o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
p

ti
o
n

s
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
p
ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 
L
if
e
s
ty

le
 
s
h
a
re

s
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 
a

n
d

 
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 
th

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 l

o
c
a

l 
n
e

e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
 

o
n
 
th

e
 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 
in

 
th

e
 
in

te
re

s
ts

 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a
re

; 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
; 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
is

 u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

it
h

 m
o

re
 

th
a
n
 1

4
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 t

h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

o
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a

n
ts

 a
re

 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

d
is

c
o
u
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 B

o
n
u
s
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 L

if
e

s
ty

le
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
 ‘

O
x
fo

rd
 S

w
a
n
s
’ 

w
h
o
 h

o
ld

 s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
F

e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 T

e
m

p
le

 C
o
w

le
y
 P

o
o
ls

. 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 D

D
A

 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h
 F

u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 g

iv
e
 f

u
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

is
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

. 

102



7

1
1
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 
p

e
o

p
le

 d
u

e
 t

o
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

?
 

Y
N

o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 (

e
it

h
e
r 

p
re

s
u

m
e
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fo
r 

th
is

?
 

A
 

w
id

e
 

o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
p
ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 

L
if
e
s
ty

le
 

s
h
a
re

s
 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 

e
q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a

re
; 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
; 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 

 

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ri
c
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 

103



8

1
2
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 
p

e
o

p
le

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 a
g

e
?

 
Y

N
o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 (

e
it

h
e
r 

p
re

s
u

m
e
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fo
r 

th
is

?
 

A
 

w
id

e
 

o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

m
e

m
b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
p
ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 

L
if
e
s
ty

le
 

s
h
a
re

s
 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a

re
; 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
; 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 

 

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
is

 u
s
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
 i

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

it
h

 m
o

re
 

th
a
n
 1

2
9
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 l

e
is

u
re

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d

 u
n
d
e
r 

1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e
; 

a
n

d
 

7
4
,0

0
0
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 6

0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r.

 

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 
fe

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 
a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
th

e
s
e
 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 f

re
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 a

n
d
 f

re
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 l

e
s
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 

a
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 o

ff
e
r 

P
ri
m

e
ti
m

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 5

0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
r.

 

104



9

1
3
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

c
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 
p

e
o

p
le

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 r
e
li
g

io
u

s
 b

e
li
e
f?

 
Y

N
o

W
h

a
t 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 (

e
it

h
e
r 

p
re

s
u

m
e
d

 o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fo
r 

th
is

?
 

A
 w

id
e
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 p

ri
c
e

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

F
u
s
io

n
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 s

h
a
re

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a

t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
re

 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 l

o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
. 

T
h
e
ir
 c

o
re

 c
h

a
ri
ta

b
le

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
o
f 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

e
lf
a

re
; 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
; 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
.

K
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

F
u
s
io

n
s
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

re
: 

!
 

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
; 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
; 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

; 
P

ri
c
in

g
; 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
; 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

ri
c
in

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
 b

e
lie

f.
 

F
u
s
io

n
 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 
la

d
ie

s
 
o
n
ly

 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 
(i
.e

. 
T

e
m

p
le

 
C

o
w

le
y
 P

o
o
l 
a
n
d
 F

e
rr

y
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
).

 

105



1
0

1
4
. 

C
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a
l 

im
p

a
c

t 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 8
-1

3
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

to
 t

h
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
v

e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
in

 t
h

is
 p

o
li

c
y
?

 

Y
N

o

1
5
. 

C
a
n

 t
h

is
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

b
e
 j

u
s
ti

fi
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 o

f 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 
e

q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

o
n

e
 g

ro
u

p
?

 O
r 

a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
re

a
s

o
n

 
Y

N
o

If
 Y

e
s
, 

is
 t

h
e
re

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
e
d

 t
o

 a
 f

u
ll
 E

IA
: 

N
o

 

1
6
. 

S
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e
 p

o
li
c
y
 

p
ro

c
e
e
d

 t
o

 a
 p

a
rt

ia
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t?
Y

N
o

D
a

te
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 P

a
rt

ia
l 

o
r 

F
u

ll
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 

n
/a

S
ig

n
e
d
 (

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 o

ff
ic

e
r)

: 
_
L
u
c
y
 C

h
e
rr

y
_
_

  
  

 S
ig

n
e
d
 (

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r)

 _
_
Ia

n
 B

ro
o
k
e
_
_
 

T
e
a
m

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
: 

C
it

y
 L

e
is

u
re

: 
 

 
 

P
e
o

p
le

 &
 E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
: 

L
e
is

u
re

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

C
it
y
 L

e
is

u
re

 

1
7
. 

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
m

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

s
?

Y
E

S
N

o
1
8
. 

D
a
te

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
 

u
p

d
a
te

d
A

p
ri
l

2
0
1
3

1
9

. 
D

a
te

 c
o

p
y
 

s
e

n
t 

to
 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

O
ff

ic
e

r 
1
9
.0

2
.1

3

2
0

. 
D

a
te

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
:

n
/a

D
a

te
 t

o
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 C
E

B
 

n
/a

2
1
. 

D
a
te

 
p

u
b

li
s
h

e
d

T
B

C

106



 1

 
 
  
  
 
 

 

                                                                                
 
To:  City Executive Board  
 
Date:  10th April 2013              

 
Report of:   Head of Leisure and Parks 
 
Title of: YOUTH AMBITION STATEGY     
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:              To approve the Draft Youth Ambition Strategy for   
                                              public consultation. 
          
Key decision?  No 
 
Executive lead member:     Councillor Steve Curran  
 
Policy Framework:  
                                              Strong and Active Communities 
 
 
Recommendation(s):           To approve the Youth Ambition Strategy for   
                                               consultation.   
 

 
 
Appendix 1: Round One Grant Awards 
Appendix 2: Risk Register 
Appendix 3: Initial Equalities Impact Assessment 
Appendix 4: Draft Youth Ambition Strategy 2013-2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

107



 2

 
 
1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The Youth Ambition Strategy outlines the Council’s approach to 
improving the life chances of young people, focusing on: 

 

• Joining up Oxford’s services for young people 

• Suggests creating inter-partner pathways 

• How we can more fully involve young people in how we develop and 
deliver services 

• Levering in additional resources 

• Inspiring young people to reach their potential  

• Prioritising this work in the areas of greatest need.  
 
2. Methodology  
 
2.1 We have developed the strategy with the support and guidance of the 

Local Government Association’s ‘Routes to Success’ programme and 
have worked with an experienced educational advisor to develop an in-
depth understanding of the needs of young people in the city. 

 
2.2 An extensive review of young people’s needs in the city was 

undertaken in 2012/13; it highlighted the main priority as supporting 
young people to make the transition from secondary school to 
adulthood. In response, this strategy focuses on 15-21 year olds, and 
also identifies actions to work with secondary schools to prepare 
students for the next period of their lives. 

 
2.3 The strategy refers to target areas. We will use the consultation to 

further inform the needs work we have undertaken to finalise these 
areas.    

 
2.4 The programme will use a broad range of positive activities to engage 

young people. While the consultation and youth voice will be 
fundamental in shaping our provision, the first round of grant awards 
has been included as appendix one to demonstrate the type of work 
currently underway.  

 
3.  Relationships to other Strategies 
 
3.1 This strategy works alongside the Council’s commitment to improving 

educational attainment and has at its heart, a focus on improving the 
life chances of young people and helping to break the cycle of 
deprivation. 

 
3.2 The Youth Ambition Strategy and needs analysis seeks to influence the 

City Council’s policy framework to ensure it reflects the needs of 
Oxford’s young people. 

 

108



 3

4. A summary of the work we have undertaken on local needs   
 
4.1 An extensive needs analysis has been undertaken which highlights: 
 

• Oxford has an above average proportion of young people and this 
population segment is growing in size 

• Oxford’s younger population is increasingly diverse 

• There are areas of the city where children and young people are 
affected by multiple deprivation 

• Young people are experiencing extended and fractured journeys into 
adulthood 

• There is a decline in young people going into further education 

• A high number of young people (250) are not in employment, education 
or training (NEETS)  

• Young people have a lack of genuine influence on the services that 
impact on their lives.  

 
5.  Consultation Process 
 

5.1      Prior to the consultation there has been a significant amount of   
exploratory work over the past year to enable the development of the 
strategy. This has included meetings with the Community Sport 
Network, Fusion Lifestyle, other Council departments, Oxfordshire 
Association for Young People, Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire 
Sports Partnership, Oxford University, Sport England, The National 
Youth Agency, Oxford Spires Academy and various businesses. 

  
5.2      The consultation on the strategy will include the above agencies plus  
           organisations such as:  
 

• Colleges 

• Health Sector: NHS Oxfordshire; Surgeries; hospitals 

• Oxford Brookes University  

• Oxfordshire Community and Voluntary Association  

• The Youth Offending Service  

• Secondary schools 

• Thames Valley Police 

• Neighbourhood Action Groups 

• Parish Councils and 

• Young people themselves. 
 
5.3      In addition, throughout the consultation period the draft strategy will be   

available on the Oxford City Council web site and will be available for 
comment through the on-line consultation page. A press release will 
coincide with the start of the consultation. 

 
 
 
 

109



 4

6. Level of Risk 
 

6.1 The relative level of risk is low. The main risk is how we keep the 
programme sustainable after the three years of funding runs out. We 
will work to attain funding to continue this work after this time. 
 

7. Climate Change 
 
7.1 While there is no direct impact on the climate from the strategy, there 

are opportunities to educate young people on the issues around 
climate change within the programme.  

 
8. Equalities Impact 
 

8.1       An initial Equalities Impact Assessment is shown in appendix two. 
 

9.        Financial Implications 
 

9.1 The programme budget is £240,000 each year from 2012 to 2015. The 
underspend from year one will be rolled into year two of the 
programme. 

 
9.2 A detailed breakdown of how the monies will be used to deliver the 

strategy will be included in the post consultation report. 
 
10. Legal Implications 

 
10.1 There are no direct legal implications. 
 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name: Ian Brooke 
Job title: Head of Service  
Service Area / Department: Leisure and Parks 
Tel:  01865 252705  e-mail: ibrooke@oxford.gov.uk   

 
List of background papers: None: Version number: 2.1 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110



 5

Appendix One – Round One Grant Awards 
 

Grant Applications to the Youth Ambition Grant Programme – February 2013. 
 

Corporate Priority: Strong and Active Communities 
 

Organisation & project description Objective the 
application was 
submitted under 

Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Recom’d 
 

Why? 

Ark T Centre 
Funding requested for the Ark T music project 
to engage with young people at risk and in 
challenging circumstances from deprived 
areas of Oxford. 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime & anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£8,833 Nil A project that is strong on need and targeted 
towards vulnerable young people. 
 
However grant funding has been recommended 
for this project through the Open Bidding Grants 
Programme.  
 
Therefore the panel recommend not funding this 
request. 
 

Body Politic 
Body Politic offers training opportunities for 
young people to develop their passion for hip-
hop (dance). 
 
Funding requested to deliver 36 weeks of 
street dance sessions in Barton, Blackbird 
Leys and Wood Farm.  
 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£8,336 Nil Body Politic is the company name of a self-
employed person. 
 
Listed under the items that Oxford City Council 
does not wish to fund are individuals. The panel 
agreed this application falls into this criteria.  
 
Therefore the recommendation is not to fund. . 

The Children’s Society 
A national charity with a branch in Oxford.   
 
Funding requested to set up a weekly club for 
young people who have arrived into the UK in 
the last three years.  The club would focus 
on:- 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime & anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£10,000 Nil Oxford City Council currently funds Asylum 
Welcome through the Community Grants 
Commissioning Programme to work with the 
same client group. 
 
 
Therefore the recommendation is not to fund this 

111



 6

• Developing self-confidence and 
empowerment 

• Strengthening roots in the community 

• Keeping safe 
 
 
 

request. 

Fusion Arts 
A community arts organisation that is based in 
East Oxford Community Centre. 
 
Funding requested to deliver a project called 
Creative Apprentices. 
 
The aim is to engage with 12 young people 
who will work with professional artists to 
deliver after school art workshops to primary 
school children resulting in a showcase that 
will be part of the Winter Light Night.  
 
The 12 young people will be given the 
opportunity to gain an Arts Award 
Accreditation and get hands on experience of 
planning and delivering creative workshops to 
primary school children in Barton, Rose Hill, 
Wood Farm, East Oxford & Blackbird Leys.  
. 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£9,992 £4,996 A project aiming to improve skills and 
employment opportunities for up to 12 young 
people identified as not in employment, 
education or training.  
 
The panel recommend funding 50% of this 
request which is conditional on the accreditation 
part of the project being delivered.  
 
 
 

Green Square Housing Group – Rose Hill 
Junior Youth Club 
Funding requested to develop good health 
outcomes (physical and mental) for up to 50 
children attending the Rose Hill Junior Youth 
Club, through:- 
 

• Awareness of good food and healthy 

More Active, engaged 
young people 

£3,040 £3,040 An application that was strong on evidencing the 
need and is being delivered in an area of 
multiple deprivation.  
 
The Rose Hill Junior Youth Club has been 
operating for 3 years and has grown and 
improved since established.   
 

112



 7

eating 

• Access to safe, healthy, creative sport 
and play sessions 

 
 

Evidence shows it is an inclusive project.  
 
The panel recommend funding 100% of this 
request. 
  

Innovista International – Thrive Allotment 
Project 
Funding requested to develop an allotment 
project and engage with 30 children & young 
people on Barton. 
 

The project will teach them how to grow their 
own food and engage in 8 group sessions 
centred around cooking and healthy eating.  
 

They also plan to hold an allotment dinner for 
200 people using the food grown, prepared 
and cooked by the young people engaged in 
the project.  
 
 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£6,935 Nil Strong on evidencing the need and a targeted 
project with children and young people aged 10-
18 years old in an area of multiple deprivation.  
 

However, the panel were concerned that the 
numbers they intend to work with is ambitious. It 
is known that from previous allotment projects 
that have been run by this organisation very few 
young people have engaged and they found it 
hard to keep the young people committed to the 
project. 
 

It was also noted that Innovista exists to identify 
and develop young leaders to take the hope of 
Jesus to those around them. 
 
The grants criteria clearly states that the City 
Council does not fund activities that promote a 
religion, therefore the recommendation is not to 
fund this request. 
  

Littlemore Village Hall 
Funding requested to engage with up to 20 
young people, aged from 12 -19 years old,  
offering them the opportunity to develop new 
skills and an awareness of occupational 
opportunities.  
 

They hope to achieve this by running three 
short projects. The subjects having been 
identified by the young people engaged with 

Getting young people 
into work 

£4,550 £4,550 Strong on need and targeted work with 
vulnerable young people from Littlemore. 
 

The panel recommend funding 100% of this 
request but that it is conditional they link in with 
the Littlemore job club.  
 
 

113



 8

the Littlemore youth club. 
 
The subjects are :- 
 

• Beauty Therapy  

• Carpentry 

• Youth Theatre 
 

Pegasus Theatre 
Funding requested for a project called Added 
Extra to cover support costs to engage with 
vulnerable young people in regular after 
school activities.    
 

Fewer young people 
either involved with 
crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£10,000 Nil Weak on evidencing the need and no details 
about how many young people they planned to 
work with. 
 

The panel were unclear about what was going to 
be delivered for the funding.  
 

Therefore the recommendation is not to fund.  
 
 
 

SAFE – Support for Young People Affected 
by Crime Ltd 
A new charity operating in Oxfordshire 
supporting young people aged between 8-25 
years old who have been victims of crime. 
 
Funding requested to fund a project worker 
and their expenses to provide direct support 
to young people in social care. 
 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£7,500 Nil Strong on need and targeted work with 
vulnerable children and young people. 
 
However, the application tells us it is an 
Oxfordshire focused project, no information 
provided in the application that identified the 
need in Oxford City. 
 
The piece of work they have requested to fund is 
to support young people in social care.  
 
Within the criteria for this funding programme it 
states that Oxford City Council does not wish to 
reduce or duplicate other organisations 
responsibilities of funding. 
 
The panel agreed this application falls into this 

114



 9

category and therefore the recommendation is 
not to fund. 
 

Sports for Streets Initiative 
Funding requested to pay the salary and 
support costs of two skateboard coaches for 8 
weeks from 28

th
 May until 20

th
 July 2013. 

 
They plan to provide skateboarding sessions 
in three skate parks in Oxford (Meadow Lane, 
Blackbird Leys & Sunnymead). 
 
 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£10,000 Nil Oxford City Councils Leisure and Parks 
department delivers a programme of street 
sports activities.  
 
The panel agreed that the application from 
Sports for Streets Initiative would be a 
duplication of this work. 
 
Therefore the panel recommend not funding this 
application.   
 
 
 
 

Sudanese Family in Oxford 
Funding requested to develop:- 
 

• An after school programme for 
Sudanese, Somalia & Swahili children 
& young people where they will have 
indoor activities & homework 
assistance.  

 

• A Summer programme which will 
cater for up to 129 Sudanese, 
Somalia & Swahili children & young 
people and provide academic 
tutoring, health and life skills. 

 
 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£5,285.98 Nil The panel felt this was an expensive project and 
the costs were unrealistic. Fitness sessions they 
want to fund are delivered by leisure in various 
areas of the City. 
 
The application tells us that they expect income 
from membership fees but they have not shown 
how this will be used to deliver any of these 
activities.  
 
The panel recommend not funding this request 
but suggest they get support from OCVA and re-
submit another application to a future round. 
 

Victim Support 
Victim Support is a national charity giving free 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 

£6,500 Nil Within the criteria for the Youth Ambition Grants 
Programme it states that Oxford City Council 

115



 10 

and confidential help to victims of crime, 
witnesses, their family, friends and anyone 
else affected across England and Wales 
 
A branch of this organisation is based in the 
Oxford Courts in St Aldates. 
 
Funding has been requested to contribute 
towards their young witness service. Project 
workers support and help young witnesses’ 
prepare for the task of giving evidence in 
court. 
 

crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

does not wish to reduce or duplicate other 
organisations responsibilities of funding. 
 
The panel agreed this application falls into this 
category and therefore the recommendation is 
not to fund. 
 

VIP + (Vulnerable Interventions 
Partnership) 
Funding requested to continue to deliver a 
bespoke art focused project to meet the social 
and emotional needs of the young people in 
social care living at Maltfield House in 
Northway.  
 

The project will target 6 young women aged 
13-17 years old who living at these premises.  
 
 
 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

3,800 Nil Maltfield House is a social services facility for 
children in care. 
 

Within the criteria for the Youth Ambition Grants 
Programme it states that Oxford City Council 
does not wish to reduce or duplicate other 
organisations responsibilities of funding. 
 

The panel agreed this application falls into this 
category and therefore the recommendation is 
not to fund. 
 

Wolvercote Young Peoples Club 
Funding requested to run a youth club on 
Friday nights at Cutteslowe Community 
Centre. 
 

A pilot has been running since November 
2012 and 36 local young people attended on 
a regular basis.  
 
 

More active, engaged 
young people 

£9,968.64 £5,000 Strong on need and targeted work with young 
people in a pocket of deprivation in North Oxford. 
 

The panel felt that their costs were expensive 
and the panel recommend funding £5,000 of this 
request to contribute towards the staffing costs 
to deliver the Friday night sessions 
 

116



 11 

Wood Farm Community Forum 
Funding requested for a 6 month pilot to carry 
out detached* youth work on Wood Farm 
targeting children and young people aged 12-
18 years old. 
 

* Detached youth work is a distinct form of 
work with young people. Youth workers will 
engage with young people where they have 
chosen to be, whether this is on the streets, 
cafes, shopping centres etc. Allowing youth 
workers to engage with the young people who 
may have chosen for whatever reason, not to 
access youth clubs, groups or other more 
formal institutions and are therefore more 
likely to be disengaged and excluded from 
support of any kind. The key to success is in 
the positive relationships built and this 
requires time, commitment and negotiation 
skills. 
 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£8,500 £6,375 Strong on need and a targeted piece of work in 
an area the City Council has identified as a 
regeneration area. 
 

The panel felt that as there was already some 
detached youth work taking place, the panel 
recommend funding 75% of this request, 
conditional that they link in and work with the 
Wood Farm Youth Centre. 

Wood Farm Youth Centre 
Funding requested to continue a girls group 
which meets weekly at the Wood Farm Youth 
Centre.  
 
They plan to increase attendance from 6 to 20 
girls and young women targeting those who 
have been identified as at risk of anti-social 
behaviour and / or becoming victims of sexual 
exploitation.  
 
 
 

Fewer young people 
either involved in 
crime and anti-social 
behaviour or being 
victims 

£6,000 £6,000 Strong on need and targeted work with a group 
of vulnerable girls and young women aged from 
14-16 years old in an area the City Council has 
identified as a regeneration area.  
 
The panel recommend funding 100% of this 
request with the condition the Youth Centre links 
in and works with the Wood Farm Community 
Forum. 

Yellow Submarine 
Yellow Submarine is an organisation that 

Getting young people 
into work. 

£5,277 £3,958 Strong on evidence of need and targeted work 
with disabled and excluded young people. 

117



 12 

supports children & young people with 
learning disabilities. 
 
Funding requested to provide a course of 12 
work experience sessions for disabled young 
people in Oxford. 
 
The sessions will give the young people a 
hands on opportunity to gain skills and a 
taster of what it’s like to be in the work setting. 
 
 

 
Within the application they tell us that if 75% of 
the request is funded they are confident they will 
be able to fundraise for the balance, therefore 
the panel recommend funding 75% of request.  

 
 
 
 

118



 13 

 Appendix Two: Risk Register 

Risk ID Risk  

Category-
000-Service 
Area Code 

Risk Title Opportunity/Threat 
Risk 
Description 

Risk Cause Consequence Date raised 
Corporate 
Objective 

PRR-001-
L&P 

Value for 
money not 
achieved 

Threat 

Value for 
money not 
achieved due 
to lack of a 
strategic 
approach to 
this 
expenditure. 

Strategy not approved 

Value for 
money not 
achieved.  The 
Council’s 
priority of 
supporting 
young people 
is not 
achieved. 

21
- 
Jan -13 

Strong &  
Active 

Communities 

PRR-002-
L&P 

Programme 
sustainability  

Threat 

The 
programme 
ends in 2015 
when the 
budget 
provision ends. 

The financial commitment is for 
three years. 

The 
programme 
ends. 

21
- 
Jan -13 

Strong &  
Active 

Communities 

PRR-003-
L&P 

The targeted 
outcomes 
from the 
programme 
are not 
achieved 

Threat 

The strategy 
does not 
deliver the 
targeted 
outcomes. 

Resources are not in place to 
effectively deliver the action 
plan. 

The Council’s 
priority of 
supporting 
young people 
is not 
achieved. 

21
- 
Jan -13 

Strong and 
Active 

Communities 

PRR-004-
L&P 

Consultation 
not effective  

Threat 

Failure to 
capture 
representative 
views. 

Poorly planned consultation. 

The strategy 
does not 
deliver its 
potential with 
specific 
groups of 
young people 
not included. 

7
-
March -13 

Strong and 
Active 

Communities 

119



 14 

Appendix Three – Equalities Impact Assessment  

               
 

 
Service Area: 
Leisure and 
parks 
 

  
Section: 
 
  

 
Date of 
Partial 
assess
ment: 
23/11/ 
2012 

 
Key Person responsible for 
assessment:  
 
Tim Sadler 
 

 
Date assessment commenced: 
 
14th January 2013 

 

 
Name of Policy to be assessed: 
 

 
Youth Ambition Programme 

 
1. In what area are there concerns that 
the policy could have a differential 
impact 

Race  
 

Disability 
 

Age  
 

Gender 
 

Religious Belief 
 

Sexual Orientation 
 

 
2. Background: 
 
Give the background information to the 
policy and the perceived problems with the 
policy which are the reason for the Impact 

 
The programme is aimed at providing positive activities to young people primarily in our target 
areas. 
 
In planning the programme we need to take account of the diverse and changing 
demographics of the young people of the city to ensure the project and service design and 

120



 15 

Assessment. 
 

delivery does not discriminate against a particular group or section. 
 
Specific efforts will be made to engage with BME groups so they are represented on the 
programme. This will be done by involving them in designing the content of future sessions so 
we can ensure they meet their needs.  
 

 
3. Methodology and Sources of Data: 
The methods used to collect data and what 
sources of data 
 

 
We have undertaken a city wide needs analysis which is appended to the strategy. 
 
The report explains the methodology.  

4. Consultation 
This section should outline all the 
consultation that has taken place on the EIA. 
It should include the following:  
� Why you carried out the consultation. 
� Details about how you went   
           about it.  
� A summary of the replies you 

received from people you consulted. 
� An assessment of your proposed 

policy (or policy options) in the light of 
the responses you received. 

� A statement of what you plan to do 
next 

 
 
This will be included as part of the strategy consultation. 
 

 
5. Assessment of Impact: 
Provide details of the assessment of the 
policy on the six equality strands. There may 

 
 
The strategy is fully inclusive for all young people within the target age groups. The age 
groups have been established based on an in-depth needs analysis. 

121



 16 

have been other groups or individuals that 
you considered. 
 
 

 
 

 
6. Consideration of Measures: 
This section should explain in detail all the 
consideration of alternative 
approaches/mitigation of adverse impact of 
the policy 
 

 
 
 

There will be no adverse effects from the strategy as we are adding new provision to the 
target age groups. 

 
6a. Monitoring Arrangements: 
Outline systems which will be put in place to 
monitor for adverse impact in the future and 
this should include all relevant timetables. In 
addition it could include a summary and 
assessment of your monitoring, making 
clear whether you found any evidence of 
discrimination.  
 

 
 
We will monitor participation by ethnicity and compare with local demograhics and adjust the 
programme accordingly to increase equitable representation. 
 

 
7. 12. Date reported and signed off by the 
Equalities Board:  
 

 
Draft agreed by Jarlath Brine 14th March 2013 

 
8. Conclusions: 
What are your conclusions drawn from the 
results in terms of the policy impact 

 
The Youth Ambition Strategy has inclusion at its core. As the strategy progresses systems 
will continue to evolve to improve the representation of the programme. 

122



 17 

 

9. Are there implications 
for the Service Plans?  

YES NO 
10. Date the Service 
Plans will be updated 

April 2013 

11. Date copy sent 
to Equalities 
Officer in Policy, 
Performance and 
Communication 
 

7th March 
2013 

.13. Date reported to 
Scrutiny and Executive 
Board: 

  
14. Date reported to City 
Executive Board: 

10th April 2013 
12. The date the 
report on EIA will 
be published 

10th April 
2013 

 
 
Signed (completing officer)  Tim Sadler & Ian Brooke     Signed (Lead Officer)  Ian Brooke  
 
 
Equalities & Diversity Business Partner 
 
Jarlath Brine 
 
 

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Oxford City’s Youth Ambition Strategy 2013-2017 
                                                      PRE CONSULTATION DRAFT  
 
Executive summary  
 
Oxford City Council recognises the challenges faced by today’s youth and has 
prioritised helping young people to reach their potential.   
 
An extensive review of young people’s needs in the city was undertaken in 2012/13; 
it highlighted that the main priority is supporting young people to make the transition 
from secondary school to adulthood. In response, this strategy focuses on 15-21 
year olds, and also identifies actions to work with secondary schools to prepare 
students for the next period of their lives. 
 
Due to the pace of change, a flexible approach is adopted that enables the Council 
to flex its resources to have the maximum impact. The strategy focuses on: 

· Joining up Oxford’s services for young people 

· Suggests creating inter-partner pathways 

· How we can more fully involve young people in how we develop and deliver 
services 

· Levering in additional resources 

· Inspiring young people to reach their potential and  

· Prioritising this in the areas of greatest need.  
 
This strategy works alongside the Council’s commitment to improving educational 
attainment, and has at its heart a focus on improving the life chances of young 
people and helping to break the cycle of deprivation. 
 
We have developed the strategy with the support and guidance of the Local 
Government Association’s Routes to Success Programme and have worked with an 
experienced educational advisor to develop an in-depth understanding of the needs 
of young people in the city.  An action plan is included as appendix one. 
 
 
1. Setting the scene – why do we need a Youth Ambition Strategy?  
 
1.1 We are living in times characterised by austerity, demographic change and 

technological advances. The UK currently has the highest birth rate in 40 
years with increased multiculturalism and more complex individual needs. In 
tandem with this youth unemployment continues to reduce. These trends 
make it almost inevitable that there are increasing numbers of young people 
who are at risk of suffering the negative consequences of becoming idle.1 2 
Young people today are also arguably the most regulated, tested, 
incarcerated and excluded group when compared to previous generations. 
The media too is culpable: some 75% of media coverage reflects young 
people in a poor light.3 

                                                 
1
 Children and young people’s health and wellbeing in changing times - Shaping the future   

  and improving outcomes, NHS Confederation,  2012. 
2
 The Prince’s Trust Youth Index,  2013. 

3
 National Youth Agency, 2004. 

125



 2 

 
1.2 In addition to the services Oxford City Council already provides (appendix 

two), the City Council has invested £400,000 annually from 2012 to 2016 so 
that we can boost our role in improving educational attainment, particularly in  
more deprived neighbourhoods. The Council has invested a further £240,000 
in each of those years to deliver the Youth Ambition Strategy. This level of 
investment in positive activities can usefully be contrasted with the potential 
cost of inactivity, for example placing one young person in custody for a year 
costs £140,0004 and the national cost of responding to anti-social behaviour is 
£3.4 billion per year5.  

 
1.3 The Council’s Corporate Plan details its priorities; and makes clear our 

commitment to Oxford’s young people is a key priority. The Youth Ambition 
Strategy outlines our approach to supporting young people in the city, and 
seeks to influence the City Council’s policy framework to ensure it reflects the 
needs of Oxford’s young people.  
 

2. What does the strategy cover? 
 
2.1 The strategy details the Council’s approach to improving the life chances of 

young people, looking at how we will target resources, the importance of 
coordinating services and our work with partners; and the active involvement 
of young people themselves. 

 
2.2 The needs analysis identifies that 15-21 years of age is the highest priority 

age group (and up to 25 for vulnerable young people). The strategy puts their 
needs at the core of our action and also includes preventative work with 
young people of secondary school age. 

 
3. The Oxford Context  
 
 Demography  

 
3.1 In common with many cities there are major inequalities in life opportunities in 

Oxford. The Indices of Deprivation 2010 places Oxford in the top half of the 
most deprived local authorities in England. The Index of Multiple Deprivation 
2010 ranks Oxford 131st out of 354, placing it in the top half of the most 
deprived local authority areas in England. Of 85 areas in Oxford, 12 are 
among the 20% most deprived areas in England, with one area in the 
Northfield Brook ward among the 10% most deprived. Around 23% of Oxford’s 
under-16s live in low-income households and child poverty is a key concern in 
eight neighbourhoods which feature among the 10% worst affected in 
England.  
 

 
 
 

                                                 
4
 http://www.guardian.co.uk/society/2010/mar/01/jail-young-offenders-rehabilitation 

 
5
 National Audit Office, 2006. 

126



 3 

 Health  
 

3.2 Oxford’s demography exhibits a range of health inequalities; life expectancy is 
7.7 years lower for men in the most deprived areas of Oxford compared to the 
least deprived areas.6 UK children are spending less and less time outdoors. 
In fact the likelihood of children visiting any green space at all has halved in a 
generation.7 In the last national schools survey just 26.74% of Oxford’s school 
children were physically active; the national average was 55.1%.8 In Oxford, 
19.8% of year six children are classified as obese.9  

 
 Attainment  
 
3.3 While there has been an increase to 78% of all pupils at the end of primary 

school achieving Level 4+ in both English and Mathematics, Oxford is still one 
per cent behind the national average. In relation to pupils at the end of Key 
Stage 4 achieving 5+ A* - C, Oxford is at 51.8%, well behind the national 
average of 59%. 

 
3.4      A key thrust of the City Council’s work with partners to break the cycle of  

deprivation is ensuring that young people have the skills they need to gain 
employment. The successful bid to government for City Deal status has the 
potential to act as the catalyst for partners to work together to grow the 
economy and provide future employment opportunities.  

 
3.5     The City Council has also commissioned a programme to accelerate learning  

in literacy and numeracy at Key Stage One. The programme also supports 
children who have not had a good grounding in literacy and numeracy at Key 
Stage One to catch up at Key Stage Two.  

 
3.6  Summary of the local needs assessment and analysis: 

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/policy#3 
 

3.7 An extensive needs analysis has been undertaken and it highlights the 
 following challenges for young people: 

 

• Oxford has an above average proportion of young people and this population 
segment is growing in size. Oxford has almost 60,000 children and younger 
residents aged 0 to 24 in 2011, equivalent to 39% of the population.  

 

• Oxford’s younger population is increasingly diverse. Nearly half of births 
(47%) in 2010 were to non UK-born mothers, compared with a national and 
county average of 26%. 

 

                                                 
6
 DOH: Public Health Observatories – Oxford Health Profile 2011 

http://www.apho.org.uk/resource/view.aspx?RID=50215&SEARCH=oxford&SPEAR 
7
 Natural England. (2010). Wild Adventure Space: its role in teenagers lives   

8
 PE and school sport survey 2009/10, measured the number of young people taking part in at least 3 

hours of PE & School Sport each week in years 1 to 13.  
9
 Oxford Health profile, (2011) 

127



 4 

• There are areas of the city where children and young people are affected by 
multiple deprivation. Almost 6,000 children in Oxford live in poverty and over 
2,500 of households with dependent children have no adult in work. 

 

· Young people are experiencing extended and fractured journeys into 
adulthood, with a 20% increase in the number of 20-34 year olds living with 
parents since 1997.10  

 

· There is a decline in young people going into further education which 
coincides with the loss of the Education Maintenance Allowance and a 
reduction in face to face careers advice to young people.11  

 

· A high number of young people (250) are not in employment, education or 
training (NEETS). An additional 300 young people are in employment but not 
in learning (NILS) at ages 16-18. Most of whom live in South East Oxford and 
Barton. There are also a large number of young people whose status is not 
known. 

 

• Young people are ‘bumped down’ into still less remunerated and more 
insecure jobs and drift in and out of employment. One in three graduates are 
working in lower skilled jobs compared with one in four 10 years ago.12 

 

· Young people have a lack of genuine influence on the services that impact on 
their lives.  

 
 
3.8 National context  
 
3.9 The local messages are echoed nationally. A recent research report “Great 

Expectations” from the Local Government Network13 found that the views of 
young people today are similar to previous generations. Where they found 
they do differ is often because today’s youth tend to have more industrious 
aspirations. We are fast approaching one million 16-24 year olds out of work 
and TUC figures show that between 2002 and 2012 the percentage of 
unemployed young people doubled from 10 to 20 per cent14. This mismatch of 
high aspirations and high unemployment amongst young people has resulted 
in what they have termed an “expectation gap.” Without concerted action 
there is a strong risk of young people’s withdrawal and disengagement from 
society.  

 
3.10 Compounding these issues in June 2010 there were significant reductions in 

Connexions provision, the Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) was 
terminated and replaced by a much smaller institution based grant and at the 
same time University tuition fees have greatly increased by up to £9,000 per 
year. In January 2013, the Prince’s Trust undertook a major survey of young 

                                                 
10

 Office for National Statistics,  2011, Young adults living with parents in the UK 
11

 Figures from Oxford and Cherwell Valley College 2012 
12

 Office for National Statistics, 2012, Graduates in the Labour market  
13

 Great Expectations - The next steps for a new generation, Dr Claire Mansfield, (2013) 
14

  Generation Lost: Youth unemployment and the Labour Market  TUC Touchstone publications. 

128



 5 

people and found that NEET young people reported that they were depressed 
‘often or most of the time’15.  Unemployment has been found in a number of 
studies to have a long term ‘scarring’ effect on young people, affecting their 
future health and economic well-being.16 

 
3.11 The Government has provided guidance on best practice system for the 

support of young people in Positive for Youth (Department for Education, 
December 2011). They are calling on local authorities to take a leadership role 
and for each section of society to play their part to pull together in the 
recognition of the fiscal challenges we face. This Government has retained 
the statutory duty on local authorities with the responsibility for Children’s 
Services to secure the provision of sufficient leisure-time activities for young 
people’s well-being, including youth work. At this time they have not identified 
clear standards for local provision and therefore what the level of service 
should be. 

 
3.12 Health and wellbeing boards, established as part of the government’s health 

reforms, have been given the local coordinating role to represent the needs of 
young people. This Youth Ambition Strategy helps to deliver on all four of 
Oxford’s children and young people priorities and also supports the health 
improvement priority of preventing chronic disease through tackling obesity.  

 
3.13 How other organisations are working to support young people 
 
 Oxfordshire County Council  

3.14 As part the County Council’s youth services they have created a single 
integrated Early Intervention Service delivered through seven Hubs and 44 
Children's Centres. Two of these hubs are in Oxford, with one at Littlemore 
and the other at East Oxford and four satellite facilities in the city. The service 
provides early intervention and specialist services to children, young people 
and families with additional and complex needs, both through County staff and 
partner agencies. They work with people up to 19 and up to 25 where there 
are special educational needs and care leavers. The impact of these changes 
is as yet not fully understood, but there are positive early indicators of more 
holistic services to children, young people and families. 

Schools  
 
3.15 The City has allocated £400,000 per year (2012-2016) to raise attainment in 

City primary schools. It has commissioned a leadership programme for 12 
schools which is being delivered by Oxford University and Oxford Brookes 
University in collaboration with Oxfordshire schools. It has also commissioned 
an instructional programme to raise literacy and or numeracy standards in 
eight schools in disadvantaged areas.  Primary school attainment in the City 
rose in 2012, and the objective is to assist schools with lower levels of 
attainment to achieve results that are 10% above the national average.  This 
programme is expected to have an impact on results from 2014 onwards. 

                                                 
15

 The Princes Trust  Youth Index 2013 
16

  Generation Lost, op cit 

129



 6 

 
Secondary education 

 
3.16 Secondary school results in the City have improved in recent years but they 

remain below the national average and still nearly half the young people in the 
City (48%) do not achieve the Government’s benchmark standards of five 
GCSE’s at A* to C with English and Mathematics.  The loss of EMA and the 
reduction in the support provided by Connexions referred to above has 
coincided with a reduction in the number of young people attending Oxford 
and Cherwell Valley College between 2011 and 2012. Research shows that 
young people from disadvantaged circumstances are more likely to 
experience fractured transitions from education to employment and that this is 
more likely for young people who are uncertain of what they want to do, or 
whose expectations are not aligned with what is possible, or available, in the 
current very competitive youth labour market17. 

 
Voluntary and community groups  

 
3.17 There are a plethora of groups working with young people in the city; the main 

ones have been shown in (appendix three). To achieve the objectives of the 
strategy we need to actively look for opportunities to work with these groups to 
maximise the outcomes they deliver for young people.    

  
4. Where we are now? 
 
4.1 The overarching outcomes that the Council is striving to achieve are:  
 

· More active, engaged young people  

· Fewer young people either involved in crime and antisocial behaviour or being 
victims  

· Helping to get young people into work. 
 
4.2 To work towards meeting these aspirations the City Council has invested in 

creating a diverse high quality leisure, culture and play offering. We believe 
that engagement with a wide range of sporting and cultural activities from an 
early age can: 

  

· Offer opportunities for young people to share their experiences with others, 
and help to build social cohesion 

· Expand young people’s horizons and generate a sense of ambition  

· Develop technical skills, discipline and the confidence necessary for future 
success. (Youngsters who are not physically active, for example, have 
numeracy scores, on average, 8% lower than participants.18)  

· Improve educational attainment 

· Open up possibilities for employment of talented and committed young 
people, including in the creative and sports industries. 

· Provide access to positive role models. 

                                                 
17

 Yates, S., Harris, A., Sabates, R. and Staff, J.  Early occupational aspirations and fractured    
    transitions in Journal of Social Policy,  2010 pp 1-22 
18

 Department of Culture Media and Sport - Culture and sport evidence programme research, 2010 

130



 7 

5. Our plans  
 
5.1 Our approach is underpinned by the work we have undertaken on needs   

analysis and evidence of the positive difference non-formal learning can make 
to young people’s life chances. Appendix four highlights key research 
evidence brought together in a recent publication from the Young Foundation 
A Framework of Outcomes for Young People (2012) that identifies the 
essential contribution of personal, social and emotional skills and capabilities 
to success in later life. 

 
Objective one - Understanding local needs 

 
5.2 As communities become more diverse we will increasingly require a 

sophisticated understanding of needs. While national trends and county wide 
data such as the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment are helpful, we have 
undertaken a full assessment of young people’s issues in the city to ensure 
our resources flow into areas where we can have the greatest impact. This 
needs assessment will be revisited annually to keep our understanding up to 
date and will be shared with partners. The data will also be included within all 
our grant perspectives to encourage a coordinated approach.  

 
5.3 The data provides as solid foundation; to provide the most accurate picture we 

need to combine these findings with information from a variety of sources, 
such as our staff who are working with young people, schools, colleges and 
other key partners. This approach reduces the likelihood of preconceived 
solutions being prescribed and needs assumed, rather than real energy being 
invested into ensuring we continually improve our understanding. 

 
5.4 The programme will focus upon young people living in the city’s target areas. 

We will also provide and encourage activities in areas where there are 
pockets of deprivation.  

 
     Objective two - Involving young people  
 

5.5 The National Youth Agency’s publication Valuing young voices, strengthening 
democracy (2010), outlines the benefits of giving young people a voice. These 
include increased confidence and developing a wide range of personal and 
social skills. There are also benefits to the council such as increased 
legitimacy and accountability and ultimately improved service provision.  

 
5.6 To ensure effective involvement we will develop an inclusive and 

representative system, focusing on our target areas, to give Oxford’s young 
people a genuine voice. This will involve a variety of methods ranging from 
targeted events, through to using technology such as social media to engage 
young people. We will also work with partners, in particular schools, the 
County Council and young person’s organisations and build on existing 
engagement platforms, encouraging all organisations that provide services to 
young people to increasingly co-design those services with young people so 
they can have greater impact. 

 

131



 8 

5.7 We will pilot what are known as “open space” sessions where young people 
are invited to develop their own agenda and given support to develop 
solutions.  

 
5.8 Throughout the programme we will seek to present a range of role models to 

inspire young people and where appropriate introduce supportive adults to 
provide a stable figure in the lives of young people. 

 
5.9 Volunteering can also play a significant role in developing self-confidence and 

a wide range of skills. It supports the development of self-efficacy as young 
people start to see that they can influence decision making, take some control 
and for example improve their local area, thus contributing to community 
cohesion. Volunteering contributes to the improved employability of young 
people as they gain valuable skills for work and adult life.19  

 
Objective three - Building capacity in voluntary and charitable 
organisations  

 
5.10 The Council is focused upon the best way to deliver outcomes and recognises 

the significant role that voluntary and charitable organisations play.  
 
5.11 The Council will invest in Youth Ambition Grants and, where necessary, 

allocate officer resource to work with groups to help them to build capacity 
and develop an understanding of other funding options available to them. The 
Council will also further align its wider grants programme to help to deliver the 
strategy. We will involve young people in assessing our youth ambition grants 
to give them ownership of the process and provide the Council with further 
insight into what is likely to have the most impact. We will develop and 
introduced monitoring and evaluation that takes account of the size and 
complexity of the grants and over time we will implement quality assurance 
processes for all of the activities we deliver and commission for young people.  

 
Objective four - Partnership working  

 
5.12 The Council is one of many organisations involved in supporting young people 

in the city. A key ambition of this strategy is the development of well-
coordinated, accessible services for young people. To achieve this, the 
Council will continue to work with traditional partners and will activity seek to 
develop new partnerships in areas such as businesses and encourage other 
organisations into the city to add to the local offer. Solid governance will be 
established by an independently chaired Youth Ambition Partnership Board. 
The board will report into the Oxford Strategic Partnership which is where key 
partners from across the city come together to improve the services and 
opportunities for the city’s residents. 

 
5.13 The County Council’s youth provision is now focused upon early intervention 

and as such we will compliment what they provide with a mix of universal and 
more targeted services based on our needs data. We will target our grants to 

                                                 
19

 Valuing young voices, strengthening democracy: The contribution made by youth engagement LGA 
(2010) 

132



 9 

try to facilitate community organisations to step in where we see gaps in 
provision, especially in our target areas. We offer more targeted sessions 
through our Positive Futures team who will also continue to be commissioned 
to deliver sessions for other organisations. The Positive Futures team will 
work to create clear pathways, help to identify and signpost young people at 
risk who are attending universal services and liaise with partners to share this 
information. We will also increasingly use sport and cultural activities to deliver 
broader life messages to young people. This will focus upon improving their 
employment opportunities and reducing the chances of them being impacted 
by crime. We will also signpost children, young people and their families to the 
wider support services provided through the county council’s Early 
Intervention Service and other voluntary and community groups. 

 
5.14 Recent research of nearly 4,000 projects into how sport can improve the lives 

of disadvantaged young people found that Sport reduced the risk of 
participants experiencing a range of social problems by between 4.5% and 
19.2%20 (appendix five). The areas of the greatest impact were found to be 
reduced substance misuse, reduced crime and antisocial behaviour, 
increased wellbeing and improved educational attainment. Engagement with 
arts and culture has been found to improve attainment, cognitive abilities, 
employability and the likelihood of students from low income families going on 
to achieve a degree21. 

 
5.15 We will work to develop improved coordination of activities and improve 

activities where there is either poor quality or gaps in current provision. This 
requires mature partnership working and where possible bringing partners, 
bringing resources together to have an increased impact. Positive examples 
of this will be through joint events and work we will undertake to continue the 
City’s Olympic Legacy. 

 
5.16 Partnership working will be further developed to improve access to and 

communication of young people’s services through the most appropriate 
channels. This will include improving the signposting of existing provision and 
harmonising internet systems and where necessary developing new 
applications with our partners. 

 
5.17 We will seek to continuously improve our services; the success of the youth 

offer and its accessibility will be regularly tested through quality assurance 
processes and the involvement of Oxford Youth Voice.  

 
Objective five - Monitoring, impact and value for money 

 
5.18 We currently use a database called Substance that enables us to monitor the 

journeys undertaken by young people. We will expand this system to attain 
usage data from the new activities we develop and also work to capture the 
data from the activities we grant fund. 

 

                                                 
20

 Creating the business case for investing in sport for development work for disadvantaged young 
people in the UK, Substance (2012) 
21

 Cultural Learning Alliance, (2013) 

133



 10 

5.19 Following consultation with young people we are now piloting a rewards 
system to encourage young people to attend positive activities with rewards 
such as clothes or tickets to events. 

 
5.20 While it is firmly established that a range of positive activities help to improve 

the life chances of young people, we will seek to develop social and economic 
impact assessments for the activities we undertake. This will not only help to 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the services we deliver, but also help to 
prioritise future investment both from the Council and partners.  

 
What we will achieve 
 
5.21 These measures focus on the experience and the wider impact of the 

programme to the lives of the young people. Where we have not set a target 
we will work over the next six month to attain sufficient date to do so.  

 
Young people’s experience.  

Measure 
ref 

Measure  Target  

YA1 Numbers of young people engaged in the programme. Year one - 5,000, 5% year 
on year increase for the next 
two years. 

YA2 Satisfaction with the activities we provide. > 90% at least satisfied 

YA3 Young people’s voice and influence. > 60% of grant decision are 
made with the active 
involvement of young 
people. 

 

Where appropriate, we will use the Outcomes Star22 to record the development of 
personal, social and emotional skills and capabilities of young people. 
 
Results - long term, what’s changed? 

Measure 
ref 

Measure  Target  

YA4 Evidence of impact for increased participation of young 
people in decision making. 

Six examples per year. 
 
 

YA5 Number of young people on the programme moving 
from NEET into employment, education, or training. 

12 people in year one.  

YA6 Percentage of young people on the programme             
vol  volunteering. 

  

Year one target 20%. 

YA7 Improve the number of young people engaged with the 
programme who achieve a Level 2 equivalent 
qualification (ie a qualification equivalent to 5 GCSE’s A* 
to C with English and maths). 

Establish baseline in year 
one. 
 
 

 
We will use the substance system and the data we collect to begin to demonstrate 
the economic impact of the programme.  
 
 

                                                 
22

 An approach to measuring change when working with vulnerable people in areas such as physical health, 

offending and motivation. 

134



 11 

 

135



 
1

2
 

  
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 O
n

e
 –

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 (
to

 b
e

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
) 

 
O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

 o
n

e
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 l
o

c
a
l 

n
e
e

d
s

 
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v

e
?

 
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

 i
t?

 
  

M
il

e
s

to
n

e
s

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
li
v

e
ry

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

A
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 

S
h

a
re

 o
u
r 

n
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

 
   R

e
v
ie

w
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

 
  C

o
n

s
u

lt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

P
u

b
lis

h
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
b

  
   N

e
x
t 

re
v
ie

w
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 
  C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 (

A
p

ri
l 
–
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3

) 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 
   A

n
n

u
a

lly
 

  U
p

d
a
te

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

a
g
re

e
d

 S
e

p
 2

0
1
3

) 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
(P

F
P

M
)  

 Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

   O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

  O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

 
v
a

lu
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  

 U
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 

h
o

w
 

th
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
c
a

n
 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
lo

c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

  

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o

a
rd

  
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
  

S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
3

 
  J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 
 

P
F

P
M

 
  P

F
P

M
 

O
ff

ic
e

 t
im

e
 

  O
ff

ic
e

 t
im

e
 

  O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 t
w

o
  

- 
In

v
o

lv
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
  

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 w
e

 
w

a
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v

e
?

 
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

 i
t?

 
M

il
e
s

to
n

e
s

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
li
v

e
ry

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

M
o
re

 e
n

g
a

g
e
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

  
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

 
fo

r 
y
o

u
th

 v
o

ic
e

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
  

 Y
o

u
th

 
v
o

ic
e

 
v
e

h
ic

le
 

in
 

e
a

c
h

 
ta

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

s
 

  

P
la

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 (
M

a
y
 2

0
1

3
) 

   

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3
 

  D
e

c
 2

0
1

3
 

Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

/ 
£
1

5
,0

0
0

 

A
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 a
n

d
 

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

u
n
d

e
rr

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p

s
  

In
c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
(A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
) 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

J
u

n
e

 
2
0
1
3
) 

Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

136



 
1

3
 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 

C
o
-d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
   

O
p

e
n

 
s
p

a
c
e

 
e

v
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
y
o

u
n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
 B

u
ild

 
o

n
 

th
e
 

in
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
  

E
v
e

n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 (
A

p
ri

l-
J
u

ly
) 

   T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
e

n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 (
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

3
)  

  

E
v
e

n
t 

h
e
ld

 A
u

g
 2

0
1

3
 

   A
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

d
e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
e
 l
e

g
a

c
y
 p

la
n

 (
A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
4
) 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 A

d
v
is

o
r 

 
   D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

/ 
£
2

,0
0
0

 
  O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 

/ 
£
5

,0
0
0

 

D
e

c
is

io
n

s
 t

a
k
e

n
 

b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
fo

r 
y
o

u
n
g

 
p

e
o

p
le

 
o

n
 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
is

s
u

e
s
 

(t
o

 
m

e
e
t 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s
)  

A
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

la
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 (
A

u
g

 
2
0
1
3
)  

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 (

A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1
4
)  

  

Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

M
o
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e
ri

n
g

 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 

ra
n

g
e

 
o

f 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

ig
n

p
o
s
ti
n

g
 t

o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
  

A
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

ff
e

r 
(A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
4
) 

O
x
fo

rd
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d
  

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

W
it
h

in
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
  

  O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 t
h

re
e

 -
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 c
a

p
a
c

it
y
 i

n
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

  
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v

e
?

 
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

 i
t?

 
M

il
e
s

to
n

e
s

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
li
v

e
ry

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p

s
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

  

T
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 

g
ra

n
ts

 
w

h
e

re
 

th
e

y
 

c
a

n
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p

a
c
t  

   

Y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p
le

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 

g
ra

n
ts

 
a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

in
g

 a
w

a
rd

s
 

 Y
o

u
th

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

c
ri
te

ri
a

 
 S

e
lf
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

a
tt

e
n
d

a
n
c
e

 i
n

 
th

e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
  

  C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

rg
e
ts

 f
o

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 
  J
u

n
e

  
2

0
1
3

 
   A

u
g
 2

0
1

3
 

  A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

 Y
o

u
th

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

  P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 
 C

u
lt
u

re
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

£
5
0

,0
0
0

 p
e
r 

y
e

a
r  

        O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

137



 
1

4
 

 O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 f
o

u
r 

- 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

  
W

h
a

t 
d

o
 w

e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v

e
?

 
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

 i
t?

 
M

il
e
s

to
n

e
s

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
li
v

e
ry

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

In
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 
c
h

a
ir
e

d
 
y
o

u
th

 
s
te

e
ri
n

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 
w

it
h

 
C

o
u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
  

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 j
o

in
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

la
n

 
   D
e

v
e

lo
p

 
y
o

u
th

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 

(o
r 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 

s
u

it
a

b
le

  
  

 
m

o
d
e

l)
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 
c
o

o
rd

in
a
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
o

u
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
in

 
p

la
c
e

 
(M

a
y
 

2
0
1

3
) 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
a
 
re

p
 
fr

o
m

 
lo

c
a

l 
y
o

u
th

 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 P

la
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 (

J
u

n
e

-A
u

g
  

2
0
1

3
) 

   V
is

it
 e

a
c
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 h
e

a
d

  
   P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

s
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
3

 

F
ir
s
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 (

J
u

n
e

 
2
0
1
3
) 

  P
la

n
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 S
e

p
t 

2
0
1
3

  
  M

a
y
 –

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 
   S

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 

H
e

a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
  

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 A

d
v
is

o
r 

  H
e

a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
  

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 A

d
v
is

o
r 

  H
e

a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
  

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r  

  P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

   R
o

u
te

s
 t

o
 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

   £
1
4
5

,0
0

0
 

b
u
d

g
e

t 

E
n

s
u

re
 h

ig
h

 
q

u
a

lit
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

  
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

q
u
a

lit
y
 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 
fo

r 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

w
e

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d

 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

a
n
d

 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
o

th
e

r 
to

 t
a

k
e

 i
t 

u
p

 

S
u

it
a

b
le

 q
u
a

lit
y
 m

a
rk

 a
d
o

p
te

d
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 m

a
rk

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 
(A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

4
)  

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r  

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

J
o

in
t 

o
ff

e
ri
n
g

 w
it
h

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
  

 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

fr
o
m

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

o
n
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
th

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 b

o
a
rd

 
S

u
it
a

b
le

 r
e

p
 c

h
o
s
e

n
 (

M
a

y
 2

0
1
3

) 
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
  

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
a

g
e

 
b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
a

t 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

In
v
o

lv
e

 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 

in
 

d
e
v
e

l o
p
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

  P
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 t

h
e

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 (

J
u

n
e
 –

J
u

ly
 

2
0
1
3
)  

  A
g

re
e

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
  

  D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 a

t 
B

la
c
k
b

ir
d

 
L

e
y
s
 L

C
 t

o
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

N
e

w
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1

3
 

   A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

L
e
is

u
re

 M
a

n
a
g

e
r 

/F
u

s
io

n
 

L
if
e

s
ty

le
 /

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
  

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

/ 
C

u
lt
u

re
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

 L
e
is

u
re

 M
a

n
a
g

e
r 

/F
u

s
io

n
 

L
if
e

s
ty

le
 

 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

  O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

  
W

o
rk

 
w

it
h

 
p

u
b

lic
 

h
e
a

lt
h

 
to

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

b
o

a
rd

’s
 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o

p
le

 p
ri
o
ri

ti
s
e

. 

M
e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
o

lle
a
g

u
e
s
  

  P
la

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

  

M
a

y
-J

u
n

e
  

2
0
1

3
 

  S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

3
 

H
e

a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

 H
e

a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 /
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

  

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

  O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

138



 
1

5
 

  O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

 f
iv

e
 –

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

, 
im

p
a
c

t 
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 w
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
?

 
H

o
w

 a
re

 w
e

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 d
o

 i
t?

 
M

il
e
s

to
n

e
s

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

  
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
li
v

e
ry

 
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

Im
p

a
c
t 
m

e
a
s
u

re
d

  
E

x
p

a
n

d
 

o
u

r 
u

s
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
  

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 
 

 

L
ic

e
n
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

s
p

o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

ff
  

  

S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
3
  

  O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 (

D
e

c
 2

0
1

3
) 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 

P
o

o
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

w
it
h

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
  

M
a
tc

h
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 b
id

s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
  

   

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d
 b

id
  

  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

                     

139



 
1

6
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 t
w

o
 –

 O
x

fo
rd

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 Y
o

u
th

 A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

  
 

 
 

  
C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
Y

o
u

th
 A

m
b

it
io

n
 

g
ra

n
ts

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

Y
o

u
th

 A
m

b
it
io

n
 

fr
e

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
 a

t 
B

la
c
k
b
ir

d
 L

e
y
s
 

L
e

is
u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

S
tr

e
e

t 
S

p
o

rt
s
 

(a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

s
p

o
rt

in
g

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

v
e
r 

s
u

m
m

e
r)
 

T
a

rg
e

ti
n
g

 f
re

e
 

s
w

im
m

in
g

 
 (

fr
e

e
 le

s
s
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

n
o

n
- 

s
w

im
m

e
rs

) 
F

re
e

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 
fo

r 
U

1
7

’s
 

(5
0

h
rs

 e
a

c
h

 
w

e
e

k
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

p
o

o
ls

) 

  
P

la
y
 A

re
a

s
 

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

C
e
n

tr
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 

  
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
- 

S
p

o
rt

, 
C

u
lt
u

re
 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
 

 
H

o
lid

a
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

 (
s
p

o
rt

s
 &

 
c
u

lt
u
ra

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)
 

 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 

F
u

tu
re

s
 

S
e

s
s
io

n
s
 

 

O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

Y
o

u
th

 

A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 

140



 
1

7
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 t
h

re
e

- 
G

ro
u

p
s

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

                                  

Y
O

U
N

G
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

 
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 

Yo
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e
 S

k
il

ls
 B

o
a

rd
 

 

A
n

y
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

s 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
s 

 

A
n

y
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
5

0
+

 O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e
 A

ss
o

ci
a

ti
o

n
 

F
o

r 
Yo

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s  

Tr
a

in
in

g
 P

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 T
e

a
m

 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 T
e

a
m

 
S

ch
o

o
ls

 

 

S
p

o
rt

s 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 F
u

tu
re

s 
P

a
rk

s 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s 

Yo
u

n
g

 c
a

re
rs

 
A

n
y

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

1
6

5
+

 O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

a
n

d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

ct
io

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
E

a
rl

y
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 H
u

b
s 

 

P
o

li
ce

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 

 

H
o

sp
it

a
ls

 
D

o
ct

o
rs

 

O
th

e
rs

…
…

 

P
la

y
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

o
ci

a
l 
C

a
re

 e
.g

. 

K
in

g
fi

sh
e

r 
Te

a
m

 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r,

 i
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 &

 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

C
u

lt
u

re
 

141



 
1

8
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 f
o

u
r 

- 
T

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 F
o

u
n

d
a
ti

o
n

, 
2

0
1

2
 

 

 
  

142



 
1

9
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 f
iv

e
 -

 H
o

w
 s

p
o

rt
 c

a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l

iv
e

s
 o

f 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

 

 

143



144

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Fusion Lifestyle Annual Service Plan 2013/14
	Appendix One Fusion 2013-14 Annual Service Plan
	Appendix Two Fusion Lifestyle 2012- 13 Annual Service Plan Summary Booklet
	Appendix Three 2013 to 14 ASP Risk Register 1 0
	Appendix Four - 2013 to 2014 Annual Service Plan Initial Equalities Impact Assessment 2

	6 Youth Ambition Strategy
	DRAFT Youth Ambition Strategy 12 4 13 v 2 5 (3)


